BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

MONDAY 4TH DECEMBER 2017
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE, B61 8DA

PLEASE NOTE THAT AFTER 5PM, ACCESS TO THE PARKSIDE SUITE IS VIA THE
MAIN ENTRANCE DOOR ON THE STOURBRIDGE ROAD. PLEASE ALSO NOTE THAT
THERE IS NO PUBLIC PARKING AVAILABLE FOR THE NEW PREMISES. THE
NEAREST PARKING IS THE PARKSIDE (MARKET STREET) PAY AND DISPLAY CAR
PARK.

MEMBERS: Councillors R. J. Deeming (Chairman), P.L. Thomas (Vice-
Chairman), C. Allen-Jones, S. J. Baxter, M. T. Buxton,
C.A. Hotham, S. R. Peters, S. P. Shannon, M. A. Sherrey,
C. J. Spencer and P. J. Whittaker

Updates to the Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration Services will be available
in the Council Chamber one hour prior to Meeting. You are advised to arrive in advance of
the start of the Meeting to allow yourself sufficient time to read the updates.

Members of the Committee are requested to arrive at least fifteen minutes before the start
of the meeting to read any additional representations and to ask questions of the Officers
who will also make themselves available for at least one hour before the meeting. Members
are also requested to give Officers at least forty-eight hours notice of detailed, technical
guestions in order that information can be sought to enable answers to be given at the
meeting.

AGENDA
1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other

Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm
the nature of those interests.



10.

11.

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 6th November 2017 (Pages 1 - 4)

Updates to planning applications reported at the meeting (to be circulated
prior to the start of the meeting)

Tree Preservation Order (7) 2017 - Trees on land adjoining Harris Brush
Works and Saxon Business Park, Hanbury Road, Bromsgrove. (Pages 5 - 40)

Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 - Trees on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst
Newtown, Blackwell (Pages 41 - 152)

2017/00459/FUL - Conversion of existing barn to form two bedroom dwelling -
Stoney Lane Farm, Stoney Lane, Broad Green, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire,
B60 1LZ - Mr P. J. Whittaker (Pages 153 - 156)

2017/00701/0OUT - Hybrid application comprising: Outline planning application
(with matters of appearance, landscaping, layout, scale and details of internal
circulation routes reserved) for the development on a phased basis of 32ha of
employment land for business/industrial uses (Use Classes B1, B2, B8). The
development shall include: landscaping, parking, associated infrastructure,
utilities, drainage (including SUDS) and ground engineering works; and Full
planning application for Phase 1 Ground Engineering works, and details of
means of access to the site from the A4023 - Redditch Gateway, Land
Adjacent to the A4023, Coventry Highway, Redditch, Worcestershire -
Redditch Gateway Infrastructure Ltd (Pages 157 - 210)

2017/00786/FUL - Conversion and extension of two existing dwellings houses
to create 10 x 2 bed apartments - 77 Lyttleton Avenue, Bromsgrove,
Worcestershire, B60 3LH - Mr Jeremy Kimberley (Pages 211 - 218)

2017/01160/FUL - Two-storey extension to original front of dwelling
(retrospective) - Allandale Cottage, Redhill Road, Kings Norton, Birmingham,
Worcestershire, B38 9EW - Mr D. Sanderson (Pages 219 - 222)

To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting

K. DICKS
Chief Executive

Parkside

Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

24th November 2017



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Information for Members of the Public

The Planning Committee comprises 11 Councillors. Meetings are held once a
month on Mondays at 6.00 p.m. in the Parkside Suite, Parkside, Market
Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA - access to the Parkside Suite after 5pm is via
the main entrance door on the Stourbridge Road. The nearest available
public parking for the new premises is Parkside (Market Street) Pay and
Display. .

The Chairman of the Committee, who is responsible for the conduct of the
meeting, sits at the head of the table. The other Councillors sit around the
inner-tables in their party groupings. To the immediate right of the Chairman
are the Planning Officers. To the left of the Chairman is the Solicitor who
provides legal advice, and the Democratic Services Officer who takes the
Minutes of the Meeting. The Officers are paid employees of the Council who
attend the Meeting to advise the Committee. They can make
recommendations, and give advice (both in terms of procedures which must
be followed by the Committee, and on planning legislation / policy / guidance),
but they are not permitted to take part in the decision making.

All items on the Agenda are (usually) for discussion in public. You have the
right to request to inspect copies of previous Minutes, reports on this agenda,
together with the background documents used in the preparation of these
reports. Any Update Reports for the items on the Agenda are published on
the Council’'s Website at least one hour before the start of the meeting, and
extra copies of the Agenda and Reports, together with the Update Report, are
available in the public gallery. The Chairman will normally take each item of
the Agenda in turn although, in particular circumstances, these may be taken
out of sequence.

The Agenda is divided into the following sections:-

e Procedural ltems

Procedural matters usually take just a few minutes and include: apologies
for absence, approval of the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) and, where
necessary, election of a Chairman and / or Vice-Chairman. In addition,
Councillors are asked to declare whether they have any disclosable
pecuniary and / or other disclosable interests in any items to be discussed.
If a Councillor declares a disclosable pecuniary interest, he/she will
withdraw from the meeting during the discussion and voting on that item.
However, it is up to the individual Councillor concerned to decide whether
or not to declare any interest.

e Reports of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

() Plans and Applications to Develop, or Change of Use - Reports on
all applications will include a response from consultees, a summary of

-3-



(ii)

any observations received and a recommendation. Recent
consultation responses will be reported at the meeting within the
Update Report.

Each application will be considered in turn. When the Chairman
considers that there has been sufficient discussion, a decision will be
called for. Councillors may decide that, in order to make a fully
informed decision, they need to visit the site. If this is the case, then a
decision on the application will be deferred until the next meeting of the
Committee. Alternatively, a decision may be deferred in order that
more information can be presented / reported. If the Councillors
consider that they can proceed to making a decision, they can either
accept the recommendation(s) made in the report (suggesting any
additional conditions and / or reasons for their decision), or they can
propose an amendment, whereby Councillors may make their own
recommendation. A decision will then be taken, usually by way of a
show of hands, and the Chairman will announce the result of the vote.
Officers are not permitted to vote on applications.

Note: Delegation - All items are presumed to be matters which the
Planning Committee has delegated powers to determine. In those
instances where delegation will not or is unlikely to apply, an
appropriate indication will be given at the meeting.

Any members of the public wishing to make late additional
representations should do so in writing, or by contacting their Ward
Councillor(s) well in advance of the Meeting. You can find out who
your Ward Councillor(s) is/are at www.writetothem.com.

Members of the public should note that any application can be
determined in any manner, notwithstanding any (or no)
recommendation being made to the Planning Committee.

Development Control (Planning Enforcement) / Building Control -
These matters include such items as to whether or not enforcement
action should be taken, applications to carry out work on trees that are
the subject of a Tree Preservation Order, etc.. 'Public Speaking' policy
does not apply to this type of report, and enforcement matters are
normally dealt with as confidential items (see 'Confidential / Exempt
Business' below).

Reports of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services

These reports relate to, for example, cases where authority is sought to
commence legal proceedings for non-compliance with a variety of formal
planning notices. They are generally mainly concerned with administrative
and legal aspects of planning matters. 'Public Speaking' policy does not
apply to this type of report, and legal issues are normally dealt with as
confidential items (see 'Confidential / Exempt Business' below).

Urgent Business

In exceptional circumstances, and at the discretion of the Chairman,
certain items may be raised at the meeting which are not on the Agenda.
The Agenda is published a week in advance of the meeting and an urgent
matter may require a decision. However, the Chairman must give a reason

-4 -



for accepting any "urgent business". 'Public Speaking' policy would not
necessarily apply to this type of report.

e Confidential / Exempt Business

Certain items on the Agenda may be marked "confidential” or "exempt";
any papers relating to such items will not be available to the press and
public. The Committee has the right to ask the press and public to leave
the room while these reports are considered. Brief details of the matters to
be discussed will be given, but the Committee has to give specific reasons
for excluding the press and public.

Public Speaking

Where members of the public have registered to speak on planning
applications, the item will be dealt with in the following order (subject to the
discretion of the Chairman):-

» Introduction of item by the Chairman;

= Officer's presentation;

» Representations by objector;

» Representations by applicant (or representative) or supporter;
» Parish Council speaker (if applicable) and / or Ward Councillor;

= Consideration of application by Councillors, including questions to
officers.

All public speakers will be called to the designated area by the Chairman and
will have a maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee.

Feedback forms will be available within the Council Chamber for the duration
of the meeting in order that members of the public may comment on the
facilities for speaking at Planning Committee meetings.

NOTES

Councillors who have not been appointed to the Planning Committee but who
wish to attend and to make comments on any application on the attached
agenda are required to inform the Chairman and the relevant Committee
Services Officer before 12:00 noon on the day of the meeting. They will also
be subject to three minute time limit.

Councillors who are interested in the detail of any matter to be considered are
invited to consult the files with the relevant Officer(s) in order to avoid
unnecessary debate on such detail at the meeting. Members of the
Committee are requested to arrive at least one hour before the start of the
meeting to read any additional representations and to ask questions of the
Officers who will also make themselves available for at least one hour before
the meeting. Members are also requested to give Officers at least forty-eight
hours notice of detailed, technical questions in order that information can be
sought to enable answers to be given at the meeting. Councillors should

-5-



familiarise themselves with the location of particular sites of interest to
minimise the need for Committee Site Visits.

Councillors are respectfully reminded that applications deferred for more
information should be kept to a minimum and only brought back to Committee
for determination where the matter cannot be authorised to be determined by
the Head of Planning and Regeneration Services.

In certain circumstances, items may be taken out of the order than that shown
on the agenda and, therefore, no certain advice can be provided about the
time at which any item may be considered. However, it is recommended that
any person attending a meeting of the Committee, whether to speak or to just
observe proceedings and listen to the debate, be present for the
commencement of the meeting at 6.00 p.m.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 -
SECTION 100D

1. All applications for planning permission include, as background papers,
the following documents:-

a. The application - the forms and any other written documents
submitted by the applicant, the applicant's architect or agent, or
both, whichever the case may be, together with any submitted
plans, drawings or diagrams.

b. Letters of objection, observations, comments or other
representations received about the proposals.

C. Any written notes by officers relating to the application and
contained within the file relating to the particular application.

d. Invitations to the Council to comment or make observations on
matters which are primarily the concern of another Authority,
Statutory Body or Government Department.

2. In relation to any matters referred to in the reports, the following are
regarded as the standard background papers:-

Policies contained within the County Structure Plan and Local Plan
below, and Planning Policy Statements, specifically referred to as

follows:-

BDP - Bromsgrove District 2011-2-30

SPG - Supplementary Policy Guidance

SPD Supplementary Planning Document
3. Any other items listed, or referred to, in the report.

Note: For the purposes of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act
1985, unless otherwise stated against a particular report, "background papers"
in accordance with Section 100D will always include the Case Officer's written
report and any letters or memoranda of representation received (including

-6 -



correspondence from Parish Councils, the Highway Authority, statutory
consultees, other 'statutory undertakers' and all internal District Council
Departments).

Further information

If you require any further information on the Planning Committee, or wish to
register to speak on any application for planning permission to be considered
by the Committee, in the first instance, please contact Pauline Ross,
Democratic Services Officer, at p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk, or
telephone (01527) 881406



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
6th November 2017

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 6TH NOVEMBER 2017, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors R. J. Deeming (Chairman), P.L. Thomas (Vice-Chairman),
C. Allen-Jones, M. T. Buxton, C.A. Hotham, S. R. Peters, S. P. Shannon,
M. A. Sherrey, C. J. Spencer and L. J. Turner (substituting for Councillor
S. J. Baxter)

Officers: Mr. D. M. Birch, Mr. G. Boyes, Ms. C. Flanagan, Mr. D. Kelly,
Mrs. T. Lovejoy, Mrs. P. Ross and Mrs. J. Smyth

37/17 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors S. J.
Baxter and P. J. Whittaker. Councillor L. J. Turner was confirmed as

Councillor Baxter’s substitute for the meeting.

38/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor M. T. Buxton declared an Other Disclosable Interest in
respect of Agenda Item 6 (Application 2017/00950/FUL - The
Greyhound (ph), 30 Rock Hill, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B61 7LR),
due to her previous involvement with Whitford Vale Voice. She advised
that, in view of this, she would withdraw from the meeting for the item.

Councillor M. T. Buxton withdrew from the meeting and was not present
during the public speaking process nor the Committee’s debate and
voting on the matter.

39/17 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 2nd
October 2017 were received.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting be approved as a correct
record.

40/17 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (11) 2017 - TREES ON LAND
ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Officers provided additional information in relation to the consideration of
Tree Preservation Order (Noll) 2017, as detailed in the published
Update Report 2.

Page 1



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
6th November 2017

Due to the late arrival of a significant amount of additional information,
the Committee agreed for this matter to be deferred until the next
meeting of the Planning Committee.

RESOLVED that the matter be deferred to the next meeting of the
Planning Committee.

41/17 2017/00950/FUL - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 2 STOREY BUILDING,
THE GREYHOUND (PH), 30 ROCK HILL, BROMSGROVE,
WORCESTERSHIRE, B61 7LR - GREYHOUND INN DEVELOPMENTS
LTD

Officers reported on an additional representation that had been received
from Whitford Vale Voice, as detailed in the published Update Report 1,
copies of which were provided to Committee Members and the public
gallery prior to the commencement of the meeting.

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. Roy Dixon, on behalf of Whitford
Vale Voice, addressed the Committee objecting to the Application.
Councillor L. C. R. Mallett, in whose Ward, the application site was,
addressed the Committee and Mr. David Morris, for the Applicants also
addressed the Committee.

The Committee then considered the Application, which Officers had
recommended for approval. Having considered all of the information,
including the public speaking representations, Members were concerned
that the proposed demolition could have a detrimental impact on the
local area should the building be demolished. Whilst the building was
not currently listed as a local heritage asset, Members considered that
there was the potential for the building to become one and be of benefit
to the people of Bromsgrove. Members also considered that there was
insufficient evidence to outweigh the potential for alternative uses for the
site should the Whitford Road planning application not go ahead.

RESOLVED that Planning Permission be refused for the following
reason, the building is a non-designated heritage asset and there are no
public benefits that would outweigh the loss of the building. The
demolition of the building was therefore contrary to Policy BDP1 and
BDP20 of the Bromsgrove District Plan and the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

42/17 2017/00968/FUL - ERECTION OF 12 STABLE BLOCKS (TOTAL) 34
LOOSE BOXES), 12 SHEDS, 4 STORAGE CONTAINERS, 1 POLE
MOUNTED FLOODLIGHT AND CCTV CAMERA, ANCILLARY OFFICE
AND MANEGE - NEWHOUSE FARM, LEA END LANE, HOPWOOD,
BIRMINGHAM, WORCESTERSHIRE, B48 7AX - MR PHILIP MICHELL

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. P. Michell, the Applicant addressed
the Committee.

Page 2



Agenda Iltem 3

Planning Committee
6th November 2017

RESOLVED that Planning Permission be refused for the reasons as
detailed on page 143 of the main agenda report.

The meeting closed at 6.40 p.m.

Chairman

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 7 )2017 — Trees on land adjoining Harris
Brush Works and Saxon Business Park, Hanbury Road, Bromsqgrove.

Relevant Portfolio Holder Peter Whittaker

Portfolio Holder Consulted No

Relevant Head of Service Head of Planning and Environmental Services
Ward(s) Affected Stoke Prior

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider the confirmation with modification of Tree
Preservation Order (No.7) 2017 relating to trees on land adjoining Harris
Brush Works and Saxon Business Park, Hanbury Road, Bromsgrove.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Itis recommended that provisional Tree Preservation Order (No.7) 2017
relating to trees on land adjoining Harris Brush Works and Saxon Business
Park, Hanbury Road, Bromsgrove Is confirmed with modification from the
provisional order as raised and shown in appendix (1) to that as shown on the
plan and described in the schedule of trees in appendix (2).

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1  There are no financial implications relating to the confirmation of the TPO.

Legal Implications

3.2 Town and Country Planning (Trees) Regulations 2012 covers this procedure.

Service / Operational Implications

Back Ground:

3.3 The provisional order was raised on the 11" July 2017 due to the land
containing the woodland blocks of the order being offered for sale. The
woodlands and group of trees within the order add greatly to the general
landscape character of the area offering a high level of visual amenity and
habitat value to users of the site and passers-by. Therefore it was felt prudent

Page 5



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

to raise an order on the site due to the uncertainty in regard to the new
owner’s potential management of the trees that a change of ownership could
bring.

3.4 The site is subject to an active Forestry Commission (FC) approved felling
licence that expires in 2023 as shown in appendix (3). The Council would
look to support positive proactive management of the woodland as already
agreed by the FC and therefore would have no objection to this work being
carried out should the new owner wish to do so. The owner has also
highlighted through his agent that he intends to apply to the Forestry
Commission for a Woodland Planning Grant to help develop a 20 year
Woodland Management Plan taking guidance from United Kingdom
Woodland Assurance Scheme (UKWAS) as verified in appendix (4) the email
from the owners Forestry Consultant. This is all very positive information that
confirms that the new owner has a responsible intension towards the welfare
of the woodlands. The best practice guidance on making tree preservation
orders commonly known as “The Blue Book” highlights in paragraphs 2.8 —
2.11 shown in appendix (5) “ There are limitations to the making of TPOs on
land in which the Forestry Commission have an ‘interest’. The act states that
the Forestry Commission have an ‘interest’ in the land if, in respect of it: (1)
there is an existing forestry dedication covenant in force, or (2) they have
made a grant or loan under section 1 of the Forestry Act 1997. If (1) or (2)
applies the Forestry Commission must give their consent before a TPO may
be made.” Therefore as there was a felling licence in place which confirmed a
Forestry Commission interest in the site | contact the FC to see if they had
any object to the raising and of the order by phone which they confirmed
verbally they did not which was later confirmed in writing by the email
appendix (6).

The Following two objections have been received in respect of the provisional
TPO having been raised.

1. Email received from the owners Forestry Consultant on behalf of the
owner of woodland blocks W1, W2 and W3 of the order shown in
appendix (4)

My comments in relation to this objection are as follows:

Semi mature - Mature woodlands do ideally require proactive management
to ensure the longevity of the woodland is assured and that they mature
containing high quality trees. Therefore due to the semi mature age class
of the woodlands within this order | would be in favour of a proactive
management plan being adopted and implemented. There is a current
felling licence in place which the owner was unaware of when informed of
such on a site meeting on the 9™ November. It is possible to fell 5 cubic
metres of timber per calendar quarter without requiring an FC felling

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

licence. Therefore the TPO would provide a more robust level of
protection as TPO approval would be required for such a level of work.
The TPO would also create another line of consultation between the FC
and the Council should any works be applied for but would not be
expected to prevent positive proactive management applied for and
agreed through the FC.

2. Letter received from the owner of woodland block W4 & W5 dated 25"
July 2017 see appendix (7)

My comments in relation to the issues raised are shown in the response
sent 17" November 2017 see appendix (8).

3.5 Policy Implications- None
HR Implications- None
Council Objective 4- Environment, Priority C04 Planning

3.6 Climate Change / Carbon/ Biodiversity- The Proposal in relation to confirming
the TPO can only be seen as a positive impact on the environment.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.7 The customers have been provided with the relevant notification and the
responses received are attached in the appendices. The customers will
receive notification by post of the decision of the committee.

3.8  Equalities and Diversity implications- None

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1  There are no significant risks associated with the details included in this
report.

5. APPENDICES

List Appendices.

Appendix (1) Plan & Schedule of Provisional Order

Appendix (2) Plan & Schedule of Modified Order

Appendix (3) Active Forestry Commission Felling Licence.

Appendix (4) Email of Objection from owners of W1, W2 & W3 Forestry
Consultant

Appendix (5) Extract from the Tree Preservation Order Best Practice Guide

Page 7



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

Appendix (6) Email Response of Support Forestry Commission
Appendix (7) Letter of Objection from the owner of woodland blocks W4 & W5
Appendix (8) Letter of Response to owner of woodland blocks W4 & W5

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

1. KEY

TPO - Tree Preservation Order
7.1 Conclusion and recommendations:
The woodlands and trees covered by this order are all highly prominent and of very
good quality. They offer a high degree of visual amenity and habitat value to the
area and particularly users of the Hanbury Road, local footpath network and workers

at the local industrial areas while adding greatly to the character of area in general.

Therefore | would recommend to the committee that the order is confirmed and
made permanent with the modifications as shown in appendix (2) of this report.

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Gavin Boyes
Email: gavin.boyes@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Tel: (01527 64252 Extension 3094)

Page 8



Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) {England) Regulations 2012
Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Tree Preservation Order (7) 2017

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred on them by saction 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Citation

1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation order (7) 2017

Interpretation

2.— (1) In this Order “the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council.
(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to & numbered
regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation)England) Regulations 2012.

Effect

3.~ (1) Subject to article 4, this Order fakes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made.
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power 10 make tree preservation
orders) or subsection {1) of section 200 (free preservation orders: Farestry Commissioners)
and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall—

(a) cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or
(b) cause or permit the cutling down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,

any tree specified in the Schedule o this Order except with the wriiten consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of Stale in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject fo conditions, in
accordance with those conditions.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being
a tree to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as frorn the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 11" July 2017

Signed on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council

\’%\J\wuﬁ( fr s <

Clare Flanagan
Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf

Page 9




Agenda Item 5

First Schedule

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No, on Map Description NGR Situation
NONE

Trees specified by reference {o an area

(within a dotted black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

NONE

Groups of Trees

(within & broken black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

G1 6 X Sycamore 395371-266806 Edge of main drive’
7 X Beech Harris Brush Works
1X Lime By Football Pitches
2 X Larch

1 X Norway Maple

Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Sifuation

W1 Mixed species 305194-266883 Western frontage of site
Woadland Mainly boundary of Hanbury
Beech, Sycamore, Road.
Pine, Birch, Alder
Hawthorn.

w2 Mixed species 395359-267056 Northern boundary of site
Woodland Mainly boundary of Canal to

around Eastern side of

Beech, Sycamore,
Football pitches

Ash, Cherry, Alder
Hawthorn, Oak.

305828-.266825 Eastern side of site rear

W3 Mixed species
of Harris Brush works

Woodland Mainly
Sycamore, Hawthorn
Oak, Alder, Ash, Pine
Birch

Page 10




W4

W5

Wwo

Mixed species 395232-266520

Woodland Mainly
Beech, Ash, Hawthom

Mixed species 395171-266436

Woodland Mainly
Beech, Ash, Hawthorn
Sycamore,

Mixed species 395399-266606

Woodland Mainly
Sycamore, Ash,
Cherry.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

Woeodland adjoining
Southern side of Saxon
Business Park.

Woodiland adjacent to
Southern side of Saxon

Woodland adjoining the
Southern side of
Harris Brush Works




Agenda Item 5-

§F 218 g 3 g
o ahk AR BHLUEE: H . ,
AL e |2 (& = ;
gg X S i g : F 5 gg = %% ¢ @,ﬁ‘&m L
] ) : = 25 3% fig- [ ] g
- g 2 ,
gn‘ 110w & gg_,é ¥|8| zZm @2 qﬁﬁ k. ) 205—7:_“
o e~ B iFas l £c. 9% Ugg .
) i8g ¢ shite | . EHEA
& ilA3 & 82458 | £ [e|e| mEPEE 335
22 33 g EE£ 5| & |FIE| 8% 22 oz l
§ €ing & S50 sS {7 gz 8% 3
] @ = o=
Ba 2 OLE g - 8§ E ga
ﬂ% Bl s 2 3 z o
=] A3 Bl fEE| ® 4
3 ElSm S




%ﬁﬂm 2 Agenda Item 5

First Schedule

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No. on Map Descriplion NGR Situation
NONE

Tress specified by reference to an area

(within & dotted black line on the map)
No. on Map Description NGR Situation

NONE

Groups of Trees

(within a broken bfack line an the map)

No. on Map Description NGR Situation
G1 6 X Sycamore 305371-266806 Edge of main drive-
7 X Beech Harris Brush Works
1 X Lime By Football Pitches
2 X Larch
1 X Norway Maple
Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the map)

No. g Map Description NGR Situation
W1 Mixed species 395194-266883 Western frontage of site
Woodland Mainly boundary of Hanbury
Road.

Beech, Sycamore,
Pine, Birch, Alder

Hawthomn.
w2 Mixed species 395359-267056 Northern boundary of site
Woodland Mainly boundary of Canal to
Beeach, Sycamore, around Eastern side of
Football pitches

Ash, Cherry, Alder
Hawthorn, Oak.

395828-266825 Eastern side of site rear

W3 Mixed species
of Harris Brush works

Woodland Mainly

Sycamore, Hawthorn
Oak, Alder, Ash, Pine
Birch

Page 13




W4

W5

W6

Mixed species 395232266520

Woodland Mainly
Beech, Azsh, Hawthorn

Mixed species 395171-266436

Woodland Mainly
Beech, Ash, Hawthorn

Sycamore.,

Mixed specles 395399-265606

Woodland Mainly
Sycamore, Ash,
Cherry.

Agenda Item 5

Woodland adjoining
Southern side of SBaxon
Business Park.

Wooedland adjacent to
Southem side of Saxon

Woodland adjoining the
Southern side of
Harris Brush Works




-

m

Motes:

A endal

Bremsgrove Distirct
“Tree Preseraviion QOrder
{727

£
Draving: 1
Land Adjzining e
Harris Brush Works
And (@)
Saxton Business Park (qv]
Hanbury Road, Bromsgrove DI
Drawn: G.B. Scale: 113500 @ A3
Surveysd; ABA Date: 20611207

Drawing No: PODOC/O

Engineering and Design Services
Tewn Hall

Bromsgrove
Bistrict Council

* wwnw hromsgrave govuk

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2017
Ordnance Survey 100024252

N



This page is intentionally left blank



endix (3) Agenda ltem 5

eWQS

English Woodland Grant Scheme Contract for @’
Contract Number G Nefemmce: |

SB! Number

Date of Approval r ~ 04-DEC-2013

End of Felling Approval - 11-JUN-2023
o | - . :
‘ Bullers Hill Admin Hub ;
| i Forestry Commission '
| Forestry Bullers Hill g
E Commission f Kennford
| Contact Nr Exeter
EX6 7XR
: Tel 0300 067 4960
§ email adminhub.bullershill@forestry.gsi.gov.uk
5
§
L

Page 1 of 18

Page 17



English Woodiand Grant Scheme contract for |

Coniract Number

Terms & Conditions -

Parties

Agent Details

Payment Details

General Details

Work Schedule

This contract details the following types of felling. By accepting this contract you will be awarded a Felling Licence to carry
out this felling work

Thinning

Maps
Additionai Pages

Case Reference

e

For details see page

For details see page
For details see page
For details see page

For details see page

Grant Details

For details see page

Faor details see page

For details see page

For details see page

Page 2

of 15

Page 18

This Contract contains the following seclions

Agenda Iltem 5

3ta’7

10

11

15

12t0 14
16



Agenda Iltem 5

EWGS Terms & Conditions
Intreductory Statement
This contract defines the work, grant aid and permissions that have been agreed by Forestry Commission England and the Applicant as part of the English
Woadland Grant Scheme

1. Parties o this Conbract
This contract is made between the Forestry Commissioners (in all parts of this contract calied "us” or "we"} and the person or parsons listed in the contract {in
ali pants of the contract called "you™ or "the applicant”)

2. Signing this contract
By signing this conlract you agree fo be bound by these condiions We also agree to be bound by the conditions

3. Permission for Felling Areas

Where you have proposed felling trees as par of the contract, the Foresiry Commission has considered the felling proposals as a Felling Licence Application
By signing this contract, you agree to carry out any restocking which the Forestry Commission may specily in the contract as a condition of the Felling Licence
The Feiling Licence will become active when you approve the conlract on-line or receive a paper copy approved and signed by the Forestry Commission on
behalf of the Forestry Commissioners.

if the Felling Licence relates to trees that are covered by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) and the existence of the TPO was not declared by
you, then the Felling Licence will not cover the felling of these trees and you may commit an offence by felling them.

4. Information
Any general information thal you need lo give the Forestry Commissioners under this Contract can be given either in writing {and be delivered or sent by post).
of by electronic communication to the Forestry Commission at the regionai Grants & Regulations offices or National Office Bristol.

if the Forestry Commissioners need to give you general information we witl send it either in writing or by elecronic communication o you. Unless the Forestry
Commissioners have agreed olherwise, they will send it o your address{es) setoutin this contract, or to the first of the Appiicants named in this contraci al the
address given for thatperson

5. Notice
Any formal notice that you need to give to the Forestry Commissioners under this Contract must be given in writing (and be delivered or sent by post, or via
electronic means } to the Forestry Commission atthe regional Grants & Regulalions offices or National Office Bristol.

If the Forestry Commissioners need to give you formal notice, they will send it in wriling lo you. Unless the Forestry Commis sioners have agreed otherwise, they
will send itto your address{es) or via electronic means as setout in this Contract, or 1o the first of the Applicants named in the Contract at the address given for
that person.

6. Entire Agreement

tis accepled byus and by you thal no statement or representation of any natura made prior to the Approval Date, as defined in paragraph 12, will form a term
or condition of this contract unless set oul in wniting in this contract.

By signing this contract, you agree to abide by the conditions and undertakings required to comply with the Rurat Development Programme for England, as
approved by the European Commission or any EC legistation, in padicutar Council Regulation 1698/2005.

General conditions and other permissions

7. Resticlions on the land

You musttell us if there are any legal or other restrictions affecting the land, which could preventyou from completing the work or maintaining the work. ltis
your rasponsibility to find out whether any such restrictions exst and to obiain any necessary approvals or consenls.

if you do nottell us about anyrestriction that may affect the work proposals then we may terminate the conlract, pay no further granis and may reclaim grants
paid for work already carried out.

8. Funding from other sources

You musttell us if any other public body (including the Heritage Lottery Fund and the European Unien) has agreed (o fund the work or maintenance or if you are
claiming funding from any such body for other work on the land covered by this contract. All grant applications and claims will be "Cross Checked" against
other publicly funded grant payments. Where incompatibie payments are identified on an area of land, the grant payment or area may be reduced to prevent
incompatibie payments being made to you. Ifthis happens we will contact you to explain the reasons for any reduction.

9. Historic and Archaeological sites
The work you do mustnot damage or destroy sites identified in the contract as being of historic or archaeological importance. This contract only provides
permission lo carry out the operations specified in the Plan on sites of historic or archaeological importance.

There is additional protection for Scheduled Ancient Monuments. If English Heritage have identified the need for Scheduled Monument Consent for certain
operations in the contract, or you wish to carry out ather operations not specified in the contract, you must secure consent from English Heritage before starling
any wark,

10. Sites of Special Scientific Interest, Nationai Nature Reserves, Special Protection Areas, Special Areas of Consenvation
You mustonly carry out operations on these siles that we have agreed in the plan. If you want to carry out other operations thatare notagreed in the plan then
you must get the necessary permission from Natural England.

11, Public access
You must protect all public rights of way over the land. Unless we hawe agreed otherwise, or the land is “access land” within the meaning of the Countryside

and Rights of Way Act 2000, you need not provide any other public access

Page 3 Oof 15

Page 19



Agenda Iltem 5

EWGS Terms & Conditions

Timescale for the contract

Approval Pered o carry culthe work

The aporoval period is the perod when work can be carned cul I starts when we sign the contrast (the “Approvai Date™) and expires 5 years afler the
ppproval Date In order fo claim grant, you must carry oul our grant-aided work as agreed and submit your claim form to us for that work, logether with a map
of the area by 31st March of the claim year agreed in the Work Details,

The approvel pericd W carry out ree felling work starts whan we sign the conlract (the "Approval Date”} and expires five years afler the Approval Dale

Felling permission is granted for ten years from approval dale where itis partof an FC approved woodiang management plan Woodland cover musthave been
re-estabiished within 10 years of res felling. If you wish lo receive any granis thatare associaled with the felling and restocking approval, you must adhare lo
the approved financial years for gran! payment as setout in the Work Details

For Woodland Management Grant operations are approved for the 5 calendar years in which the grantinstzlments are paid ie. 1sl Januaryle 31st December
each year,

13, "Conkract Periog”
The "Conlract Period” is the period of maintenance that you must carry out to meet the conditions ofthis contract. It starts on the dale each grantis paid or, if
the grantis to be made in several payments, on the date when the first of those payments is made. The "Coniract Period” ends after the following periods, or
on such eariier o later date as we may notify to you following an inspection of review of the work to which the paymenis made under this contract relate.
* Woodland Crestion Grants (for new planting and natural colonis aion) - 10 years from the date a first instalment is paid;
* Additicnal Conlributions to Woodland Creation Grants expressty for Public Access - 30 years from the date a firslinstalmentis paid.
* Farm Woodland Payments
a) Forwork areas awarded 10 annual payments (new woodiand comprising 50% or less by area of broad-leaved trees) - 20 years
b) For work areas awarded 15 annual payments (for creating new woodland comprising mare than 50% by area of broad-leaved tees) - 30 years;
* Woodiand Regensration Grant (for restocking by planting or natural regeneration} in respect of each payment - 10 years from the date the paymentis
made:
* Woodland Improvement Grant
a) Where the confract includes Woodland Improvement Grant payments for public access and the lotal of lhese is less than or equal to £10,000 - 10
Years
h) Where the conkactincludes Woadiand improvement Grant payments for public access and the lotat ofthese exceeds £10,000 butis less than or
equat to £20,000 - 20 Years
¢} Where the contract includes Woodland Improvernent Grant payments for public access and the total of these exceeds £20,000 - 30 Years
d} Al other Woodtand improvement Grant payments - 5 years;
* Woodland Management Grant (five annual instalments) - 5 years from the contract Approval Dale.
" Interim Woodland Creation Grant (both estatlishment and maintenance) - 5 years afler the last payment.

Claiming Grant

14, Woodland Management Grant

For contracts thatinclude Woodland Management Grant, wa take signing this contract as your claim for alt 5 instalments of Woodtand Management Grant. There
will be no need o claim for the grant using a claim form. Each year you mayneed lo declare, by 15th May at the fatest, continued compliance with the Woodland
Management Grant conditions to ensure ongoing payment.

15, Standards of work expecled and mainlenance
All work must be done in accordance with this contract. If essential operations i.e. work vilal for achigving the siated outcomes of the contract, are not

completed in accordance with the Plan then we may withhold grants for other gperations or terminate the contract.

You musicarryout the o;zera:fans 5péciﬁed in the contract and all subsequentmainlenance lo achieve the expected or desired autcomes with due care, skill
and diligence in line with advice given in our current bes! practice guidelines and the UK Forestry Standard published al the time that the work was approved by
us. You must ensure that the work carried outis maintained to the end of the "Contract Perod”

it witl be your responsibliity to carry out any necessary mainlenance 1o ensure that the werk specified in the contractis successful
We will not be held fiable for any advice that may be given to you (other than that given by us) in this respect during the period of the contract.

We will not be liable for the efiects of adverse wealher, fire, pests or acts of God. Htis your res ponsibility lo ulilise suitable siills and resources to complete the
operalions agreed in the confract.

16. Rales of grant fo be paid
Subject to Condilions 22-27 and o your compliance with the remaining conditions, we will pay you grants of the bypes specified in this contract, so long as the
work is done to our reasonable satisfaction. We will work out the payments using the rates quoted in this contract, except:

* In the case of Farm Woodland Paymenls where the rate payable will be that which is current at the time of each payment. On set-aside land the Farm
Woodiand Payment rate witl be reduced by an amountegual to the set-aside payment rate;
* For Farm Woodland Payments, nan-farmers will be capped ata maximum payment of €150 per hectare per year, based on the sterling-suro exchange

rate on the 31st Decernber each year;
* The area over which grant may be paid could be adjusted either up or down to account for more accurale fand measurement such as Rural Land

Register updates.

17. Who will be paid grant
Any granis we decide to pay you will be paid lo you or your agent via BACS. as seloutin the Paying Granis section of this contracl.

18_Area over which we will pay grant
The area over which we will pay grant will be based on the area we measure when we receive your grant claim, provided the claim is on land approved in the
conract and the area does not exceed that approved in the contract.

Page 4 of 15

Page 20



EWGS Terms & Conditions g
18 Date by which you mus! ¢laim grants

You musicarry out the work agreed in the Work Delasis and submit your claim form to us for that work, logether with a map of the area by 31st March of the
claim year agreed in the Work Details, unless we agree a change (o this contract. If you do not submit your claim by this date, no right io payment will arise
under this conlract and we will only pay grant at our absolute discrelion

20. Changes lo the work
You cannot change the work approved in this contract uniess we agree and approve the change wilh you in advance, in wriling or by e-mail Approval of any
requesied changes fo (he approved contractis al our discrefion

21, Inspection
You mustletus, our officers, Rural Payments Agency officers or olher persons authorised by us to enter the land at all reasonable imes during the Contract

Period to check that you are keeping to this contract. Failure lo allow ar obstructing an inspection may resultin refusai to paygran! or reclaim of grants already
paid with interest.

Termination of the Contract
22, Terminating the conlract - general grounds
We mayterminate this confract immediatelyif:

" You do not keap o any Condition of this contract;

" You have not repaid any grant within three months of a written demand;

* Any materiai information you gave us when you made this contractis false. misleading or incomplete;

* Anymaterial information you gave us when you make your claim for grant is false, misleading or incomplete;

* You are declared bankrupt or make a composition or arrangemenis with, or grant 2 rust deed for your creditors, or go inlo liguidation (other than a
members valuntary liquidation).

Before we terminale the conlract or ask you to repay grant, we will give you notice of the reasons for termination of your contract. If we consider that the
situation can be put right, we will give you the opportunity to put the situation right, within the time that we specify.

it will be possible to terminate the contract at other imes by mutual agreement. If you wish 1o terminate the contract during the contract period described in
paragraph 13 but the work you have done wili not achiewve the purpose for which it was grant aided, we may. before we agree to termination, require you to
repay part or all of the grani paid {o you together with interes! at the rate set from time to §me by HM Treasury.

23. Stopping occupying the land
You mustinferm us if you stop occupying the fand, or any part of it o which the coniract applies. This contract may nol be assigned to a subseguent owner
{or anyone else} wilthout our permission.

New occupiers must nolify their interest to fake on the contract within three months of purchase. After that, agreement to 1ake on the contractis at our
discretion and we resene the right to alter the work details and contract conditions with the new occupier.

In the event that the contract conditions are not fulfilied, we will reclaim grant with interest from the grant recipient, irrespective of
whether they occupy the land or not. We recommend oulgoing occupiers set up private agreements to fransfer liabilities during land sale

24 Terminaling the contract if the approved work will have an adwerse effect on the environment
if, following the Approval Dale, we become aware of information or there is a change of circumstances as a result of which it appears lo us thatany work,
which has not baen completad, should no longer be approved for the purposes of this contract because:

" the work is not permitted by, or wouid only be permitied if formaily approved under environmental law; or
* giving a grant lowards lhe carrying ocut of the work would not be consistent with our statutory duties with regard to the envronment,

and we notify you accordingly. then the conlract shall apply, with any necessary adaptation, only to the work compleled at the date of their nolice,

If we ghve you the option of either making changes to the work or maintenance or terminating the contract, we shall nolify you of the changes we are asking
you to make. We will provide you with details of how fulure grant payments would be calcutated if you choose lo make the changes requested. We will tell
you the amount of grant that will be paid to you in respect of works already carried out if you choose to terminate the contract.

If you do not notify us that you either wish o carry out the specified changes or 1o terminate the contract within 28 days of our nofification to you ¢f the
information described in the preceding paragraph, we may lerminate the contract with immediate effect.

In accordance with this Condition, if either you or us terminate the contract, grant will be paid to you in respect of work carried out before the date of
termination but no further payments will be made under this contract,

If the work does not meet the conditions of the contract

25. Withholding grant payment

if you do nol carry out the work or maintenance to the standards and imescale seloutin Conditions 15 and 18, we may withhold payment of grant. Where we
withhold the grant, we will explain our reasons for doing so and give you an opportunity to put it right (where reasonable lo do so} before re-submitiing the
grant claim.

26. Repayment of grant

Where you do not carry out the work or maintenance lo the standards and lime scale set out in Conditions 15 and 19 and cannot or have not put the situation
right, we will require you to repay grant with interest for areas that have not been successful. The interest will be charged from the date the problem was first
identified to the dale the repayment invoice is raised.

If you are asked to repay grant, we may deduct this amount from any grants you are due now or in the future under this or any other agreement or contract
with us

Page 5 of 15

Page 21



Agenda Iltem 5

EWGS Terms & Conditions

27. Repayment of granl on lerminalion
IFthis contractis terminated we will not pay any mora grant to you under this conlract

If the contract is terminated because you stop occupying the land or any partof itfor anyreason and the work is not successful for whatwould have been
the restof the contract period, you will be liable to repay any grant you have received together with interest at the rate set from time to time by HM Treasury.
The interest will be charged from the dale the payable order was issued untl the dale thal we wiile lo seek reclaim unless we agree otherwise,

Ligbilityfor grant repayment remains with the grant recipient untif the end of the contract period, even if they no longer have an interestin the land
28. Withhoiding grant against other RDPE Schemes

If you are required to repay grants under any other grant scheme within the Rural Development Plan for England, part or all of your EWGS gra ntclaim may not
be paid to you but may be used to repay what you owe to the Rural Payments Agency.

Similarly, if you have to repay grant under this contract, it may be collecled via olher grant schemes under the Rural Development Pian for England.

29. Penalties
In addition to the wilhholding or repaym ent of grant under conditions 25 to 28, a penally may be applied in the following circumstances:

* Intentional false declaration during the application or grant claim - will resultin exclusion from support under the EAFRD and any granls paid under the
scheme will be recovered:

* Over-claiming grants by <3% of the correct amount - the grant payment will be reduced by the difference between the amountclaimed and the comect
amount,

* Over-claiming grants by 3-20% of the correct amount - the verified amount of grant due will be reduced by twice the difference between the claim and
the correct amount;

* Over-claiming grants by >20% of the correct area - no grant payment will be made for grants due thatyear under this contract.

You can corect an obvious error in the application or ciaim at any ime after submission The cbvious error must be recognised as such by us and will be
detected from information given in the application or claim form. Cases that meet these criteria will not result in a reduction of payment. Erors discovered after
notification of an inspection or during an inspection will not be treated as cbvious errors.

30. Crass Compliance

Breaches of cross-compliance requirements as sel cutin the Cross Compliance Handbook may resultin a reduction of Farm Woodland Payment and for
Woodiand Management Grant, even if the breach ocours on anather part of the holding. The level of reduclion will depend on the severity, exent and
permanence of the breach as setoutin the cross compliance regulations.

31. Order in which penaliies wiil be applied
Penalties will be applied in the following order, with each successive reduction being based on the amount resulting from the previous reduction:

* Owver-ciaiming land area;
* Non-respectof eligibliity criteria;
* Cross compliance

Grants for Public Access

32.Public Access

[ grants are paid for public access you must, from the date of payment of that grantlet the general public. free of charge, have access to walk between dawn
and cusk over the partofthe land the grant is paid for. This access must be permitied for the following periods, dependanton the type and value of grant paic

{a) Public access Additional Contribution under the Woodland Creation Grant - 30 years,
{b) Woodland improvement Grant for public access:

* Upto and including £10,000 - 10 years;

* Upto and including £20,000 - 20 years.

* Ower £20,000 - 30 years.

Appropriate signage mustbe provided and/or mainlained to ensure that members of the public are aware of this access permission. The public can only be
exciuded in circumstances agreed in the Pian of Operations.

Details of the public access agreed may be published in written or electronic form bythe FC, or anyone we approve lo do so.

General Contract Clauses

33. Compliance with Rural Dewelopment Regulafions

The English Woodiand Grant Scheme is partly funded by European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development (EAFRD) as part of the Rural Development Plan
2007-2013 and is lherefore subject o the associated EU regulations including Cross-Compliance.

The regulations maychange during the life of this contract. If any changes affect you, we wilf contact you and let you know what you need to do. If changes 1o
the reguialions are not acceptable to you. then you have Ihe right to terminate the cantract subject to you informing us within 28 days of the notification. If you
terminale you must meet all your obligations in respect of grant aid received to date, and any felling licence conditions included within the contract.

34 Disputes
Ifwe disagree wilh you about whether or not you have kept to the conlract, or about the standard or extentof the work done, either party may ask for the

matter to be decided byan arbitrator chosen from a panel of arbitralors agreed jointly by you, us and the insfitute of Chartered Foresters. You or we mustgive
nolice of this action to the other party If you and us cannol agree to a suitable person within ane month afler notice, the President of the institute of Chartered
Foresters will appoint the arbitrator. Any other dispule shail be submitled to the courts in accordance with clause 37.

Page © of 15

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 5

EWGS Terms & Conditions

You musttell us within 10 days ofan inciden! if, as a result of an act of war terronsm, an epidemic, a disease affecling woodlands or calastrophic weather
{which could not reasonably have been expecied o take place during the period of the coniract) you are unable to complele or maintain the work seloutin the
contrzct We will then discuss and agree with you certain measures such as

* 2 longer period inwhich fo complete the work
" a reinstatement plan where this is possible,
* acceplance by us of a lower standard of work

We will not seek repayment of grants for wark that was carried out satisfactority but which is subsequently adversely affected by events described above
providing that you have made a reasonable effort to minimise the impact or make good the damage.

Where the evenls described abowe mean that we are unable to paygranis, we reserve the right fo reschedule the years in wiich grants can be claimed.

If the event that storms, fire or disease have a significant impact on the woodland(s ) covered by the Plan, we resene the righ! to review the Plan with you and
to modify or remove operations that are no longer appropriate

36 Disclosure of information and publicity

Defra is the data controller in respect of any personal data that you provide 1o the Rural Payments Agency. Your personal information will be protected in line
with the Data Protection Act 1998, The information will be used mainly lo support the application o which it relates . The informalion may also be used in line
with the Dala Protection Act, for other purposes as explained in scheme guidance and on the Access {o Information pages on the RPAwebsite. If you hawe
anyquestions please conlact the Customer Senice Centre

EC tegisiation (Council Regulation (EC} No. 1290/2005 and Commission Regulalion (EC)No. 258/2008) requires the UK to publish delails of recipients of CAP
subsidy payments on a single websile comtaining:

© trading litle {ie tha name in which the claim is made});
* payments for the year broken down into SPS and related payments, and Rural Dewelopment Programme payments, local town and the first three or four
digits of the recipient’s postcode.

You agree that all information about participation in the English Woodland Granl Scheme and this Contract, inciuding information in your application and grant
claims and any other relevant informalion may be made public

Alistof all the beneficiaries receiving EU grant aid will be published annually. The list will include the name and address of the beneficiary, the operations
supported and the amount of grant received.

Any promotional information you produce mustacknowledge the grant aid received from the Forestry Commission.

Centracts with a total value over £30,000 for all grants except Farm Woodland Payments and Woodland Management Grani musthave plaqueas erected on site.
The plaques will acknowledge the grant aid received from the Forestry Commission via English Woodland Grant Scheme and acknowledge that the EU and
Oefra provide the funding. We will provide the plaques and agree where they must be located.

Contracts with a otal value over £250,000 for al! grants except Farm Woodland Payments and Woodland Management Grant must have a board of minimum
size A2 erected on site. The board mustinclude details of the scheme, acknowledge the grant aid received from the Forestry Commissien via English Woodland

Grant Scheme and acknowledge that the EU and Defra provide the funding. We will agree the design and location of the board before it is produced and
erecled.

37. Governing law

This conlract wili be governed by the Law of England and subject to the jurisdiction of the courts of England.

Page 7 Oof 15

Page 23



Agenda Iltem 5

Property Mame {
Contract Numb Case Reference

GENERAL DETAILS

This scheme contains only a felling licence permission in the form of thinning. Al operations wili be delivered in adherence to those
setoutin the UKFS approved management plan EWGS531347.

Page 11 OF 15

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 5

Property Name

Contract Numbe Case Reference
GRANT DETAILS
Felling

. Thinning i

Cpt/ Total Area Area of  Conditional/ End of Felling 1‘
‘SubCpt ~ (Ha) Work (Ha)  uUnconditional ~~ Approval -
| |
1 1.11 1.11 Uncondmonal 11uunf2023 E

The areas detailed for thmmng in this table are 98% broadlealf 2% conifer. Theywﬂ% be thinned to promote the retention of trees
of best form but will also keep an existing range of nalive tree and shrub species and to maintain a mixof ages within each
. species in the compartment. Where old trees are present these will be given additional space by removing competing trees from
' under their canopy to provide sufficient room to promote a heaithy crown.

| Owerall the thinning should retain 65/70% of a fully stocked canopy.

Cpt/ Total Area Area of Condlt;ona!.r End of Felling

SubCpt = (Ma)  Work{Ha) Uncone B ; i :

2 2.45 2.45 Uncondmonal 1 1!Junf2023

. The areas detailed for thmmng in this table are 98% broadleafl 2% conifer. They will be thinned to promote the retention of trees
; of best form but will also keep an existing range of native tree and shrub species and to maintain a mixof ages within each
| species in the compartmenl. Where old trees are present these will be given additional space by removing competing trees from
. under their canopy to provide sufficient room to promote a healthy crown.,

| Overall the thinning should retain 65/70% of a fully stocked canopy.

e b e i i A

i

’ Cp¥/ Total Area Area of Conditional/ End of Felling
 Sub-Cpt (Ha) Work (Ha)  Unconditional Approval

| 3 2 91 2.91 Uncondmonai 11/dun/2023

S i e

| The areas detailed for Ehmmng in this lable are 100% broadleaf They will be thinned to promote the retention of trees of bestform
but will also keep an existing range of native tree and shrub species and lo mainiain @ mix of ages within each species in the

i comparlmem Where old trees are present these will be given additional space byremoving competing trees from under their

5 canopy to provide sufficient room to promote a healthy crown.

| Overall the thinning should retain 65/70% of a fully stocked canopy. R

b
L.
i
E
|

 Cpt/ Total Area Area of  Conditional/ End of Felling
(SubCpt ~ (Ha)  Work(Ha) unconditional  Aeproval

H 43 4 25 4 25 Uncondmonal 11Munf2023

The areas detaiied for 2hmmng in this !able are 100% broadleaf. They will be !hmned to promote the fetemmn of Erees o! bestform

Page 12 of 15

Page 25



Agenda Iltem 5

Property Mame @i

Contract Number Case Reference

compartment. Where old rees are present these will be given additional space by removing competing trees from under their
. canopy o provide sufficient room fo promote a healthy crown.

.. Overall the thinning should retain 65/70% of a fully stocked canopy.

Cpt/

Area of  Conditionall End of Felling
SubCpt  (Ha)  Work(Ha) Unconditional  Aeeroval |

4h 073 0.73 Uncondmona H!Juni2023

| The areas detailed for lhmnmg in this table are 100% conifer. Theywill be thinned to promote the retention of trees of best form
and 65/70% of a fully stocked canopy.

Cpt/ Total Area Area of  Conditional/ End of Felling
SubCpt  (Ha)  Work(Ha) unconditional  Approval o
63 133 1.33 Uncondztlonai 114Jun/2023

. The areas detailed for thinning in this table are 98% broadleaf 2% conifer. They will be thinned to promote the retention of trees

. of best form but will also keep an exsting range of native tree and shrub species and to maintain a mixof ages within each
species in the compartment. Where old trees are present these will be given additional space by removing competing trees from
' under their canapyto provide sufficient room to promote a healthy crown.

. Overali the thinning should retain 65/70% of a fully stocked canopy.

Cthf Total Area Areaof  Conditional/ End of Felling |
SubCpt (Ha) Work (Ha)  Unconditional Approval o |
: 6b 191 1.91 Uncondmonal 11/Jun/2023 ]

i
i
i
{ SR,
¥
|
i

The areas detailed for thinning in this table are 100% broadleaf. Theywill be thinned to promote the retention of trees of best form
- butwill also keep an existing range of native tree and shrub species and fo maintain a mix of ages within each species in the 5
| compariment. Where old trees are present these will be given additional space by removing competing trees from under their
canopy to provide sufficient room o promote a healthy crown.

' Overali the thinning should retain 85/70% of a fully stocked canopy.

SR PSR— s e s e e s

! Cpt/ Total Area Area of Conditional/ End of Felling
(SubCpt  (Ha)  Work(Ha) Unconditional  Approval o
c 7 1.24 1.24 Unconcililonal 11/Junf2023

The areas detailed for thmnmg in this table are 100% broadleaf. Theywill be thinned to promote the retention of irees of best form
| butwill also keep an enstmg range of native ree ancf shrub specms and to maintain a m!x of ages wﬂhm each species in Ehe

Page 13 Of 15

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 5

Property Name |

Contract Numbe: Case Reference

| canopy to provide sufficient room lo promote a healthy crown.

Overall the thinning should retain 65/70% of a fullystocked canopy.

cpy/ Total Area Areaof  Conditionall End of Felling
| Sub-Cpt (Ha) Work (Ha)  uUnconditional Approval

. 8 1.42 1.42 Unconditional

11Jun/2023

' Cpt/ Total Area Area of  Conditional/ End of Felling
Sub-Cpt  (Ha)  Work(Ha) unconditional  Approval

9 042 042 Unconditional 14/Jun/2023

Page 14 Of 15

Page 27

SN IR T



Agenda Iltem 5

Property Name:

Ref:

- WORK SCHEDULE

Only the first seven years of grants will be shown but totals will be correct.

e e e e e

"Work ltem Desc. SubCpt Parcel Ref ““Payment Total

g ‘w[_m.\...L;_.‘_mw.{:e ‘m‘.‘m_‘mmm,..m(.!:.‘1.:.:5é.(...:i:is?ss.,..;.% S e e
icense 4a,6a,6b,8,

\pplication e L — R . et A S
[Annual Totals i T e e__——

Page 15 of 15

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 5

2670

3985
k

o

3

.d,.mU.

A byt
=077

o g

{ {
i {
[ 5095669194

4a
%

/Meigaie Conages

iy i

3960

FETY

Page 29

50856668

I RN IR M ot
O 0 ap & 124 160

Scale
1:5,000
on A3 paper

& Crowm copynghi snd detabase nighits 2013
QUrdnance Survey 100021242




Agenda Iltem 5

i ¥ Property Name §§
o Cammwsg@n Agreement Numbe E

Case Reference

 Fore
Engla

-

Licence To Fell Growing Trees

SSR——— e e e ¢ S

1. This Licence gives you permission. under section 10 of the Forestry Act 1967 (as amended). to fell only the trees specified for felling
and shown on the maps in the agreement document bearing the same case reference as this licence. Trees specified for
feling in the agreement document are detailed under the heading Feling.

2. In England, a Feling Licence will not cover the felling of trees to which a Tree Preservation Order applies or which are in a
Conservation Area if you have not declared the exstence of the Order or Area in the application.

3. This licence is valid until 11/Jun/2023

4. Tree leling marked as Unconditional in the agreement bearing the same case reference as this licence is unconditionally approved
by this licence.

5. Tree feffing marked as Conditional in the agreement document bearing the same case reference as this licence will require restocking
in accordance with the schedule below.

6. You must tell others invalved with the felling about the detalls in this licence by giving or showing them a copy of this licence along
| with the felling section and map from the agreement document. If you sell the land you must also lell the new owner about this icence.

| 7.1 a Tree Preservation Order is placed on these tees alter this licence is issued you must get the consent of the Local Authority before
ieling the ees

i
i
|
i
!
!
i

Signed by Tracy Beattie on 04/DEC2013 o T 3

SE——— oy

Schedule
1. The land on which the (elling takes place or other land specified in the agreement documeni must be restocked in accordance with the
rules and practice of good forestry using:
(a) The planting and regeneration operations; and )
{b} The species of iree specified for the area of land in the Felling section of the agreement ;

i
!

2. Condition | above wil be caried out by the end of the first full planting season afler lelling or such other time as specified in the
agreement document,

| 3. For a period of 10 years after planting;

{a} The rees will be adequately protecied and weeded, and

{b) The losses will be replaced to provide a stocking of no less than the minimum required by or otherwise specilied in the agreemen
docunient

* The nermal planting season runs from autumn lo spring the following year

|
|

THIS IS YOUR
FELLING LICECE

Page 30



Rasma Sultana

BRI &

Legal Officer

Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services

Bromsgrove District Council Redditch Borough Council
Parkside Town Hall

Market Street Walter Stranz Square
Bromsgrove Redditch

Worcestershire Worcestershire

B61 8DA B98 8AH

Tel: 01527 881745 Tel: 01527 881745

Email:r.sultana@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk Email:r.sultana@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Web: www.bromsgrove.gov.uk Web: www.redditch.whub.org.uk

PLEASE NOTE: MY WORKING DAYS ARE TUESDAY - FRIDAY

From: Mike B .
Sent: 01 AugustT? 09 13
To: Raqma Sultana

cei e
Sub]ect Bromsgrove Dlstrlct Councn Tree Preservation Order ( No 7 ) 2017

Dear Mrs Sultana

: “=iyhas given me a copy of your letter and Notice of Making a Tree Preservation Order for the trees on
land adjoining Harris Brush Works. The areas on the map attached to your letter, which are owned by @i}
are W1, W2 and W3. | am the Forestry Consultant foe.": s::zand he has asked that | contact you to explam
what our proposals for these woodlands are. The woodlands have only recently been purchased by v avipand
I have only had one brief visit to the property. Following my visit | have made the following suggestmns to-

‘ wiyregarding the future management of the woodlands.

App!y to the Forestry Commission for a Woodland Planning Grant. This helps with the cost of drawing up a 20 year
Woodland Management Plan which wilt include all the proposed work programmes in the woodland during that
period. As the trees within the wood are relatively young, one of the main operations will be silvicultural thinning,
which is urgently required. All thinning operations have to be approved by the Forestry Commission and a Felling
Licence will be issued. As well as this the plan will include all other aspect of managing the wood as guided by the
United Kingdom Woodland Assurance Scheme (UKWAS) Within the plan there is a section regarding stake holders
and obviously you will be a included in this. This means that you will receive a copy of the draft plan which will give
you the opportunity to make any comments, before it is approved by the Forestry Commission. Other stakeholders
will include the relevant Parish Council and neighbours. This is a very robust system and one that | would
recommend as it will ensure positive management of the woodland in the future and | feel that this will be of great
benefit to the woodland, rather than a blanket TPO,

If you require any further information then please do not hesitate to contact me. | will send you a hard copy of this
e-mail.

Yours sincerely

Mike

Mike Box
Director

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Aperarz sy S

Crown Land

2.4 A TPO may only be made for trees on Crown land™® with the consent of the appropriate
authority.ﬂ In most cases the 'appropriate authority’ will be either the Government
department managing the land or the Crown Estate (see Annex 1). Section 300 of the Act
makes special provision for the making of TPOs on Crown land in anticipation of that land
being transferred to a private interest, although again the prior consent of the appropriate
authority is required. A TPO made under section 300 takes effect provisionally as soon as
the land ceases to be Crown land, but must then be confirmed by the LPA in the normal
way (for guidance on confirming TPOs see Chapter 3).

2.5 Before requesting consent to make a TPO, LPAs are advised to make telephone
enquiries to identify the person or office responsible for managing the Crown land in
question. Government departments have no objection in principle to the making of TPOs
on Crown land, and their consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Any TPO made with
the necessary consent applies only to those who hold a private interest in the land and
does not bind the Crown. Nevertheless, Government departments will normally consult the
LPA before carrying out any work which would otherwise require consent, and take into
consideration any comments the LPA wish to make 12

2.6 Crown immunity from the planning system will be removed when a suitable legislative
opportunity arises. This will include removing the Crown's present immunity from TPO
controls. Provision will be made, however, to ensure that Forest Enterprise, the operating
arm of the Forestry Commission, are treated in the same way as private landowners who
manage their woodlands in accordance with an approved plan of operations, and that
Crown bodies continue to be able to meet their statutory obligations.

2.7 Although crown immunity was removed from health authorities in April 1991,%2 immunity
may in fact continue to apply in relation to land which is vested in the Secretary of State for
Health.2 NHS Trusts do not themselves have any crown immunity but, again, where the
freehold interest in the land is held by the Secretary of State, crown immunity may apply.
Before making a TPO on NHS land, therefore, LPAs are advised to consult the appropriate
health authority and seek their consent where necessary. Health authorities will not
unreasonably withhold consent, nor seek to defer consent pending disposal of the land.

The Forestry Commission's 'Interest’ in Land

2.8 There are limitations to the making of TPOs on land in which the Forestry Commission
have an 'interest'. The Act states that the Forestry Commission have an 'interest’ in land if,
in respect of it:

(1) there is an existing forestry dedication covenant in force, or

(2) they have made a grant or loan under section 1 of the Forestry Act 197912

If (1) or (2) applies the Forestry Commission must give their consent before a TPO may be
made.

Page 33



Agenda Iltem 5

2.9 The main grants currently available from the Forestry Commission for the planting,
restocking or management of woodlands are under the Woodland Grant Scheme. In
running their schemes the Forestry Commission have proper regard for environmental and
amenity considerations, and proposals are assessed by reference to the UK Forestry
Standard, incorporating Forest Guidelines, Forest Practice Guides and other standards of
good forestry practice.

2.10 The LPA and the Forestry Commission should, where appropriate, liaise closely. If the
Forestry Commission wish to accept an area of land into the Woodland Grant Scheme and
that land is already the subject of a TPO, they will consult the LPA. If that land is
subsequently accepted into the Scheme any felling in accordance with an approved plan of
operations or working plan would override the usual requirement to obtain the LPA's
consent under the TPO 2

2.11 For their part, LPAs must consult the Forestry Commission (see Annex 1) before
making a TPO on land in which the Commission have an 'interest’, as defined in paragraph
2.8 above. If the LPA identify trees which they would have made subject to a TPO but for
the Forestry Commission's 'interest' in the land, they may wish to consider asking the
Commission to let them know when that ‘interest' in the land is likely to cease.

Local Authority Land

2.12 LPAs may make TPOs in respect of their own trees or trees under their control.
Sometimes they acquire land which is already the subject of a TPO. If the LPA (ie any
department of the Council as a whole and not just their planning department) propose to
cut down or carry out work on protected trees, they may grant themselves consent (for
more details see paragraphs 6.76-6.78)1” In the Secretary of State's view it would very
rarely be appropriate for one LPA to make a TPO for trees on land owned by another LPA
in their area. Where such a TPO exists the latter would generally have to make an
application to the former before cutting down or carrying out work on the trees.

7 See Bullock v Secretary of State for the Environment (1980) 40 P&CR 246, where recently coppiced trees
were held to be 'trees' under the Act: 'Bushes and scrub nobody | suppose would call 'trees’, nor indeed
shrubs, but it seems to me that anything which ordinarily one would call a tree is a 'tree’ within ... the Act.’
(Phillips J.)

8 A view accepted by the Court of Appeal in Evans v Waverley BC [1995] 3 PLR 80.

9 See section 97 of the Environment Act 1995 and the Hedgerows Regulations 1997 (S| 1997, No 1160). See
also the Department's Guide, The Hedgerows Regulations 1997: A Guide to the Law and Good Practice.

10 'Crown land' is defined in section 293 of the Act. Church land is not Crown land.

11 See section 296(2)(a) of the Act.

12 See Part | of the memorandum to DOE Circular 18/84, paragraph 1012,

13 Under section 60 of the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990.

14 On 1 April 1996, for example (under the Health Authorities Act 1995), regional health authority land was
vested in the Secretary of State.

15 See section 200(2) of the Act.

16 See section 200(3) of the Act.

17 See regulation 17 of the 1999 Regulations, which amends the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992 (SI 1992, No 1492), bringing to an end the requirement for LPAs to apply to the Secretary
of State for consent.

Page 34



»med:x (6) Agenda ltem 5

Gavin Bo!es

A
From: T R R R g
Sent: 13 November 2017 15:05
To: Gavin Boyes
Subject: RE: stoke prior woodlands

Dear Gavin

| write with reference to your below enguiry,

There is an approved management plan on the property with associated thinning permission due to expire on 11*
June 2023,

Whilst FC, Forest Services has an interest in the property | have no objection to a TPO being placed on the
woodlands.

| see the TPO as no constraint going forwards on both any current agreed Forest Services UKFS approved plan or
felling licence or any fully consulted future application for tree works, which demonstrates good sustainable

woodland management.

Hope this clarifies our position.

Regards iy

#) | Woodland Officer | North West and West Midlands Area | Forestry Commission England

Forestry Commission | County Hall | Spetchley Road | Worcester | WR5 2NP

wayne.barnes@forestry.gsi.gov.uk

Protecting and expanding England’s forests and woodlands and increasing their value to society and the environment

Revitalise our woodlands.,
http:/fwww forestry.gov.uk/m akinqwoodlandswo‘

new resources available online here relating to the Making Woodlands Work campaign.

From: Gavin Boyes [mailto:Gavin.Boyes@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk]
Sent: 09 November 2017 09:29

To: Barnes, Wayne

Subject: FW: stoke prior woodlands

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

Appenclix (7)

Bromsgrove District Council

Ref. Tree Preservation order(no 7)2017
On land adjoining Harris Business Park & Saxon Park

Dear Mrs Sultana,
I'am in the process of purchasing plots W4 &W5 on

the enclosed plan.

I'have no intention of removing trees but wish to manage the area in
accordance with Woodland Management Scheme practices ie. Clearing
scrub that is blocking rides between now mature trees & coppicing where
necessary. If your tree preservation order prevents this I would most
strongly object to this order being made permanent.

There is no public access through the area W4 &W5. A public footpath
runs along the northern boundary of W4 onto land we already own.
Therefore the woodland in question is not a public amenity as such,

Yours faithfuily,

Page 37



- s,

TILVEOONS FAMing Gomupin
LHZ SR Veuqagop s auidog s G

granfereinun i

RUNOT 31348)0Y A4
BA0iDswoay

BRAOTIIPREAVER

Agenda Item 5

ARNDR T Pl
el %

wovjameg REjNGT pale BupesyDig

Spaoad | Tty

damens e er spodsing

]
wienen  wing e eig

.
SATEDERONE 'GVOY AUnHNYY ! v .
S S9EMAnE NoXvE = )
i 3

NG
BIHOM HENE Ennng V
SNTNIOFY Qv 1%
oty '

250740 -

VRCHO NOLLAVLE B menyy .
ACRiSIT HAOHSIWOHE s~ Y
ol - a —r s
L - 473 == ==
. oy ™ ) T

ety 4t e e 7 e = s 5

,.,,,
=

@ . . ..\\ \' EI\
et
A

iy

Page 38




Appenciy (3) Agenda ltem 5

Redditch Borough Council L Bromsgrove
Crossgate Depot, tel: (01527) 881188 . .
Crossgate Road, fax: (01527) 534001 District Council
Park Farm, '

Redditch BOR 7SN www Bromsgrove.gov.uk

Please contact: Gavin Boyes
Extn: 3094
gavin.boyes@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

17" November 2017
Dear.: -

Re: Tree Preservation Order (7) 2017 on Land adjoining Harris Brush Works and Saxon
Business Park.

Firstly my apologies for the delay in sending this response to the concerns you highlighted
in your letter dated 25" July 2017. | appreciate your concerns and agree that woodlands
ideally need proactive management to ensure that the quality and longevity of the
woodland is maintained and assured. Therefore | would look favourably on a Woodland
Management Plan being developed for woodland blocks W4 & W5 of this order which you
have highlighted are within your ownership. We would wish to work closely with any owner
of protected woodlands to achieve such an aim and would therefore not anticipate the tree
preservation order on the site unduly preventing this although the Council consent would
need to be gained before any work can be undertaken on the sites. We would also look to
work closely with the Forestry Commission in supporting a level of work that they feel is
required in the best interest of the woodlands management should you approach them for
consent to do so.

I fully agree that there is no public access to the woodland blocks W4 & W5 but both
woodland blocks are highly visible from the Hanbury Road. Therefore they offer a high
degree of visual amenity value to passers-by using this road as well as those using the
public footpath to the Northern boundary of block W4, Therefore they | feel they are
worthy of being included within this order.

I hope this has allayed your concerns regarding the issues you raised regarding the tree
preservation order being raised.

Yours sincerely

Gavin Boyes
Senior Tree Officer

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (No.11) 2017
Trees on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

Relevant Portfolio Holders P J Whittaker (Environmental Services and
Leisure)

Portfolio Holder Consulted No

Relevant Head of Service Head of Environmental Services

Ward(s) Affected Linthurst

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted | No

Non-Key Decision

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider the confirmation of Tree
Preservation Order (No.11) 2017 relating to trees and woodland on land
adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Itis recommended that Tree Preservation Order (No.11) 2017 relating
to trees and woodland on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown,
Blackwell (‘the Site’) is confirmed with modifications as shown on the
plan and schedule attached at Appendix 2.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are provisions for compensation in specified circumstances, if
further to confirmation of the order, consent to carry out works on trees
is refused or granted subject to conditions. There are also provisions
for a statutory challenge against the Order if the order is deemed to be
made or confirmed unlawfully. The landowners have indicated, in their
letters attached at Appendix 3, that there is a likelihood of statutory
challenge.

Legal Implications

3.3 The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)
Regulations 2012 cover this procedure. The power to make a TPO is
found at section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Page 41



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

Section 198 of the TCPA 1990 provides (emphasis added):

“(1) If it appears to a local planning authority that it is expedient in the
interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees
or woodlands in their area, they may for that purpose make an
order with respect to such trees, groups of trees or woodlands as may
be specified in the order.

(2) An order under subsection (1) is in this Act referred to as a “tree
preservation order”.

Regulation 7 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)
(England) Regulations 2012 provides (emphasis added):

“7.—(1) The authority shall not confirm an order which they have
made unless they have first considered objections and
representations duly made in respect of it and not withdrawn.

(2) An authority may confirm an order with or without modifications.

(3) Where an order is confirmed it shall be endorsed to that effect and
the endorsement shall also indicate—

(a) that the order was confirmed with modifications or without
modifications, as the case may be; and

(b) the date on which it was confirmed.

(4) Where an order is confirmed with modifications, the modifications
shall be indicated in the order by distinctive type or other means.

(5) A modification under paragraph (2) may not add to the Schedule to
the order (and the map) references to a tree to which the order did not
previously apply.”

3.4 Assetoutin 3.3 above, the power to make a TPO is found in section
198 of the TCPA 1990. A TPO may be made where it is appears that such an
order is ‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the
preservation of trees or woodlands’. The question is therefore: is it expedient
in the interests of amenity to confirm this order? As also noted at 3.3 above it
Is possible for this committee to confirm this order without modification,
confirm the order with modification or not to confirm the order.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides guidance on what
‘amenity’ and ‘expedient’ mean in practice and is attached at Appendix 7.
Members are invited to consider this guidance carefully.

Page 42



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

Service / Operational Implications

Background

3.4 TPO 11 of 2017 consists of a woodland area, 6 groups and 19
individual trees as shown in the schedule to the order (Appendices 1
and 2). A previous tree protection order (TPO 13 of 2016 — which | will
refer to as the ‘2016 TPO’) was made on this site on 3" August 2016
and confirmed by this committee on 9" January 2017. The 2016 TPO,
which is attached at Appendix 10, covered a wider area and was made
because of the risk of trees within the TPO being felled. The risks were
assessed on the basis of reports from people in the area, actual felling
of trees, site visits and a desktop assessment of the landowners.

3.5 The 2016 TPO was challenged in the High Court by the landowners,
under section 288 TCPA 1990. The 2016 TPO was quashed by
consent order, meaning officers, using their delegated powers, agreed
that the TPO should be quashed before the courts had a chance to hear
the matter. The order was quashed for the reasons stated in the
consent order (see Appendix 11) and explained further below:

(a) The extent of “Woodland” designation cover within BDC TPO (13)
2016 was found to be too extensive due to the tree volume in some
sections of the site being lighter in density than first thought.

(b) Also although it is the Council’s usual practice for the Development
Control Manager to lead the site visit (albeit with the tree officer
present), on this occasion the tree officer, who was promoting the
TPO was the sole officer in attendance at the site visit before the
committee meeting on 9 January 2017. It was therefore accepted by
the Council that the attendance of the site visit by the tree officer
without the Development Control Manager, as is the usual practice
of the Council, was sufficient in the circumstances of this case to
give the impression of procedural unfairness.

3.6 Officers are still of the view that trees should be protected on the site
and TPO 11 of 2017, the current order, was made on 4™ of July 2017.
Members are asked to confirm the order with modifications, having
considered the officer's assessment of the statutory test, PPG extract,
the objections and the letters of support.

Amenity (First Statutory Test)

Page 43



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

3.7 The area of Blackwell contains a high volume of mixed species and
varied age class trees that add greatly to the overall character of the
area. The trees within this site contribute to that character of the area in
that they are seen from a number of local properties, and public vantage
points off Foxes Close, Linthurst Newtown and Public Foot Path / Right
of Way to the north of the site. Being visible from these locations, they
therefore contribute to the amenity of the area.

3.8 Apart from the visual amenity, the trees offer a high level of habitat and
biodiversity value to the area as they include a woodland and small
group of orchard trees and have great present and future potential
amenity to residents and visitors (both present and future) of the site.
The trees are also valuable in their own right as can be seen on the site
visit and in the TEMPO Tree Evaluation attached at Appendix 13.

3.9 The PPG states that:

“The woodland category’s purpose is to safeguard a woodland as
a whole. So it follows that, while some trees may lack individual
merit, all trees within a woodland that merits protection are
protected and made subject to the same provisions and
exemptions. In addition, trees and saplings which grow naturally
or are planted within the woodland area after the Order is made
are also protected by the Order.” (Tree Protection Orders,
paragraph 028)

Woodland is defined by the Forestry Commission and the UK
Government in the UK Forestry Standard and national Forestry Statistics
(2016) as the following:

land under stands of trees with a canopy cover of at least 20%,
including integral open space. There is no minimum height for trees to
form a woodland at maturity, so the definition includes woodland scrub’

The woodland area included within the order clearly has a density of trees
that provide well above the 20% level of canopy cover required
therefore the use of this designation is felt to be appropriate on this site.
The woodland area chosen for the current TPO (11 of 2017) is relevant
to the nature and density of valuable tree stock on the site.

Expediency (Second statutory test)

Page 44



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

3.10 Expediency relates, as shown in the PPG extract in Appendix 7, to the
risk of trees being felled, pruned, or damaged in ways that would have a
significant impact on the amenity of the area. Protection of trees on this site
started in July/August 2016. As stated the 2016 TPO was instigated as a
result of reports from residents in the area about cutting down of trees.
Officers researched the landowners and the site, and concluded that a
provisional tree preservation order was justified. Visits to the site following the
provisional order showed that trees had been felled on site (see for example
the photographs taken in August 2016 which appear to show freshly cut trees
- Appendix 12) and members were asked to confirm the 2016 TPO, which
they did.

3.11 The current order is a continuation of the process started in 2016 to
protect the trees on this site and nothing has happened to change the officers’
view of the risk of the loss of the trees. Officers are of the view confirmation of
the order, subject to the modifications requested and, in light of the statutory
test and national guidance, is justified.

Modifications

3.12 The modifications are made to avoid the risk of non-compliance with the
consent order attached at Appendix 11. The consent order was made on the
basis that the tree preservation order following the 2016 TPO would be no
more restrictive than the plan and schedule attached to the order. Provisional
TPO 11 (2017) is less in extent that the plan attached to the consent order but
contains a group of trees (formerly labelled G2) which was not on the plan
attached to the consent order. Officers were initially of the view that this
addition did not breach the terms of the consent order but, to avoid the risk of
breach of the consent, ask members to agree to the removal of trees at the
confirmation stage.

3.13 Other modifications have also been made to clarify the plan and
schedule.

4.0 Representations Received (Objections)

4.1 The following objections/representations have been received in respect
of the Bromsgrove District Council TPO (11) 2017 see appendix (3).

4.2 Objections and representations on behalf of Access Homes Limited, the
owners of the site, during this process:

(a) Letter from Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors dated 6™ July 2017.

Page 45



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

(b) Letter from Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors dated 4™ August
2017.

(c) Letter from Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors dated 2" November
2017 containing a draft letter before action.

(d) Letter from Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors dated 6™ November
2017.

(e) Letter before action from Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors dated
16" November 2017.

() Report objection from Barton Hyett Associates dated 28" July 2017.

4.3  An e-mail objection dated 4™ August 2017 has been received from Mr
Fell, the occupier of 73 Linhurst. See appendix (4)

4.4  The letters from Harrison Clark Rickerbys address a number of legal
points which will be summarised, along with the officers’ responses
below. My comments in relation to the substantive tree-related points
raised in the objection from Barton Hyett Associates and Mr M Fell are
as follows:

(a) The large proportion of trees within the site are visible from a number of
public vantage points around the site including Linthurst Road, Foxes
Close and Public Foot Path to the North of the site (see the map
attached at Appendix 6 highlighting the location of the public footpath to
the North of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Appendix 9 photographs of site
and Appendix (8) showing the locations from which the photographs
were taken). They are also visible from a number of local properties and
gardens. Therefore, | feel that the trees do offer an acceptable level of
public visual amenity value and it is appropriate and in the interest of
the amenity of the area to make the order.

(b)  Due to the level of visibility both from public vantage points and local
properties, | feel that the loss of any currently protected trees within the
site would undoubtedly have a detrimental influence on the outlook from
these vantage points and the overall character of the area and therefore
the enjoyment of passers-by and local residents would be affected. As
well as the visual amenity benefits the tree stock within the site
especially the woodland area also offers a high level of habitat value to
the area. If any major volume of tree stock within the site was lost or it
would undoubtedly have a major impact on the amount of wild life that
benefit offered by the overall tree cover and could drive the wild life from
within the site and possibly wider area of adjoining land. The PPG
indicates that these other factors are relevant to an assessment of

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

amenity but they are not alone sufficient to warrant making an order.
The PPG also highlights under the heading “Individual, Collective and
Wider Impact” that an assessment of the particular importance of an
individual tree, group of trees or of woodlands by reference to their
characteristics is advised. One criteria under this heading is ‘future
potential as an amenity’. | consider that the trees would have great
future potential as an amenity to the residents, visitors or users of any
future development on this site.

(c) The large majority of trees within the site are visible from a number of
public vantage points around the site including Linthurst Road, Badger
Way and Public Foot Path to the North of the site (see photographs and
plan and Appendices 6,8 and 9). They are also visible from a number of
local properties and gardens. Therefore the trees do offer an acceptable
level of visual amenity value and it is appropriate to make the order in
the interest of amenity.

(d) It is accepted that the visibility of some trees and certainly trees within
the woodland block is limited. Unsurprisingly, some trees within the
woodland block obscure other trees within the woodland block. The
PPG states:

“The extent to which trees or woodlands can be seen by the
public will inform the authority’s assessment of whether the
impact on the local environment is significant. The trees, or at
least part of them, should be visible from a public place such as a
road or footpath, or accessible by the public’.

It is clear that the guidance does not require that every single tree must
be visible from a public place. The PPG goes on to highlight within the
next paragraph titled Individual, Collective and Wider Impact

“Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order”.

(e) The authority is advised to also assess the particular importance of an
individual tree, of groups of trees or woodlands by reference to its or
their characteristics including, size and form, future potential as an
amenity, rarity, cultural or historic value, contribution to and relationship
with the landscape and contribution to the character or appearance of a
conservation area. Therefore, | feel that even though some trees are not

7
Page 47



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

visible from a public place or individually visible there is justification for
their inclusion within the order in view of their size and form, present
value and future potential as an amenity and contribution to the
landscape and the character of the area.

() The TEMPO assessment chart showing how the trees were graded in
terms of condition, longevity, visibility, expediency and other factors are
attached in appendix 13. The TEMPO assessment was sent to Access
Homes Limited on 22 August 2017 further to an information request.

4.5 Email received from Mr Matt Fell dated 4™ August 2017 as shown
Appendix 4. My comments in relation to the points raised within the
letter are as follows:

(a) | feel that the group designation of G1 within the order is appropriate as
although if evaluated individually arguably some trees might not be of
sufficient quality to warrant TPO protection. Together they form a
valuable cohesive group that is highly prominent to users of Linthurst
Newtown and residents opposite the site therefore offering a high
degree of visual amenity value to the area.

(b) T15 is an appropriate distance from the property and although
there is some minor root plate damage to the local paved area there is
no indication that it might damage the property. There is some squirrel
damage within the crown but there are no obviously over weighted
branches this could be managed by a suitable level of pruning.

(c) T16 & T17 are patrtially visible from vantage points on the Linthurst
Road and are highly visible from the gardens and properties to the
South Eastern side of 73 Linthurst Newtown offering a high degree of
screening and visual amenity value to residents. T17 Willow has
received some crown management pruning to ensure a safe crown
distance is maintained from the local power lines. However, the tree is
of a good age and there is a substantial amount of crown remaining on
what is a perfectly viable tree.

(d) I accept that not all of the trees identified within the new order are
visible from a public place but they merit consideration in view of their
future potential as an amenity, contribution to and relationship with the
landscape and benefit they provide to the character of the area.

4.6 Officers’ (legal and environmental) responses to the legal objections in
Harrison Clark Rickerbys Solicitors are as follows:

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

(a) Service: the service on the wrong company was an error and does not
appear to have prejudiced the landowners in any way since they have
submitted several objections during this process. The landowner was
sent the current order immediately the officers became aware of the
error.

(b) Whether the order is more restrictive than the plan attached to the
Consent Order dated 20™ June 2017 (Appendix 11): This point is dealt
with in paragraph 3.12 of this report and the requested modifications.

(c) Legal fees: The legal fees have now been paid and this issue is not
relevant to committee’s considerations.

(d) Lack of reasons for the current order: This complaint has been
superceded as the officer has sent the landowner a copy of the TEMPO
report and through the November report, the landowner is well aware of
the Council’s reasoning for the provisional order. The Council has
invited comments from the landowner even outside the 28 day statutory
period.

(e) Selection of consultees: Officers consider this point to be without merit
and note that it is not pursued in subsequent correspondence. The
complaint appears to be aimed at the fact that the Council notified
neighbouring occupiers of the TPO. As demonstrated by the extract
below, this is entirely in accordance with the regulations and guidance.

“6.— Procedure after making an order

(1) As soon as practicable after making an order, and before
confirming it, the authority which made it shall—

(a) serve on the persons interested in the land affected by the
order—

(i) a copy of the order; and
(i) a notice containing the particulars specified in paragraph (2);

(b) make a copy of the order available for public inspection, in
accordance with paragraph (3); and

(c) in the case of an order made following service of a notice
under section 211(3) (preservation of trees in conservation
areas), serve on the person who served that notice the
information specified in sub-paragraph (a).

(2) The particulars mentioned in paragraph (1)(a)(ii) are—
(a) the reasons for making the order;

Page 49


https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I11DA0840E44C11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65

Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

(b) a statement that objections or other representations with
respect to any trees, groups of trees or woodlands specified in
the order may be made to the authority in accordance with
regulation 6;

(c) the date, being at least 28 days after the date of the notice, by
which any objection or representation must be received by the
authority; and

(d) a copy of regulation 6.

(3) A copy of the order shall be made available for inspection,
free of charge, at all reasonable hours, at the offices of the
authority by whom the order was made; and where an order is
made on behalf of an authority, it shall be made available for
inspection also at the offices of the authority on whose behalf it
was made.

From the PPG:

Who must the local authority inform?

The ‘persons interested in the land affected by the Order’ are
every owner and occupier of the land on which the protected
trees stand and every other person the authority knows is entitled
to carry out certain works to any of those trees or in relation to the
affected land.

The authority may decide to notify other people, groups,
authorities and organisations (such as parish councils and the
Forestry Commission). It can also consider displaying site
notices.

Paragraph: 032 Reference ID: 36-032-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

(f) Various freedom of information requests and complaints: These have
been dealt with and continue to be dealt with by the Freedom of
Information team. The plan requested in the letter of 2" November
2017 and other letters is considered relevant to the committee’s
considerations and is attached at Appendix 8.

Page 50

10


https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IAAC751C268EE11E1B3B589914968239E
https://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=11&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IAAC751C268EE11E1B3B589914968239E
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/regulation/2/made

Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

(g) Material errors of fact (tree felling): The level of threat to the trees is
summarised in paragraphs 3.4, 3.10 and 3.11 of this report. Also, the
threshold for deciding whether there are risks to the trees is contained
in the PPG at appendix 7 of the report of the report. Although some of
the detail in the last report has been streamlined especially excessive
detail about the 2016 TPO, which has now been quashed, officers
consider that there is sufficient threat for the current TPO to be
confirmed.

(h) Material errors of fact (Identity of landowner and speculations about its
intentions): This has largely been removed from the report as stated
the threat to the trees is summarised in paragraphs 3.4, 3.10 and 3.11
of the report to be considered along with the guidance in the PPG.

(i) Material errors of fact (previous legal challenge): This has been
accurately reported in the report (see paragraph 3.12). Members are
reminded that the 2016 TPO has been quashed by consent and that
they are being asked to consider a new order.

() Visibility from private gardens, TEMPO assessments and Guidance:
The first two of these points are substantive tree-related points rather
than legal or procedural points. The amenity test, including the TEMPO
assessment, have been dealt with in paragraphs 3.7 to 4.5 of this
report. The definition of woodland in contained in the Forestry
Commission’s Forestry Statistics (2017) is contained in Appendix (14) of
this report and does not differ from the guidance contained in paragraph
3.6 of this report or from last month’s report.

(k) Photographs taken on 10™ August 2016 attached to November 2017
update (and appendix 13 of this report): This point appears in Harrison
Clark Rickerbys letter of 16" November 2017 and is, in the officers’
view, without merit. | visited the site, in relation to the 2016 TPO, and
concluded that there was no risk. The part of the site | visited was
immediately area immediately around the driveway entrances to 73
Linthurst Newtown and gated entrance to the adjoining field, where
work was reportedly being under taken to improve the access to 73
Linthurst Newtown. My colleague, Andrew Bucklitch visited the site on
10" August, following further complaints and after the making of the
2016 order and saw and photographed evidence of tree cutting. There
is no ‘mislabelling’ of the photographs.

Officers consider that allegations of bias, deliberate frustration of the process
and failure to advise the committee properly are untrue and unsubstantiated.

11
Page 51



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

Amendments have been made to officer’s report for the purpose of
streamlining the information given to members and condensing it, as much as
possible, to information relevant to the decision to confirm the TPO and
information required by legislation.

5.0 Representations Received (Support)

5.1 We have received 21 correspondence of support for the order from local
residents as summarised in Appendix 5.

5.2 There is clearly a very strong local concern regarding the potential
threat of mismanagement or loss of trees on the site as evidenced by
the letters of support we have received for both the previous and
revised new order.

6.0 conclusions and recommendations

6.1 Having given full consideration to all the points raised in terms of
objection and extensively surveyed and evaluated the tree stock and its
relevance in this setting | feel that it is worthy of TPO protection. |
therefore recommend that the order as shown in Appendix 1 is
confirmed with modification set out in Appendix 2.

7. Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

7.1 The customers have been provided with the relevant notification and the
responses received are attached in the appendices. The customers will
receive notification by post of the decision of the committee.

7.2 Equalities and Diversity implications- None

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

8.1 There are no significant risks associated with the details included in this
report.

9. APPENDICES

Appendix 1—- Copy of Provisional Order
Appendix 2 - Copy of Proposed Modified order and schedule

12
Page 52



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING
COMMITTEE 4" December 2017

Appendix 3 — Copy of Objections to BDC TPO (11) 2017 from Harrison
Clark Rickerbys Solicitors and Barton Hyett Arboricultural
Consultants

Appendix 4 — Copy of Objection from Mr Fell Dated 4™ August 2017

Appendix 5 — Summary of positive representations

Appendix 6 — Plan showing location of Public Footpath

Appendix 7 — Copy of National Planning Policy Guidance: extract on
Tree Preservation Order

Appendix 8 - Plan of vantage points from which photographs were
taken

Appendix 9 — Photographs of trees from local vantage points

Appendix 10 — Copy of TPO 13 (2016)

Appendix 11— Copy of consent order dated 20 June 2017

Appendix 12 — Photographs of trees which had been cut on site taken
on 10 August 2016

Appendix 13 — TEMPO Assessment

Appendix 14 — Forestry Commission Statistics Information.

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Copy of representations summarised in Appendix 5 — please contact
Gavin Boyes or see representations in this link -
http://svmoderngov.bromsgrove.gov.uk:9072/documents/s34582/Appen
dix%206%20-%20Messages%200f%20Support.pdf

11. KEY
TPO - Tree Preservation Order

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Gavin Boyes
Email: gavin.boyes@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Tel: 01527 64252 x 3094

13
Page 53


http://svmoderngov.bromsgrove.gov.uk:9072/documents/s34582/Appendix%206%20-%20Messages%20of%20Support.pdf
http://svmoderngov.bromsgrove.gov.uk:9072/documents/s34582/Appendix%206%20-%20Messages%20of%20Support.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6
APP_ENDIX (1)

Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017

Bromsgrove District Coungil in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Citation
1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017

Interpretation

2.— (1) in this Order “the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council,
(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Couniry Planning Act 1980 and any reference to a numbered
regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation){(England) Regulations 2012.

Effect

3.— (1} Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made,
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation
orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners)
and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall— ,
(a) cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or

{b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,
any tree specified in the Schedule to this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secrstary of State in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in
accordance with those conditions.

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C, being
a free to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 4™ July 2017

Signed on benhalf of Bromsgrove District Council
’,ﬂ;‘{f:wwh
.'!._;’/‘ ;‘i
<CLARE FLANAGAN
Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf

Page 55



No.on Map Description
™ Ash

T2 Ash

T3 Ash

T4 Ash

T5 Ash

T6 Oak

T7 Silver Birch
T8 Silver Birch
T9 Ash

T10 Ash

T11 Sycamore
T2 Ash

T13 Holly

T14 Holly

T15 Sycamore
T16 Yew

T7 Willow

T18 Oak

T19 Apple

First Schedule

Agenda Item 6

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

NGR

399729 - 272428
399703-272484
399661-272519
399658-272523

399649-272540

399698- 272582

399704-272544
399714-272551
399737-272563
399757-272533
399761-272527
399764-272521
399790-272479

399792-272476

399765-272484

399759-272493
399750-272501

399664-272558

399726-272560

Page 56

Situation
Near left boundary
Centre left side of site
Near left boundary
Near left boundary
Near left boundary
Near right boundary
Centre site
Centre site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right boundary of site
Right side of property
Right side of property
Rear of property

Centre of plot rear of
Property

Right side of site



Groups of trees

Agenda Item 6

{within a dotted black line on the map)

No.on Map Description NGR

G1

2 x Horse Chestnut, 399743-272428
1 x Oak,

3 X Lawsons Cypress

Situation

Front boundary with
Linthurst Newtown road

Near left boundary

Centre of site
Right side of site
Near right boundary

Centre of site

1 x Spruce
G2 3 x Ash 399703-272467
G3 2 x Horse Chestnut
3 x Beech
1 x Birch, 6 x Sycamore 399729.272512
G4 1 x Pear, 4 x Apple 399746-272529
G5 3 x Silver Birch 399697-272574
G6 1x Qak, 1x Holly 399686-272549
1x Ash
Trees specified by reference to an area
{(within a broken black line on the map)
No.on Map Description NGR Situation
NONE
Woodlands
(within a continuous black line on the map)
No. on Map Description NGR Situation
W1 Mixed native 399639-272584

Species woodland

Page 57

North-eastern end of
site



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

First Schedule

Trees specified individually

{encircled in black on the map)

Page 59

No. on Map Description NGR Situation

™ Ash 399729 - 272428  Near left boundary

T2 Ash 399703-272484 Centre left side of site

T3 Ash 399681-272519 Near left boundary

T4 Ash 390658-272523 Near feft boundary

5 Ash 399649-272540 Near left boundary

T6 Oak 399698~ 272582 Near right boundary

T7 Silver Birch 399704-272544 Centre site

T8 Silver Birch 399714-272551 Centre site

T9 Ash 399737-272563 Right boundary of site

T10 Ash 399757-272533 Right boundgry of site

™1 Sycamore 390761-272527 Right boundary of site

T‘12 | Ash 399764-272521 Right boundary of site
- T13 Holly 399790-272479 Right boundary of site

T14 Holly 399792-272476 Right boundary of site

T15 Sycamore 399765-272484 Right‘side of property

T16 | Yew 399759-272493 Right side of property

T17 Willow 399750-272501 Rear of property

Ti8 Oak 399664-272558 Centre of plot rear of

Property
T19 Apple 399726-272560 Right side of sife



Agenda Item 6

Groups of Trees

(within a dotted black line on the map)

No.on Map Description NGR Situation

G1 2 x Horse Chestnut, 399743-272428 Front boundary with
1 x Osk, Linthurst Newtown road
3 x Lawsons Cypress
1 x Spruce

G2 2 x Horse Chestnut

3 x Beech
1 x Birch, 6 x Sycamore 399729-272512 Centre of site
G3 1 x Pear, 4 x Apple 309746-272529 Right side of site
G4 3 x Silver Birch 3098697-272574 Near right boundary
G5 1x Oak, 1x Holly 399686-272549 Centre of site
1x Ash

Trees specified by reference to an Area

{within a broken black line on the map)

No. on Map Des@:riotion  NGR Situation

NONE

Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the map)

No.on Map Description NGR Situation
W1 Mixed native 309639-272584 North-eastern end of
Species woodland site

Page 60



Agenda ltem 67 ;

Bromsgrove District Councll o
Projact: Troe Proseravtion Order Drawn: G.B. Engineering and Design Services
(11) 2017 Taown Hall
Walter Stranz Square
Bromsgrove Fand Adjioning 111250 Woroe B0 BAH
® District Council [orawing: 73 Linthurst Road s (120
: 5 - Blackwell
WwWw.Dromsgrave.gov.u @ Crown CTPgtrlght
k . and database rights 2017
www.redditchbe.gov.uk Drawing No: PO000/O Date:  0B/11/2017 Ordnance Survey 100024252
Page 61
~J




This page is intentionally left blank



" Agenda Iltem 6
APPENDIX (3) |

Ar_fSLN | [PUOD | FED] £0.Ur.2Ul [

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION
ON BEHALF OF
- ACCESS HOMES LLP
RELATING TO
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (11) 2017
AT

LAND AT SIDE AND REAR OF:
73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Prepared by: Paul Barton MSc, TechCert (ArborA), MArborA
Reference:  AH_73LN

Barton Hyett Associates e Institute of ,
Arbictivalioral qy Q ¢ Chartered Foresters

S h registered ]
Unit 5E, Deer Park Business Centre, Eckington, Pershore, WR10 3DN Arboricu[turai
Tel: 01386 576161 Rl
Email: enquiries@barton-hyett.co.uk S

Website: www.barton-hyett.co.uk P age 63 PR e——



ACCESS HOMES LLP
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

Agen

AT

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

CONTENTS:

INTRODUCTION
GUIDANCE
GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION

:bLUI\JI—-i

CONCLUSIONS

REVISIONS:

Page No:

Jaric

Date Rev

Description of revision

Initials

280717 §

First issue

PEB

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB)| 25.07.2017

Page 64

da Iltem 6

n Hyet

00 B ™



Agenda Iltem 6

ACCESS HOMES LLP < —Hvett
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL Bal ton I |y6u

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

e T T A e £ T e T e A A T S 3 S A ST A S OIS i s 244

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 A Tree Preservation Order (TPO) has recently been served by Bromsgrove District Council.

1.2 This is the second TPO made on the land within one year; TPO (13) 2016 was previously made
in August 2016 and confirmed in January 2017 but has been quashed by a consent order from

the High Court following an application for Judicial Review by the landowner.

1.3 The title of the new TPO is:

e Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (No 11) 2017, trees adjoining 73

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
1.4 The above address is hereafter referred to as ‘the site’.

1.5 The TPO specifies the following in the schedule:

e Nineteen individual trees (T1 - T19)
e  Six groups of trees (G1 ~ G6)
e One woodland (W1)

1.6 The stated reasons for serving the Order, as contained in the attached regulation 5 notice are as

follows:

“The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in

the interests of amenity”

1.7 The TPO was made on 4th July 2017 and takes provisional effect for six months from this date.
After this time, if the TPO has not been formally confirmed by the Local Planning Authority (LPA)

its provisional effect will lapse and a new Order must be served.

1.8 The deadline for objections to be received by the LPA in relation to this Order is stated as 4th
August 2017.

1.9 | have been instructed to prepare this representation as part of an objection to the TPO by the

Directors of Access Homes LLP.

1.10  The TPO, and this objection, must be considered on its own merits; it does not relate to a
plannning application for development but simply relates to the merits of trees and whether or

not they are of sufficient value to warrant protection.

1.11  The objection is made in accordance with Regulation 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012. It states the reasons for the objection and specifies

the trees, groups of trees or woodlands in question.

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 ' 1

Page 65



da Iltem 6

Barton Hyett

ACCESS HOMES LLP
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

2. GUIDANCE

24 Guidance is provided to Local Planning Authorities by the Department for Communities and
Local Government through the online Planning Practice Guidance suite which replaced previous
guidance contained in the document ‘Tree Preservation Orders: A Guide to the Law and Good
Practice’ commonly referred to as ‘the Blue Book’. This guidance sets out the grounds on
which a TPO might be made. For clarity, the relevant elements of this guidance are reproduced

below and the pertinent elements of the guidance in relation to this objection shown in bold:

2.2 Power to make a TPO:

Local planning authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to them to be
‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or

woodlands in their area’.

When deciding whether an Order is appropriate, authorities are advised to take into
consideration what ‘amenity’ means in practice, what to take into account when
assessing amenity  value, what ‘expedient’ means in practice, what trees can be

protected and how they can be identified.

‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise judgment when deciding whether

it is within their powers to make an Order.

Orders should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a
significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before
authorities make or confirm an Order they should be able to show that protection

would bring a reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future.

When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities are advised to
develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a structured and consistent way, taking

into account the following criteria:

Visibility
The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the authority’s
assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is significant. The trees, or at least

part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or

footpath, or accessible by the public.

Individual, collective and wider impact

Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order. The authority is advised to also

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 2

Page 66



Agenda Iltem 6

ACCESS HOMES LLP » PR R L e
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL 0 Ba ﬁo j " ¢ }. ly CH
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJEGTION

assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees or of woodlands by

reference to its or their characteristics including:

s size and form;

e future potential as an amenity;

e rarity, cultural or historic value;

e contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and

e contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area.
Other factors

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woodlands, authorities may
consider taking into account other factors, such as importance to nature conservation or

response to climate change. These factors alone would not warrant making an Order.

Although some trees or woodlands may merit protection on amenity grounds, it may not be
expedient to make them the subject of an Order. It may be expedient to make an Order if the
authority believes there is a risk of trees being felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would

have a significant impact on the amenity of the area.

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 3

Page 67



ACCESS HOMES LLP
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

GROUNDS FOR OBJECTION

3.

3.1 The grounds for objection are as follows:

a) The TPO cannot be justified on the grounds of preserving public amenity
b) The schedule of trees is incorrectly written.
3.2 This objection relates to the following trees included in the order:

+  T5(Ash)
e T6 (Oak)
e T18(0ak)
»  T19 (Apple)
s G4 (1 x Pear, 4 x Apple)
« G5 (38 x Silver Birch)
¢ G6 (1 x0ak, 1 xHolly, 1 x Ash)
¢ W1 (Mixed species)

Objection relating to public visual amenity

3.3 In the LPA’s reasons for making the TPO it is stated that:

“The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in the
interests of amenity”.

3.4 This reason has been applied to all the trees that are the subject of the TPO. Whilst some of the
trees that are present on the site are visible to the general public, notably those along the
frontage to Linturst Newtown, many are not. It cannot be the case that trees have 'special
amenity value’ if they cannot be seen.

3.5 As noted above, the Planning Policy Guidarice on the making of TPQO's states:

‘The trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as
a road or footpath, or accessible by the public’.

3.6 | have requested a copy of the tree officer's assessment of the trees but have not received a
reply. | understand that the council use an evaluation method called ‘TEMPO’ (Tree Evaluation
Method for Preservation Orders) authored by Julian Forbes-Laird in 2006. The scoring system in
this method is weighted to favour trees that have a high degree of visibility, as follows:

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 - - o

Page 68



Agenda Iltem 6

ACCESS HOMES LLP o Barton Hyett

LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

— s spssassssags A S S S S S Y b S SRS S S

<) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO
Consider realistic petential for future visibility with changed land use

5) Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent large trees Highly suitable

4) Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable

3) Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only Suitable

2) Young, small, or medium/large trees visible only with difficulty Barely suitable

1) Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size Probably unsuitable

3.7 The land covered by the Order adjoins the road Linthurst Newtown on the southeast side. This
is the only road that provides an uninterrupted view of some trees within the site. It is accepted
therefore that the row of trees along the roadside do have visual amenity as they are easily seen.
The view from Foxes Close to the west gives visibility to the tops of some trees in the centre of

the site.

3.8 The mature trees in the internal square shaped area immediately to the rear of the garden (G3 of

the TPO) can be partially viewed, as the top of their crowns are visible over the roofs of adjacent

houses.

4
1
3
2
Figure 1: snapshot of Google aerial photo showing the site in relation to local roads and footpaths. Photos
taken from locations 1, 2 3 and 4 are provided below to show the visibility in to the site. The blue circle
represents the area of the site which cannot be viewed from any nearby public areas.
AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 ' ' ' ' ' 5

Page 69



Agenda Iltem 6

ACCESS HOMES LLP Jarton Hyett
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL B,C] rt?.’ ] y o

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OSJECTION

s csrims: acammnci, AL 8B A AR ST T - o

1 4
= &

Photo 1: from location 1 on the railway bridge. The Photo 2: view from location 2. Hollies T13 & T14 in
tops of G3 are the visible. the foreground amongst overgrown Laurel. G3is
visible beyond the house to the right.

Photo 3: from location 3. Top of T1 visible behind Photo 4: Google streetview image from Foxes
garage. Close. The tops of trees within G3 are visible.

3.9 There are no public rights of way within the fields to the west, north or east of the site, so views

of the trees at the top of the site are extremely restricted.

3.10  Due to the limited viewpoints of the site, the following trees cannot be seen, and therefore have

no public visual amenity:

e T5(Ash)
o T6(0ak)
«  T18(0ak)

= T19 (Apple)

« G5 (3 x Silver Birch)

» G6 (1 xOak, 1xHolly, 1xAsh)
+« W1 (Mixed species)

3.11  In addition to the above, most of the trees within G4 (1 Pear and 4 Apple) cannot be seen; only
the Pear tree at the southern end of the group is possibly visible. The planning guidance states

that “the group category should be used to protect groups of trees where the individual category

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 6

Page 70



Agenda Iltem 6

ACCESS HOMES LLP 0 Barton Hyett

LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

FP— R AT i A TS T e A Fr St

would not be appropriate and the group’s overall impact and quality merits protection”. It is

therefore unreasonable to protect five trees based on the public visibility of just one.

3.12  The guidance notes that accompany TEMPO do make provision for the possibility that changes
in site use can affect the future potential for public visibility, for example where trees that are

currently hidden from view are exposed followig clearance of surrounding land.

3.13  Not only are these trees not currently visible, but the realistic potential for their visibility to
increase is very low as the trees further down the site are protected from removal thereby
providing a natural visual buffer separating the road and houses from the trees at the top (north)

of the site.

Objection relating to incorrect TPO schedule

3.14  The schedule has been incorrectly written as it lists the six ‘groups’ of trees under the heading
‘trees specified by reference to an area’, instead of listing them under ‘groups of trees’. Under

the ‘groups of trees’ heading, the schedule states “none”.

3.15  This error appears to be an administrative mistake. The Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 state in para 3 (4) that “In the case of any discrepancy
between the map contained in, or annexed to, an order and the specification contained in the

Schedule to that order, the map shall prevail”.

3.16  This point of objection is therefore a minor one, as it is still clear from the order which trees are to
be protected. However, in the interests of serving a clear and unambigious order, it would be

preferable if the schedule were amended.

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017 7

Page 71



Agenda Iltem 6

ACCESS HOMES LLP % Barton Hvetl
LAND AT 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL - A
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER OBJECTION

4. CONCLUSIONS

4.1 It is requested that the provisional TPO No 11 (2017) is modified to remove from it T5, T6, T18,
T19, G4, G5, Gb6 and W1 for the reasons listed above, before confirming the order.

4.2 It is also requested that the TPO schedule is amended to place the ‘groups’ of trees in the

correct section.

N 7
V

il
ey

.

Paul Barton, MSc, MArborA

28th July 2017

AH_73LN | TPOob | PEB| 28.07.2017

Page 72



Your reference:

Qur referance: RAQ3.ACCO0014-0001
Direct email: randrews@hcriaw.com
6" July 2017

FAO Tracy Lovejoy

Bromsgrove District Coungll
Legal Services

Agenda Iltem 6

harrison [Slee

 rickerbys

SOLICITORS

5 Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG

Telephone: 01905 612001
Fax: 01905 744899

Parkside .

Market Street, DX: 716260 Worcester 1
Bramsgrove, Direct Line: 01905 744868
Worcestershire PLANNING TEAM

B&1 8DA

BY POST AND EMAIL: t.Ioveioy@b_[omsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Dear Sirs,

Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 dated 4" July 2017
Land Adjoining 73 Linthurst Newton Blackwell

We write on behalf of Access Homes LLP and further to Bromsgrove District Council's decision to
make Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 on 4% July 2017 (‘the TPO").

We also write further to the quashing of Tree Preservation Order (13) 2016 on 20" June 2017
following the High Court of Justice's endorsement of the Consent Order in the matter of Access
Homes LLP vs Bromsgrove District Council (Court Reference CO/867/2017) (“the Consent Order”).

We wish to put Bromsgrove District Council (“the Council’) on notice of a number of concerns our
client has regarding the actions and conduct of the Council in relation to the above matters. These
include:

1. The Council's failure to serve notice of the TPO on all parties with an interest in the land
affected by the TPO, in breach of Regulation 5(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012

2, The TPO being made by the Council in a form which is, in part, more restrictive than the
form of Tree Preservation Order annexed to the Consent Order, and so therefore being in
breach of the Consent Ordér; and

3. The Council’s failure to pay our client's legal fees as set out in the Consent Order within a
reasonable time frame.

As the Council is well aware from the Court proceedings, Access Homes LLP is the registered owner
of the land affected by the TPO. Access Homes LLP has, however, not been served with the TPO.

Blrgeingham L0120 4560039 F 01D A58 7211 83 Caihorpe Road G
helts TAI242 224430 F Q142 518428 Flenbroogh He

st Berainghons B 1iH
3 tennam GLE YD

L

Hroizford LOVA32 349470 F Q1432 349660 Tharpe House 29 B

fhormes Vailey 10118 HO A0 Brook Drive €

Waorceslay [LO1905 6 PR OIP0E 744899 5 Dearsway Worgasie "

Wy Yalley 131909 S82377 £ 01989 5453941 Ovenross Houss Rt Pork Ress-on-Wys HRS 7US Lextel {_} INVESTORS
e as IN PEOPLE

By mppoinh
by PR i

i, o

8 il e ]:bage 4 Mt iy o g Al L




Agenda Item 6

Instead, the Council appears to have served the TPO on the previous owners, Freefield Investments
Limited, who have no legal interest in the land affected by the TPO.

We are also aware that, despite the omission to serve the landowners with copies of the TPO In
accordance with the statutory requirements, the Council has served adjoining landowners with copies
of the TPO,

In the circumstances, we regulire:

1. The Council provides us with copies of the correspondence sent to the adjoining landowners
and any other parties, with a list of all parties served with a copy of the TPO.

2 The Council pays our client’s legal costs in accordance with the Consent Order within the next
two working days.

We also reserve our client's position with regard to the TPO being, in part, more restrictive that the

form of tree preservation order annexed to the Consent Order, in breach of the Consent Order. In

particular we draw your attention to the trees Identified as “G2” on the TPO Schedule and Plan, being
three Ash Trees which were not identified in the document annexed to the Consent Order.

We look forward to receiving the copies of correspondence requested and payment of legal costs by
retum. -

Yours faithfully
Havon Clafle Ritleaty s

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Page 74



Your reference:
Our reference:

Direct emall;

4% August 2017

FAQ Mrs R Sultana
Bromsgrove District Council
l.egal Services

RA03.ACC0014-0001

randrews@hcrlaw.com

Agenda Iltem 6

harrison [dlsli$

rickerbys -

SOLICITORS

& Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG
Telephone: 01905 612001
Fax: 01905 744899

Market Street, .

Bromsgrove, DX: 716280 Worcester 1
Worcestershire Direct Line: 01908 744868
B61 8DA PLANNING TEAM

DELIVERED BY HAND AND EMAIL: r.sultana@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Dear Sirs,

OBJECTION to Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 dated 4% July
2017
Land Adjoining 73 Linthurst Newton Blackwell

We write on behalf of Access Homes LLP to OBJECT to Bromsgrove District Councll Tree
Preservation Order (11) 2017 which was made by Bromsgrove District Council on 4" July 2017 (“the
TPO'). | :

Access Homes LLP are the freshold owners of the Land Adjoining 73 Linthurt Newton Blackwell, to
which the TPO relates (“the Site").

This objection is made on two main grounds:

1. The making of the TPO in its current form does not meet the required legal and planning policy
tests; and

2. The actions of Bromsgrove District Council (“the Council”) over the last twelve months
throughout both the process of assessing the merits of protecting the Site by way of a Tree
Preservation Order, and also dealing with assoclated matters, have contained repeated errors,
inconsistencies, and fundamental legal flaws,

The basis for these objections is set out substantively below,

1. _Objection to the extent and form of the TPO

No substantive justification has been given by the Council for the extent of the protection in the TPO,
nor has an assessment of the trees selected for protection been providad.

Lea rantinies

Birmingham  T.0121 454 0739 F.0121 4557211 53 Colthorpe Road Edgbaston Birmingham B1S 1TH

Cheltenham  T.01242 224422 F 01242 518428 Ellenborough House Wellington Sireet Cheltenham GL30 1YD CH ERS H;‘ﬁ,“
Hereford  T.01432349470 F.01432 349660 Thorpe House 29 Broud Sheel Hersford HR4 PAR CHAMBERS LT
Thames Valley T:0118911 1206 F 01189007874 100 Longwesler Avenue Green Park Reading RG2 AGF e

Worcestar T.01905 612001 F. 01905 744892 5 Deanswoy Worcesier WR1 216 Qe Ghugally
Wye Valley  T.01989 542377 F.01989 545941 Overross House Ross Pork Ross-on-Wye HR® 7US Lexel ¢ ™% nvesTors
e IN PEOPLE

By appoinimentin London
lewyers@herlaw.com www.herlaw.com

Hepea il 0L 84 et of rew

o 3 Quareny WonEe R LS

a1



Agenda Item 6

This failure is a breach of the requirements of Regulation 5(2)(a) of the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012 (‘the Regulations”), which require the “reasons for
making the order” to be served on all parties with a legal interest in the land affected.

Firstly, it is important to note that the Council did not serve notice of the TPO on Access Homes LLP
as freehold owner in breach of Regulation 5(1) of the Regulations. The Councll is well aware from the
Court proceedings relating to the previous tree preservation order for the Site that Access Homes LLP
is the registered owner of the land affected by the TPO, however the Council still failed to serve it.

Secondly, even if the Council had served notice of the TPO on Access Homes LLP, the only
justification given in the notice accompanying the TPO (which Access Homes LLP has now obtained
following a direct request to the Council) was in the form of a generic statement, which simply stated:

“The trees provide special amenity value and the Tree Preservation Order is made in the
interests of amenity”.

The Council's fallure to provide substantive reasons for making the TPO is also, in our view, a fallure
to carry out a lawful consultation. It is settled law that, if a consultation exercise is undertaken, then it
must be carried out properly (see the case of B v North East Devon HA ex p Coughlan). This means
that it must, amongst other things, include sufficlent reasons for particular proposals to allow those
consulted to give inteligent consideration of the same and thus enable an intelligent, and fully-
informed, response.

The Council is under a duty to address relevant arg uments raised during the consultation exercise. It
is not entitled to assume that, because it has complied with the statutory timescales for consultation,
that the consultation exercise is automatically sufficient. This is particularly the case where there is
clear evidence to the contrary, for example our client's persistent requests for further information, as
set out further below.

The failure to provide substantive “reasons’ for making the TPO Is also grounds for reasonable doubt
as to whether the TPO has been made in accordance with the Council's legal powers to make tree
preservation orders as provided by Section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“TCPA
1980"), or whether the making of the TPO is ultra vires.

The legal power for the Council to make the TPO in Section 198(1} of the TCPA 1990 expressly
requires that tree preservation orders may only be made where it appears to the local planning
authority that “it is expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation
of trees or woodlands”.

It would be Irrational, and therefore, unlawful for the Council consider it expedient to protect trees
without the Council having considered in detail the Government’s planning policy guidance in relation
to the making of tree preservation orders.

This guidance is provided by the Planning Practice Guidance (‘PPG"), which makes clear that prior to
making the TPO, the Council should to be able to “show that protection would bring a reasonable
degree of public benefitin the present or future" (PPG para 38-007-20140308).

The PPG also makes clear that in assessing amenity “frees or at least part of them should
normally be visible from a public place such as a road or foolpath, or accessible by the public’
(PPG para 36-008-20140306), and further that “Orders should be used to protect selected frees
and woodlands if their removal would have a significant negative impact on the local
environment and its enjoyment by the public” (PPG para 36-007-20140306).

Page 76



Agenda Item 6

We are aware that the Council's Tree Officers have undertaken numerous visits to the Site over the
last twelve months, and so a reasoned justification for the making and extent of the TPO in
accordance with the PPG should be available and disclosed. We are also aware that the justification
and ‘TEMPO’ scores have been requested by our client’s Arboricultural Consultant on @ number of
occasions, and the Council has falled to provide these repeatedly.

In fact, a large number of attempts have been made by our firm, our client’s Arboricultural
Consultants, and our clients directly to engage with the Council in relation to the appropriate level of
protection of trees on this Site, but the Council has conslstently declined to engage.

Our clients have also made a formal request for the disclosure for information pursuant to the
Environmental [nformation Regulations 2004, which the Council has failed to respond to within the
required statutory timeframes (discussed further below). The result of these repeated errors on the
part of the Council has meant that there has been no way of our clients obtaining the reasoned
assessment of the Council's perceived merits of the TPO in advance of needing to submit this
Objection. This puts our client at a considerable disadvantage, and is in breach of the various legal
requirements set out above and below.

Due to the lack of information provided by the Council, we enclose an assessment of the TPO
prepared on behalf of Access Homes LLP by Barton Hyett Arboricultural Consultants. This sets out
our client's objection to the extent of the TPO on the basis of the failure to meet the requirements of
the PPG guidance in assessing the amenity value of the trees on the Site.

The enclosed document prepared by Barton Hyett should be treated as a formal part of our client's
objection to the extent of the TPO.

2. _Unlawful Actions and Errors of Bromsgrove District Council

As the Council is aware, our client has already incurred considerable inconvenience and expense as
a result of the Council's unlawful actions in relation to the making of tree preservation orders and
other related failings in relation to the Site.

We are aware that Council has also incurred considerable expense due to its actions, which costs will
have been met at public expense.

In particular the Court action which resulted in the original tree preservation order made by the
Council In relation to the Site last year, Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (13)
2016, being quashed by Court Order on 20" June 2017 (“the Court Order”), due to the Council's
unlawful actions in the making of that tree preservation order.

The High Court of Justice also ordered the Council pay from public money our client's legal costs due
to the nature of the Council's errors,

in addition to the errors identified in the Court action, there have been a number of further issues as
regards to the actions and conduct of the Council in connection with the TPO and related matters.

These include:

1. The Council's failure to serve notice of the TPO on all parties with an interest in the land
affected by the TPO, in breach of Regulation 5(1) of the Regulations;

Page 77



Agenda Item 6

2 The Council's failure to provide reasons for the making of the TPO in breach of Regulation
5(2)(a) of the Regulations and potentially Section 198(1) of the TCPA 1990;

3, The TPO being made by the Coungil in a form which is, in part, more restrictive than the
form of Tree Preservation Order annexed to the Gourt Order, and so therefore being in
breach of the Court Order;

4, The Council’s failure to pay our client's legal fees as set out in the Court Order within the
timeframe required by Civil Procedure Rules Part 44.7;

5i The Council's failure to act fairly, consistently, and impartially with regard to the

consultation of persons interested in the tree preservation orders at the Site, and in

particular the illogical selection of consultees, and the inconsistent redaction of names,
addresses, and signatures of consultation responses; and

8. The Council's failure to respond to our client's formal request for the disclosure of
information relating the making of the tree preservation orders at the Site dated 21% June
2017 in breach of Regulation 5(2) and 7{1) of the Environmental Information Regulations

2004,

The above are all clear breaches of the Council's legal obligations under statue and / or Court Order
which have occurred since the High Court quashed the previous free preservation order.

It is unclear whether the errors are sheer incompetence or are a deliberate and unlawful attempt to
frustrate due process In relation to the TPO, but in either case, this letter llustrates a number of clear
failings on the part of the Council which our client will consider challenging in Court.

We hope that, in the circumstances, the Council will sorutinise its reasons for making the TPO in
accordance with the national policy in the PPG, and will by return disclose the Council's formal
assessment of the perceived amenity of the trees proposed to be protected on the Site to our client,
together with a reasoned justification for the making of the TPO.

The failings of the Council in relation to the request for disclosure under the Environmental
information Regulations are being pursued separately, and our client reserves its position with regard
to taking further action in relation to the Council's failings through the Courts.

Yours faithfully

Uaprsan Clarte Rechabsys

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Encl - Barton Hyett objection

Page 78




Agenda Iltem 6

Your reference;

harrison BRI

_ rickerbys

Qur reference: RAD3.ACC0014-0001.RA

Direct email: randrews@hcrlaw,com

SOLICITORS

2 November 2017

BY SPECIAL DELIVERY BY 1PM 5 Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG
FAQ Tracy. Lovejoy Telephone: 01805 612001
LB.eal SSW*GEES_ - Fax: 01005 744899

romsgrove District Counc :
Parkside DX: 7168260 Worcester 1
Market Street, Diract Line: 01905 744868
Bromsgrove, PLANNING TEAM
Worcestershire
B&1 8DA
BY POST AND EMAIL

t lovejoy@bromsgroveandreddiich.qgov.uk

Dear Sirs
LETTER BEFORE ACTION - CONTEMPT OF COURT AND SECTION 288 CHALLENGE

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 11) 2017
TREES ON LAND ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

We are instructed by Access Homes LLP in relation to Bromsgrove District Council's (‘the
Defendant") unlawful actions in reporting to its Planning Committee on the merits of Tree Preservation
Order (No. 11) 2017 ("the TPQ").

The consent order dated 20 June 2017 (“the Order’) Includes a requirement that any replacement
TPO "shall be no more restrictive than the plan and schedule aftached to [the Order] at Schedule 3" .
As such, any new TPQ is required by the Order to be no more restrictive than the TPO quashed as a
result of that Order. However, the proposed new TPQ seeks to include three Ash trees within group
‘G2’ which were not included on the quashed TPO. As such, the new TPOQ includes additional frees
which were previously not protected and Is accordingly ‘more restrictive’ in direct contravention of the
Order.

Breach of a court order is a serious matter and renders the Counail in contempt of court. Any adoption
of the proposed new Order would therefore put the Council at risk of an application by Access Homes
LLP for committa! for contempt of court.

Additionally, the Council has failed to advise the Committee in a way which is impartial, transparent,
fair, or provides adequate (or any proper) reasoning for the recommendation made. The Council is
promoter of the TPO and is also determiner of the TPO and therefore has an enhanced duty to act
judiclously and without prejudice, which it has not.

0739
CHAMBERS g%

N INVES
LexCel {0

Page 79



Agenda Iltem 6

In addition to the potential liability for contempt, should the Council proceed to adopt the TPO on the
basis of the officer's report as written, any decision based upon such a report would be vulnerable to
challenge pursuant to 5.288 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 on the bases set out within
the draft letter below.

What follows is a draft letter before claim in accordance with the pre-action protocol under the Civil
Procedure Rules. Should the Council proceed to make the TPO on Monday 6 November, the letter
will be issued formally and Access Homes will also consider service of an application based on the
Council's contempt of court.

In any event, Access Homes also requests disclosure of the following documents which are
considered to fall well within the Council’s duties under the Environmental Information Regulations
2004 and will in any event become disclosable under the Councils duty of candour should
proceedings be issued:

(a)  All written reports and site notes regarding the TPO and / or Bromsgrove District Council
Tree Preservation Order (No. 12) 2016 — Tree/s on land at side and rear of 73 Linthurst
Newton, Blackwell dated 12th January 2017, and the provisional Tree Preservation Order
relating to the same site served In August 2016, relating to the visits made to site by tree
officers Gavin Boyes and Andy Bucklitch or other officers involved. In particular,
documentation relating to the assessment of the trees at the site as suitable for a tree
preservation order (sometimes referred to as an amenity value assessment). The above
request is for the disclosure of all written reports and site notes which are not annexed to
the Report or the Commitiee Report dated 9th January 2017.

(b)  Any letters and emails sent to and received from the above officers and notes of any
meetings or telephone conversation by or with the above officers in relation to the TPO and
/ or Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (No. 12) 2016 — Tree/s on land at
side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newton, Blackwell dated 12th January 2017, and the
provisional Tree Preservation Order relating to the same site served in August 2016, and in
particular communications to and / or from planning officers, local councillors (District and
Parish), their clerks or staff, and residents. The above request is for the disclosure of all
written reports and site notes which are not annexed to the Report or the Committee Report
dated 9th January 2017.

(c) A plan showing the locations from where all the photographs provided at Appendix 8 of the
Report were taken, and confirmation of who tock each of the photographs in question.

Given the proposed site visit and Planning Committee meeting are due to take place on Monday 6th
November, the Council is required to confirm by no later than noon on Friday 3 November 2017 that
this item will be withdrawn from the Planning Committee agenda for 6 November 2017 and that if the
Councll wishes to proceed to protect the trees on the site, steps will be taken to support any such new
TPO with a legally compliant officer’s report.

Yours faithfully

Harasan Clarke Kicleoly

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Page 80



Agenda Iltem 6

BY SPECIAL DELIVERY BY 1PM 5 Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG
FAQ Tracy Lovejoy Telephone: 01905 612001

Legal Services Fax: 01905 744899

Bromsgrove District Council DX: 716260 Worcester 1

Parkside : Direct Line: 01905 744868

Market Street, PLANNING TEAM

Bromsgrove,

Worcestershire

B61 8DA

BY POST AND EMAIL
t.lovejoy@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Dear Sirs

LETTER BEFORE ACTION — CONTEMPT OF COURT AND SECTION 288 CHALLENGE
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 11) 2017

TREES ON LAND ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

1 THE CLAIMANT

Access Homes LLP, The Exchange, Haslucks Green Road, Shirley, Solihull, West Midlands, BS0
2EL.

2 DEFENDANT'S REFERENCE DETAILS

Defendant's reference: Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017

Defendant's Legal Officer: Tracy Lovejoy

3. DETAILS OF THE CLAIMANT’S LEGAL ADVISERS

Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited, § Deansway, Worcester, WR1 2JG.
Reference: RAD3 ACC14-1

4 DETAILS OF THE MATTER BEING CHALLENGED
The decision taken by Bromsgrove District Council (“the Defendant’) to report to its Planning

Committee on the merits of Tree Preservation Order (No. 11) 2017 ("the TPO") in a way which is not
impartial, transparent, nor fair, nor which provides adequate reasoning for the recommendation made.

Page 81



Agenda Iltem 6

5. DETAILS OF ANY INTERESTED PARTIES

None.

6. THE ISSUES.

The Defendant has published a report to its Planning Committee to consider the confirmation of the
TPO without medification (‘the Report”), however the Report has not been prepared to the standard
required by law.

The Report contains a number of misleading statements, inaccuracies, omissions, irrelevant and
misleading photographs, and fails to provide adequate reasons for the recommendation made.
Further, the Report clearly demonstrates that the applicable law has bsen misinterpreted and
misapplied. , '

These legal errors include:

(a) Inaccurate and misleading statements:

a. Tree Felling: At paragraph 3.6, the Report states that trees had been felled on the site
prior to the making of the provisional Tree Preservation Order in August 2016. This is
factually incorrect: it was primarily scrub clearance on the land and no mature trees
had been felled, as was confirmed by the Defendant's Tree Officer on a site visit.
Trees had been felled within the garden of 73 Linthurst Newtown, however this
property is in separate ownership, and does not form part of the site covered by the
TPO. This statement, together with the similar statement at paragraph 4.3, and the
reference in paragraph 4.6 of the Report to the “level of work that was being
gradually undertaken” is designed to mislead the Planning Committee in relation to
the justification for the TPO and to justify the Tree Officer's perception of a ‘threat’ {o
any trees on the site as discussed below.

b. Identity of landowner: At paragraph 3.6 the Report states that the owner of the site is a
‘property development company who are understood fo specialise In acquisition
of land for then onward sale once outline planning permission has been
granted’. This statement Is made without any evidential foundation and is extremely
misleading. Although the Defendant is an investment company owning real estate, it
primarlly owns let residential properties. It has not applied for planning permission nor
sold sites on for development. The Report also claims that the Defendant is ‘under the
management of the Fell Family’, which is a false statement — the Defendant is a
partnership where 50% is owned by an unrelated party.

¢. Speculation about landowner and its intentions: Although the Planning Practice
Guidance confirms that local planning authorities may consider development pressures

and landowner's intentlons when considering whether it is expedient to make a tree
preservation order, the statements in paragraph 4.3 of the Report that “the nature of
the companies owning the land are understood fo specialise in acquisition of
‘lend for then onward sale once outline planning permission has been granted’
and that “if was reasonable to assume the site would be largely cleared of tree

Page 82



Agenda Iltem 6

stock to accommodate development on the site” are without evidential basis. The
Report also justifies the making of the TPO at paragraph 4.6 by reference to “the
known nature of the companies who own the land', and o this speculation has
clearly played a large part in the Officer's decision-making pracess. The Report fails to
mention the fact that the landowners have cooperated and engaged with the Claimant
throughout, and were prepared to accépt a free preservation order over a number of
trees on the site. These statements and omissions are designed to mislead the
Planning Committee and to taint the Planning Committee’s perception of landowner.

d. Previous legal challenge; The description of the previous legal challenge In paragraph
3.8 of the Report fails to note that the previous Tree Preservation Order was guashed
as it was unlawfully made, and the Councll paid the Claimant's costs of bringing the
challenge. It must be made clear to the Planning Committee that the Claimant's
actions in bringing the previous legal challenge were correct and justified due to the
Defendant's legal errors. The wording of paragraphs 3.6 to 3.8 of the Report suggest
that the Claimant was unjustified in bringing the legal challenge, which serves to
further mislead the Planning Committee.

Moreover, the report is materially _misleading in failing to draw the Committee's
attention to the serious conseguences should the Council adopt a TPO which is In
breach of a court order. Far from being “not a relevant matter” (per paragra h48 o
the Report). this Is a material consideration of considerable welght. Commitiee
members should be made aware of the grave consequences of proceeding in
contravention of a court order.

(b) Misinterpretation of law and planning policy;

a. Visibility from private gardens; The Report refers to views of the trees proposed to be
protected from private gardens in a number of places, Including paragraphs 4.4, 4.7,
4.10, 4.17, and a number of the photographs provided at Appendix 8 to the Report.
The merits of the TPO must be considered on the basis of the public amenity, and any
amenity provided to private properties cannot provide a lawful consideration for the
confirmation of the TPO. The Report is misleading the Planning Committee and there
is a significant risk of the Planning Committee taking unlawful considerations into
account as a result.

b. Tempo Assessment: All the trees are marked in the Tempo Assessment has having
an ‘expediency’ score of 3, which is the equivalent of a foreseesble threat’. If the
threat were marked accurately, the ‘expediency’ score should be reduced, which would
push a number of the trees below the threshold for suitability for inclusion in the TPO.
Additionally, a degree of visibility is given to trees TS5, T6, T7, T8, T9, T18, and T19,
where these trees are not visible at all from public places,

¢. Guidance: Paragraph 3.5 of the Report provides a quote from the UK Forestry
Standard and National Forestry Statistics which refers to the definition of woodland
including ‘woodland scrub'. This is an incorrect quote, and this reference is In neither
the 2011 nor 2017 versions of tha guidance.

Page 83



Agenda Iltem 6

(c) Failure to justify the extent of the TPO: No substantive justification has been given by the
Council for the extent of the protection in the TPO, nor has an assessment of the trees
selected for protection been provided, particularly in view of the clear and reasoned objection
made on behalf of the Claimant by Barton Hyett Associates (attached at Appendix 3 to the
Report). It has been admitted at paragraph 4.18 of the Report that “not all the trees are
visible from a public place’, but the Report concludes that the trees merit protection by
reason of their “future potential as an amenity, rarity, cultural or historic value,
contribution to and relationship with the landscape and benefit they provide to the
character of the area’. Any justification on these grounds must be explained to the extent
that the reasoning cannot be adequately determined from the public documents prepared for
the Planning Committee, which reasoning has not been provided in the Report.

It is further materially misleading to introduce the concept of ‘rarity’, ‘culiural or historic value’
and ‘contribution to the landscape’ within the conclusions of the Report without any evidence

whatsoever to support an a ion that the trees are in any way rare. have cultural or historic
value or make a contribution to the landscape {as distinct from visual amenity). The inclusion
of this paragraph suggests to the Committes that some assessment has been made of these
criteria, which does not appear to be the case, or in any event such assessment is not before
the Committee,

The Planning Committes is due to consider the Report at its Committee Meeting on Monday 6"
November 2017, however for the reasons set out above the Report is legally flawed. The errors
made go to the heart of the matter which the Planning Committee will be cohsidering, and so any
decision made on the basis of the Report will be unlawful.

The effect of the Report Is to significantly mislead the Planning Committee about material matters and
the law relating to the TPO. The way the Report has been drafted, together with the photographs
taken from neighbouring properties, raises questions about the impartiality of the author, and gives
the appearance of blas.

The Court may properly exercise a higher degree of scrutiny of the Defendant's conduct in relation to
tree preservation orders and apply an enhanced duty to deal with objectors fairly and openly on the
basis that the Defendant is both promoting the TPO and determining objections made against it, in
accordance with the case of Wilkson Properties v Roval Borough of Kensington and Chelsea [2011].

There is a duty for the Defendant to give reasons for the recommendation given in the Report where
the reasoning cannot be adequately determined from the public documents prepared for the Planning

Committee, as was established by the case of Qakley v South Cambridaeshire District Council [2017].

If the Report were presented in a lawful way, it is highly likely that the F’ianmng Committee would
come to different decision.

7. ACTION THE DEFENDANT IS EXPECTED TO TAKE

The Council is expected to sign a consent order agreeing to the quashing of any new TPO made on 6
November 2017.

Page 84




Agenda Iltem 6

Given the clear prejudice shown by Tree Officers, Andy Bucklitch and Gavin Boyes, whose
independence as promoters of the TPO Is irrevocably tainted, any further TPO should be supported
by a report authored by an alternative Tree Officer or allernatively an independent and appropriately
qualified expert.

8. DETAILS OF ANY DOCUMENTS THAT ARE CONSIDERED RELEVANT AND
NECESSARY

The Claimant asks the Defendant to provide within one week of the date of this letter (and before any
consideration of this matter by Planning Committee):

(d) Al written reports and site notes regarding the TPO and / or Bromsgrove District Council
Tree Preservation Order (No. 12) 2016 — Tree/s on land at side and rear of 73 Linthurst
Newton, Blackwell dated 12th January 2017, and the provisional Tree Preservation Order
relating to the same site served in August 2018, relating to the visits made to site by tree
officers Gavin Boyes and Andy Bucklitch or other officers involved. In particular,
documentation relating to the assessment of the trees at the site as suitable for a tree
preservation order (sometimes referred to as an amenity value assessment). The above
request is for the disclosure of all written reports and site notes which are not annexed to
the Report or the Committee Report dated Sth January 2017.

q

{(e)  Any lstters and emails sent to and received from the above officers and notes of any
meetings or telephone conversation by or with the above officers in relation to the TPO and
/ or Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (No. 12) 2016 — Tree/s on land at
side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newton, Blackwell dated 12th January 2017, and the
provisional Tree Preservation Order relating to the same site served in August 2016, and in
particular communications to and / or from planning officers, local councillors (District and
Parigh), their clerks or staff, and residents. The above request is for the disclosure of all
written reports and site notes which are not annexed to the Report or the Committee Report
dated 9th January 2017.

)] A plan showing the locations from where all the photographs provided at Appendix 9 of the
Report were taken, and confirmation of who took each of the photographs in question.

The Defendant is remind'ed of its strict duty of candour in this respect.
9. THE ADDRESS FOR REPLY AND SERVICE OF COURT DOCUMENTS
Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited, 5 Deansway, Worcester, WR1 2JG. Correspondence to be sent

for the aitention of Mrs R, Andrews, quoting reference: RA03.ACC14-1

Yours faithfully

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Page 85



Agenda Iltem 6

Your reference: hc}rl‘i SOI’I

Qur reference: RAD3.ACC0014-0001.RA e E e
| ~rickerbys

Direct small: randrews@hcrlaw.com ittt i

SOLICITORS

8 November 2017

FAQ Tracy Lovejoy 5 Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG

Legal Services Telephone: 01805 812001

Bromsgrove District Council Fax: 01005 744899

Parkelde DX: 716260 Worcester 1

Market Street, : e

Bromsgrove, Direct Line: 01205 744868

Worcestershire PLANNING TEAM

B61 8DA

BY EMAIL

t.ioveiov@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Dear Sirs

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 11) 2017
TREES ON LAND ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

We refer to your letter of today’s-date, received by email at 1pm.

Thank you for confirming that the group of trees named ‘G2’ will be removed from the TPO (11) of
2017, however your letter and the update to Committee published on the Council's website this
afternoon fail to address the vast majority of legal issues raised in our letter of 2" November 2017,

The update to Committee does, in fact, raise a number of new issues about the way this matter has
been dealt with by the Council, including the inclusion of a number of new photographs taken on 10"
August 2016. These photos are extremely misleading as the titles suggest they relate to works carried
out in August 2016, where this is not the case,

The reason for the Inclusion of these photographs is not explained in the update to Committee,
however we presume that this is intended to be some sort of evidence of that works were taking place
on the site which warranted the original TPO being imposed. In fact, these photographs show the
works carried out in July 2018 prior to any TPO being made, which were entirely lawful and primarily
scrub clearance, as was noted in Gavin Boyes' Statement appended to the Committee Report in
January (copy annexed hereto for ease of reference), where he states the works carried out had “no
detrimental influence on tree stock In the area’.

The inclusion of these photographs is, again, intended to mislead the Planning Committee as to the
nature of works carried out on site, which is unlawful.

It is also noted that this new information was only provided a few hours before the Committee
Meeting, and after the site visit had taken place, and so did not give sufficlent opportunity for our

L0 cHaMaRs [

==

Lexel (O Nmeae

Page 86



Agenda Iltem 6

clients to respond on the new documents provided. This clearly prejudices our client and its ability to
take advice and respond.

We also note that Gavin Boyes is due to be present at the Committee Meeting which shows a total

disregard for the issues we have raised in relation to the independence of the Council’s Officers as
promoters of the TPO and the TPO being irrevocably tainted as a result.

It is also noted that the photographs had failed to be disclosed as part of our client’s previous request
for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004, in breach of those regulations.

The Committee Report and Committee Update remain legally flawed for the reasons set out in the
draft letter before claim attached to our letter of 2" November 2017. The site visit made by the
Planning Committee this morning is also legally flawed as a result of the errors, and any decision

made by the Planning Committee based on the Report, the Update, and the site visit would also be
unlawful and susceptible to legal challenge.

Yours falthfully

Haorison (ool Rickooays

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Page 87



Agenda Item 6

Appendix A
Statement of events on 20" July 2016 reference land / vegetation management

works on land adioining the South-Westerly side of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
B60 1BES

Statement bv: Mr Gavin Boyes, Senior Tree Officer, Bromsarove & Redditch Councils

s We received an enquiry recorded on M3 referance number 201628462 on the 20"
July 2016 from a concerned local resident of Linthurst Newtown re‘pcirti'ng that a
digger was working on land to the side of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Tha reporting
residsnt was concernad that wotk may be being carried outto clear the land ready for
development. '

o Having checked the status of the land it was clear that there were no activa TPO ot
consetvation area restrictions on the site but it was under Green Belt designation.

o |thetefore visitad the site to investigate what work was being caniad out, ariving at
the site at approximately 11am on the 26" July 2018. | found a single workman on a
emall tracked 360 degree turn digger spreading type one grade road stone on a
gateway entrancs to the land immediately adjoining the South-Westerly side of the

- drive way setving 73 Linthurst Newtown. In addition to thie work there was evidence
of other work having taken place irf light shrub and small tree clearance within the
main body of the land immediately beyond the gated antrance 10 the field. This also
appearad to be very recent and most likely undertaken that morhing.

s Onapproaching tha digger driver to gain information oh the ievel and reason forthe
work he informed ma that he was carrying out the work on behalf of the owner of 73
Linthutet Newtown who hé advised was at home. | knocked on the door of this
property with but no response came. The digger drive then phoned the resident on
his mokile phone who then came out of the property to discuss the works.

o The ownet was a Mr Fell who advised me he was only carrying out some work, partly
to improve the entrance aréa 10 the field but mainly to improve the access to the
driveway of 73 Linthurst Newtown as his wifa particutarly had found the entrance very
tight to access and with low visibllity when axiting the proparty. He indicated that the
lavel of watk intand was that which had been alfeady carried out and was nearto
completion.

+ This seemed a perfoctly plausible explanation for this work and the level of work
carried out had not had any detrimental influsnce on the major tree stock in area 0
the appeated no reason to pursue the matter further at that time.

e On returm to the office | raised M3 enquiry number 201628462 to record my finding on
afte, Also as | was due to be on leave for the following two weeks | made my
colleaguss in the tree team aware of the anquiry and results of my site visit in case
any additional issues may arise.

Page 88



Agenda Iltem 6

Your reference: hGrl’Ison Clqu
Our reference: RA03.ACCO0014-0001.RA .

rickerbys
Direct email: randrews@herlaw.com

SOLICITORS
16 November 2017

BY SPECIAL DELIVERY BY 1PM & Deansway, Worcester WR1 2JG
FAO Tracy. Lovejoy Telephone; 01905 612001
;egai SBNIC%S_ T Fax: 01905 744899

romsgrove District Counci ,
Perkaids DX: 716260 Worcester 1
Bromsgrove, PLANNING TEAM
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

BY FOST AND EMAIL
t.lovejoy@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Dear Sirs
LETTER BEFORE CLAINM — SECTION 288 CHALLENGE

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO, 11) 2017
TREES ON LAND ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTOWN, BLACKWELL

We are instructed by Access Homes LLP In relation to Bromsgrove District Council's ('the
Defendant”) unlawful decision to rely on its report and update to its Planning Commitiee on the merits
of Tree Preservation Order (No. 11) 2017 (‘the TPO") in its Planning Committee Meeting on 6"
November 2017.

The Defendant has failed to advise the Planning Committee in a way which is impartial, fransparent,
fair, or provides adequate (or any) reasoning for the recommendation made, and fails to accurately
map and identify trees to be protecied {(and not protected). Further, the Defendant is promoter of the
TPO and Is also determiner of the TPO and therefore has an enhanced duty to act judiciously and
without prejudice, which it has not,

Although the Defendant’s Planning Committee resolved to defer the consideration of the merits of the
TPO to a future Committee Meeting, we consider it to be firmly within the alms of the pre-action
protocol to serve a formal letter before claim at this stage give the Defendant the opportunity to;

a) understand and properly identlfy the issues in dispute in the proposed claim and share
information and relevant documents;

b) make informed decisions as to whether and how to proceed,

Birmingham T ol S o o B owe o

Cheltenham R =) : L : 1 - . PR i
Hereford T, "% . = = & i o= B o : ; . . {2 CHAMPERS %EE}E
Thames Valley ¥ oo G L g ; : o DUl
Norcester i ) : T ' ;
Nye Valley . : # | . ; : : Lexé .

el INVESTORS
3y appolintment in London S IN PEQPLE

lawyers@herlaw.com www.herlaw.com

Page 89




Agenda Iltem 6

c) try to settle the dispute without proceedings or reduce the issues in disputs; and
d) avold unnecessary expense and keep down the costs of resolving the dispute.

This is a formal letter before clalm in accordance with the pre-action protocol under the Civil
Procedure Rules.

% THE CLAIMANT

Access Homes LLP, The Exchange, Haslucks Green Road, Shirley, Solihull, West Midiands, BS0
2EL.

& DEFENDANT'S REFERENCE DETAILS

Defendant’s reference: Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017
Defendant's Legal Officer: Tracy Lovejoy

3. DETAILS OF THE CLAIMANT’S LEGAL ADVISERS

Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited, 5 Deansway, Worcester, WR1 2JG.
Reference: RA0O3. ACC14-1

4. DETAILS OF THE MATTER BEING CHALLENGED

‘The decision taken by Bromsgrove District Council (“the Defendant’) to report to its Planning
Committee on the marits of Tree Preservation Order (No. 11) 2017 (“the TPO") in a way which is
manifestly not impartial, transparent, nor fair, nor which provides adequate (or any) reasoning for the
recommendation made, nor accurately identifies the trees to be protected (and not protected).

6. DETAILS OF ANY INTERESTED PARTIES

None.

6. THE ISSUES

The Defendant has published a report to its Planning Commitiee to consider the confirmation of the
TPO without modification (“the Report”), however the Report has not been prepared to the standard
required by law.

The Report contains a number of misleading statements, inaccuracies, omissions, irrelevant and
misleading photographs, and fails to provide adequate (or any) reasons for the recommendaticn
made, and fails to accurately map and identify trees to be protected (and not protected). Further, the
Report clearly demonstrates that the applicable law has been misinterpreted and misapplied.

Page 90



Agenda Iltem 6

The Claimant considers the following flaws within the Report are sufficient to amount to arguable
grounds of challenge under the following headings

(1) Material error(s) of fact

(2) Misinterpretation of relevant guidance and policy

(3) Failure to provide adequate reasons
Having considered the update to the Report published by the Defendant on the afternoon of the a6t
November 2017 (‘the Update"), just hours before the Committee Meeting, the Claimant also
considers the following grounds of ¢claim are made out:

(1) Further material errors of fact

(2) Apparent bias.

Grounds relating to the Report:

{1) Material errors of fact

a. Tree Felling: At paragraph 3.6, the Report states that trees had been felled on the site prior to
the making of the provisional Tree Preservation Order In August 2016. This is misleading: it
was primarily scrub and light tree clearance on the land and no major tree stock had been

" felled. This was confirmed by the Defendant's Tree Officer on a site visit on 29" July 2016 and .
recorded in a Statement appended to the Committee Report for the Committee Meating in
January 2017. This Statement confirmed that “the fevel of work carried out had not had any
detrimental influence on the major tree stock in the area". It is understood that tree works
had been carried out within the garden of 73 Linthurst Newtown, however this property is in
separate ownership, and does not form part of the site covered by the TPO. The statement at
paragraph 3.6 of the Report, together with the similar statement at paragraph 4.3, and the
reference in paragraph 4.6 of the Report to the “level of work that was being gradually
undertaken’ is designed to mislead the Planning Committee In relation to the justification for
the TPO and to justify the Tree Officer's perception of a ‘threat’ to any trees on the sile as
discussed below.

b. |dentity of landowner. At paragraph 3.6 the Report states that the owner of the site is a
‘property development company whe are understood to specialise in acquisition of land
for then onward sale once outline planning permission has been granted. This
statement is made without any evidential foundation and is extremely misleading. Although the
Claimant is an investment company owning real estate, it primarily owns let residential
properties. It has not applied for planning permission nor sold sites on for development. The
Report also claims that the Claimant is ‘under the management of the Fell Family', which is
a false statement — the Claimant Is a partnership where 50% is owned by an unrelated party.

c. Speculation about landowner and its_intentions: Although the Planning Practice Guidance
confirms that local planning authorities may consider development pressures and landowner's

Page 91



Agenda Iltem 6

intentions when congidering whether it is expedient to make a tree preservation order, the
statements in paragraph 4.3 of the Report that “the nature of the companles owning the
land are understood to speclalise In acquisition of land for then onward sale once
outline planning permission has been granted’ and that ‘it was reasonable to assume
the site would be largely cleared of tree stock to accommodate development on the
site” are without evidentlal basis. The Report also justifies the making of the TPO at
paragraph 4.6 by reference to “the known nature of the companies who own the land’, and
so this speculation has clearly played a large part in the Officer's decision-making process.
The Report fails to mention the fact that the landowners have cooperated and engaged with
the Defendant throughout, and were prepared to accept a tree preservation order over a
number of trees on the site. These statements and omissions are designed to mislead the
Planning Committes and to taint the Planning Committee’s perception of landowner,

d. Previous legal challenge; The description of the previous legal challenge in paragraph 3.8 of
the Report fails to note that the previous Tree Preservation Order was quashed as it was
unlawfully made, and the Council paid the Claimant’s costs of bringing the challenge. It must
be made clear to the Planning Committee that the Claimant's actions in bringing the previous
legal challenge were correct and justified due to the Defendant's legal errors. The wording of
paragraphs 3.6 to 3.8 of the Report suggest that the Claimant was unjustified in bringing the
legal challenge, which serves to further mislead the Planning Committee.

Mistake of fact giving rise to unfaimess is an established ground cf challenge. The planning
authority has a duty to ensure that its decisions are taken on the correct factual basis. The Report
contains a number of misleading statements which amount to mistakes of fact if adopted by the
Committee. These erroneous ‘facts’ form an important part of the factual matrix being taken into
account by the Committee and used by the officer to justify the proposed TPO. Thelr inclusion
within the Report gives rise to unfairness and so amounts to an error of law within the Report.

{2) Misinterpretation of relevant law and policy:

a. Visibility from private_gardens: The Report refers to views of the trees proposed to be
protected from private gardens in a number of places, including paragraphs 4.4, 4.7, 4.10,
4.17, and @ number of the photographs provided at Appendix © to the Report. The merits of
the TPO must be considered on the basis of the public amenity, and any amenity provided to
private properties cannot provide a lawful consideration for the confirmation of the TPO. The
Report is misleading the Planning Committee and there is a significant risk of the Planning
Committee taking unlawful considerations into account as a result

b, Tempo Assessment: All the trees are marked in the Tempo Assessment as having an
‘expediency’ score of 3, which is the equivalent of a ‘foreseeable threat'. |f the threat were
marked accurately, the ‘expediency’ score should be reduced. Additionally, a degree of
visibility is given to trees T5, T6, T7, T8, TS, T18, and T18, where these trees are not visible at
all from public places. Similarly, if the visibliity was marked accurately, the 'visibility' score
would be reduced. Further, some trees are incorrectly marked for 'condition’ and ‘longevity’
and should be reduced. If the trees were marked accurately, a number of them would fall
below the threshold for suitability for inclusion in the TPO.

Page 92



Agenda Iltem 6

(3) Failure to provide adequate or any reasons for the extent of the TPO/ error of law in failing to
apply the correct test:

The reasons given for the decislon are inadequate to the extent that it cannot be determined
whether the officer applies the correct test; it would appear that he doss not.

The Report takes a confused approach to visibility and expediency. The Report accepts at 4.18
that “not all the trees are visible from a public place”. The Report also reaches the conclusion
at paragraphs 4.4 and 4.10 that the trees offer an “acceptable levefl of visual amenity. These
conclusions are then coupled with the officer’s (flawed) conclusions as to the leve! of threat in
order to justify the TPQO, In doing 8o, the officer essentially applies the test of “if | can see a tree,
and that tree might be removed, it should be protected”. That is not the test. Visibility, whilst an
essential component of amenity, is not the whole picture. A tree does not have amenity value
simply because it can be seen. Otherwise, all visible trees would merit protection and the TPO
regime would serve no purpose.

No substantive justification has been given by the Defendant for the extent of the protection in the
TPO, other than the Tempo assessment discussed above. No justification or explanation has
been given in response to the clear and reasoned objection made on behalf of the Claimant by
Barton Hyett Associales (attached at Appendix 3 to the Report). It has been admitted at
paragraph 4.18 of the Report that "not all the trees are visible from a public pilace’, but the
Report concludes that the trees merit protection by reason of their “fufure potential as an
amenity, rarity, cultural or historic value, contributlon to and relationship with the
landscape and benefit they provide to the character of the area’. Any justification on these
grounds must be explained to the extent that the reasoning cannot be adequately determined
from the public documents prepared for the Planning Committee, which reasoning has not been
provided in the Report. As it stands, this conclusion is wholly disconnected to the remainder of
the Report said to justify this conclusion and as such, is without proper reasoning.

It is further materially misleading to introduce the concept of ‘rarity’, ‘cultural or historic value’ and
‘contribution to the landscape’ within the conclusions of the Repori without any evidence
whatsoever to support an assertion that the trees are in any way rare, have cultural or historic
value or make a contribution to the landscape (as distinct from visual amenity), The inclusion of
this paragraph suggests to the Committee that some assessment has been made of these
criteria, which does not appear to be the case, or in any event such assessment is not before the
Committes.

Grounds relating to the Update:

The Defendant allowed its Planning Committee to atlend a site visit on 6" November 2017 based on
the Report as published, desplte the above issues having been raised by the Claimant in a letter
dated 2™ November 2017,

Following the site visit on the marning of the 6% November 2017, the Defendant published the Update
which was published just hours before the Committee Meeting.

Page 93



Agenda Iltem 6

Although the Update changed the Defendant's recommendation such that a modified version of the
TPO was recommended for confirmation, which excluded the group of trees ‘G2, the Update falled to
address the above concerns with the Report, and also created the following additional legal errors:

{1) Further material errors of fact:

a. Tree Felling. A number of photographs were appended to the Update, marked as taken on
10" August 2016, The photographs were published on the Defendant's website marked as
“Pictures of trees felled August 2016" and the Update states that “appended fo this
update are photographs taken at the time which show some free felling’. These
photographs, although may have been taken on 10" August 2018, relate to works carried out
prior to the making of the provisional Tree Preservation Order in August 2016 which were
carried out lawfully. As stated above, the Defendant's Tree Officer visited the site on 28" July
2016 and recorded his assessment of the works carried out in a Statement which was
appended to the Committee Report for the Committee Meeting In January 2017. This
Statement confirmed that “the level of work carried out had not had any detrimental
influence on the major tree stock in the area’. The mislabelling of the photographs on the
Defendant's website and the statement in the Update, is designed to mislead' the Planning
Committee and public in relation to the justification for the TPO and to justify the Tree Officer's
perception of a ‘threat’ to any trees on the site.

(2) Apparent Bias:

In spite of the clear concerns raised In our letter of 2™ November 2017 regarding the prejudice
shown by Tree Officers, Andy Bucklitch and Gavin Boyes, and their ability to act independently as
promoters of the TPO, the Defendant stated in the Update that “Mr Boyes will explain the
context of those photographs’ and “Mr Boyes will also answer any further questions from
members about the amenity test including the visibility of the trees, the TEMPO
assessment, the future potential amenity of the trees, and rarity, cultural or historic value
and contribution to the landscape and area’. Given the concerns raised about prejudice and the
TPO being irrevocably tainted as a result, a verbal update on these important matters by one of the
Officers about which concerns have been raised Is sufficient to give rise to an appearance of bias,

A fair minded and informed observer would conclude that there was a real risk of apparant bias in
these circumstances. The Claimant relies upon the matters set out within its letter of 2 November
2017 and the following:

a. The Council has previously accepted that its procedure in allowing the promoting officer
unfettered and unaccompanied access to the Committee was sufficient to give rise to
procedural unfairness infecting the previous TPO. The same officer and same commitiee
members are now involved in this TPO concerning the same land and substantially the same
trees. The bias apparent (and accepted) within the previous decision has not been remedied
‘and continues to infect this decision;

b. Paragraph 4.3 of the Report and the (it is considered, deliberate) misstatement as to the
operations of the Claimant. This inaccuracy appears to have been included as a pejorative
reference to the Claimant's business aimed at colouring the Committee's views of the
Claimant;

Page 94



Agenda Iltem 6

¢. The acknowledged failure to serve the new TPO on the Claimant. The Council had knowledge
of the Claimant's involvement due o the previous proceedings and was well aware of its
business address and address for service via its legal representatives. The Report makes no
attempt to apologise or explain this error and in the circumstances, the failure to serve the
TPO on the Claimant can be seen as nothing short of a further deliberate attempt to prejudice
the Claimant's position; and

d. Paragraph 4.6 contains a further erroneous and pejorative reference to the Claimants “known
nature”

These matters, taken together with the issues raised in the Claimant's letter of 2 November are
sufficient to give rise to an appearance of bias on the part of the two named officers. Their
involvement In the promotion of the TPO infects the decision with an appearance of bias,
amounting to a legal flaw in the decision.

We understand that the Planning Committee deferred consideration of this matter at the Committee
Meeting on the evening of 6" November 2017 as:

1, The documents the Defendant provided to the Planning Committee were barely visible due to
the poor quality of the copies provided,

2. The Planning Committee required more time to consider the documents provided at the
Committee Meeting; and

3. The Planning Committee had been unable to Identify some of the trees to be protected by the
TPO during their site visit.

This, in itself, is evidence of the inadequate nature of the Report and the Update.

For the reasons set out above the Report and the Update are legally flawed. The errors made go to
the heart of the matter which the Planning Committee will be considering, and so any decision made
on the basis of the Report and Update will be unlawful.

The effect of the Report and Update is to significantly mislead the Planning Committee about material
matters and the law relating to the TPQ. The way the Report and Update have been drafted, together
with the photographs taken from neighbouring properties, raises guestions about the impartiality of
the author, and gives the appearance of bias.

The Court may properly exercise a higher degree of scrutiny of the Defendant's conduct in relation to
tree preservation orders and apply an enhanced duty to deal with objectors fairly and openly on the
basis that the Defendant is both promoting the TPO and determining objections made against it, in
accordance with the case of Wilkson Properties v Roval Borough_of Kensington and Chelsea [2011].

There is a duty for the Defendant to give reasons for the recommendation given in the Report where
the reasoning cannot be adequately determined from the public documents prepared for the Planning
Committee, as was established by the case of Oakley v South Cambridgeshire District Council [2017].

Page 95



Agenda Iltem 6

If the Report and Update were presented in a lawful way, it is highly likely that the Planning
Committee would come to different decision.

1 ACTION THE DEFENDANT IS EXPECTED TO TAKE

Given the clear prejudice shown by Tree Officers, Andy Bucklitch and Gavin Boyes, whose
independence as promoters of the TPO Is irrevocably tainted, any further report to the Defendant’s
Planning Committee in relation to the TPO should be supported by a report authored by an alternative
Tree Officer or alternatively an independent and appropriately qualified expert.

The revised report must address the issues raised In this letter, so as to ensure that the Committee
are advised in a lawful way.

In the event that the Defendant proceeds to Planning Committee without the issues raised in this
lstter being addressed, the Defendant is expected to elther revoke the TPQ or sign a consent order
agreeing fo the quashing of the TPO made.

8. DETAILS OF ANY DOCUMENTS THAT ARE CONSIDERED RELEVANT AND
NECESSARY

The Claimant asks the Defendant to provide within fourteen days of the date of this letter (and before
any further consideration of this matter by Planning Committee).

a. All written reports and site notes regarding the TPO and / or Bromsgrove District Council
Tree Preservation Order (No. 12) 2016 — Tree/s on land at side and rear of 73 Linthurst

Newton, Blackwell dated 12th January 2017, and the provisional Tree Preservation Order

relating to the same site served in August 2018, relating to the visits made to site by tree
officers Gavin Boyes and Andy Bucklitch or other officers invoived. In particular,
documentation relating to the assessment of the trees at the site as suitable for a tree
preservation order (sometimes referred to as an amenity value assessment). The above
request is for the disclosure of all written reports and site notes which are not annexed to
the Report, the Update, or the Committee Report dated 9th January 2017.

b. Any letters and emails sent to and recelved from the above officers and notes of any
meetings or telephone conversation by or with the above officers in relation to the TPO and
/ or Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order (No. 12) 2016 —~ Tree/s on land at
side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newton, Blackwell dated 12th January 2017, and the
provisional Tres Preservation Order relating to the same site served in August 2016, and In
particular communications to and / or from planning officers, local councillors (District and
Parish), their clerks or staff, and residents. The above request is for the disclosure of all
written reports and site notes which are not annexed to the Report, the Update, or the
Committee Report dated 9th January 2017,

€. Confirmation of who teok each of the photographs appended to the Report at Appendix 8,

and the date that the photographs were taken, Additionally confirmation of how access to
the properties of local residents was arranged to take such photographs.

Page 96



Agenda Iltem 6

d. Any additional photographs taken by or provided to officers in support of the TPO which
have not been disclosed to date. Confirmation of who took each of the photographs, and
the date that the photographs were taken. Additionally confirmation of how access {o the
propertles of local residents was arranged to take such photographs, if applicable.

The Defendant is reminded of its strict duty of candour in this respect. In particular, the duty of

candour applies as soon as a public body is aware that someone is likely to test a decision or action
affecting them; it applies even at the pre-action stage.

9. THE ADDRESS FOR REPLY AND SERVICE OF COURT DOCUMENTS
Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited, 5 Deansway, Worcester, WR1 2JG. Correspondence to be sent

for the attention of Mrs R. Andrews, quoting reference. RA03. ACC14-1

Yours faithfully
Hasasan (larde Rioleoty y3

HARRISON CLARK RICKERBYS LIMITED

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX (4) Agenda ltem 6

%"

From: Matt Fe. QD
Sent: 04 August 2017 16:15

To: Gavin Boyes; Rasma Sultana

subject: TPO Order No.11 2017 Ref: RS/TPO(11)2017
Dear Sifs,

This is an objection to the Tree Preseveration Order No.11 2017 on Land adjoining 73 Linthurst Newtown
Blackwell, under Regulation 6.

For the avoidance of doubt, we do not own the Former Mink Farm simply referred to as Land adjoining 73
Linthurst Newtown. We own No.73 Linthurst Newtown, known as Charlton House, We are the most
affected neighbour to the site as we border it on 3 sides.

We object to the use of a group order for G1. This gives some poor quality trees that would not usually
merit a TPO, protection. We are greatly concerned with the first 2 Lawson Cypress trees in G1 and object to
their protection. For almost a year we have sought to have these poor quality trees removed to improve
highway safety. We have improved the vision to the East of our property but are unable 1o do so to the West
due to the previous flawed TPO and now this one. The access to our property is directly opposite a bus stop
most often used by school children. An accident due to not being able to see traffic from our drive and vice
versa could have fatal consequences. All to protect 2 non native poor examples of Conifer trees! This goes
against all common sense and natural justice.

We also note the Spruces and other Lawson Cypress in G1 are of very poor form, namely they look like

lollipops, are very top heavy and potentially dangerous given their close proximity to Linthurst Newtown,
we therefore object to their protection.

We object to T15 on 2 grounds. The first is that it is an 'actionable nuisance’. The tree is approximately 20m
tall and directly on our boundary, with a canopy that is within Im of our house. The roots have already
started to lift part of our rear patio and will no doubt start to cause problems with the rear of our property.
The attached plan to the TPO does not refelect the true position if T15, it is much closer than showrn. The
2nd ground for objecting to T15 is that it is of particularly poor form. The tree has suffered extensive
Squirrel damage. The squirrels gnaw through the bark into the stem of the tree to access the sap. These
wounds to the tree are then weak points for diesease and rot. We have had already had a large branch snap
out of the tree and land in our garden. This tree does not merit any protection.

We object to T16 and T17. Both trees are of poor form and not visible to the public. T16 which was referred
to as 'lop sided' by a councillor on a previous site visit can only be seen from the North and not from any
public place.

T17, has already been heavily cut back due to works with the electricity cables, has obvious and visible rot
and last year a large branch snapped out of the tree. Neither of these trees should be protected. ,

We support the protection of the large trees in G3. It is not clear why any tree directly North of G3 would be
protected as they can not be seen from a public place. Indeed any tree which is Northerly of another cannot
be seen from Linthurst Newtown. We understand that if a tree cannot be seen from a public place it does not
merit protection. Therefore we object to TS, T6, T7, T8, T9, T10, T11, T18, T19 (which has fallen over),
G5, G6, 4x apple trees in G4 and the use of a Woodland Order for W1, Regarding W1 only a handful of
trees are visible to the public, surely these should be individually protected?

We trust our objections are taken into account.
Yours faithfully,

Fell
Mr & Mrs Fe Page 99




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX (5)

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 8 Letters / Emails Of Support

Ref

Address

Reasons

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
B60 1BS

Concerns any impact on local wildiife and general
environment, loss of trees that help manage polution
and carbon from the local M42 motorway

Resident of Blackwe!l Village, No
address given

Concerns about any impact on local wildlife and trees
including orchard danager of increased traffic from site
to road on hend

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
B60 1BS

Wish to endorse fully the making of the order

Badgerway, Blackwell, B60 1EX

Concerns about losing valuble woodtand and impact on
wildlife of site, noise polution from motorway

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
B60 1BS

Concerns ahout the influecne the potential use of land
could have on character fo Blackwell highlights valaue
of trees, orcahrd and woodland on site

Birkdale Avenue, Blackwell, B60
1BY

Concerned about clearing of woodland and increase
threat of noise from M42 due to tree loss and impact on
Wildlife

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
B60 1BS

Removal of Green Belt site contains valuable widlife and
trees

No Address Given

Concerned about protection of valauable trees on site
including Orchard and wildlife on the site

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
B&60 1BS

Concerned about loss of Green Belt risk to trees and
wildlife, risk of increased noise levels from M42

10

Birkdale Avenue, Blackwell, B60
1BY

Concerned about Biodiversity in view of valauable trees
and wildlife on the site.

11

Wentworth Drive, Blackwell

Concerned about influecne on Wildlife + increased
traffic in area.

12

No Address Given

Wish to protect trees and wildlife

13

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
860 1BS

Concerned about welfare of trees, wildlife and noise
reduction benefits they provide from M42

14

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
BGO 1BS

Concerned about welfare of trees, wildlife and noise
reduction benefits they provide from M42 and drainage
issues should trees be |ost

15

No Address Given

Concerned about welfare of trees, wildlife and noise
reduction benefits they provide from M42 and drainage
issues should trees be lost

Page 101




Agenda Item 6

16

No Address Given

Concerned about welfare of trees, wildlife and noise
reduction benefits they provide from M42 and drainage
issues should trees he lost

17

No Address Given

Concerned about welfare of trees, wildlife and noise
reduction benefits they provide from M42 and drainage
issues should trees be lost

18

No Address Given

Highlights the visability of the trees and concnered
about welfare of Wildiife and trees

19

Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell,
B60 18BS

Concerned land is Green Belt, visability of the trees and
welfare of wild life, trees, habitat and nosie levels
henefits of trees

Concerned about disruption to trees, wildlife and road

20| Green Hill traffic issues due to potnetial use of land
concerned aboutl weltare of Trees, wildlite and noise
reduction benefits they provide from M42 and drainage
21|No Address Given issues should trees be lost

Page 102




Agenda [téni'6

APPENDIX (6)

Lo,
.
."
B
4 rEal |
- ¥
e~ V)
-
ot

B BB TR T
P T (RS SR
=t " aus Nl
;1--- _'“-uqr:’ ‘ el“ﬁ;*

- Tana

g

I
1 s
I

L T b

i Scale = 1:2500 x: 399459.9 y: 272873.51
C*Bfown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100024230.

Page 103
https://gis.worcestershire.gov.uk/website/Countryside/ 12/10/2017




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX (7) Agenda Item 6

What does ‘amenity’ mean in practice?

‘Amenity’ is not defined in law, so authorities need to exercise judgment when deciding
whether it is within their powers to make an Order.

Orders should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a
significant negative impact on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public. Before
authorities make or confirm an Order they should be able to show that protection would bring
a reasonable degree of public benefit in the present or future.

Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 36-007-20140306
Revision date: 06 03 2014

What might a local authority take into account when assessing amenity value?

When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities are advised to
develop ways of assessing the amenity value of trees in a structured and consistent way,
taking into account the following criteria:

Visibility

The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the
authority’s assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is significant. The
trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible from a public place, such as a road
or footpath, or accessible by the public,

Individual, collective and wider impact

Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order. The authority is advised to
also assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of trees or of woodlands
by reference to its or their characteristics including:

e size and form;

« future potential as an amenity;

» rarity, cultural or historic value;

= contribution to, and relationship with, the landscape; and

« contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area.

Other factors

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woodlands, authorities may’
consider taking into account other factors, such as importance to nature conservation or
response to climate change. These factors alone would not warrant making an Order.

Paragraph: 008 Reference ID: 36-008-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

Page 105



Agenda Item 6

What can help local authorities identify trees that may need protection?

An authority’s tree strategy may identify localities or populations of trees as priorities for the
making or reviewing of Orders. Authorities may also refer to existing registers, recording
trees of particular merit, to assist in their selection of trees suitable for inclusion in an Order.

Paragraph: 009 Reference ID: 36-009-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

What does ‘expedient’ mean in practice?

Although some trees or woodlands may merit protection on amenity grounds it may not be
expedient to make them the subject of an Order. For example, it is unlikely to be necessary to
make an Order in respect of trees which are under good arboriculturat or silvicultural
management.

It may be expedient to make an Order if the authority believes there is a risk of trees being
felled, pruned or damaged in ways which would have a significant impact on the amenity of
the area. But it is not necessary for there to be immediate risk for there to be a need to protect
trees. In some cases the authority may believe that certain trees are at risk as a result of
development pressures and may consider, where this is in the interests of amenity, that it is
expedient to make an Order. Authorities can also consider other sources of risks to trees with
significant amenity value. For example, changes in property ownership and intentions to fell
trees are not always known in advance, so it may sometimes be appropriate to proactively
make Orders as a precaution.

Paragraph: 010 Reference 1D: 36-010-20140306

Revision date: 06 03 2014

Page 106



~ Poshans Phaoquh

S

—L____

, APPEND 1 &) —

7
/

Q




This page is intentionally left blank



6
2>
=
5
M
Z
O
X

&
O
=
©
S
G
(b




da Iltem 6

Canopy line of W1 as viewed from the public
footpath to the North West

-
QD
SO




©
=
O
=
o
e,
c
)
)
<




T14 as veiwed from East on Linthusrt
Newtown Road




il"ﬂilh

|
|
|

~
!I

9-
P
M
Q
-
o
-
e
-
~
-
n
i
~
o
Q
Q.

O
Q
-
o
©
<
s
-
£
-
ey
G
(#8)
Q
wn
=
M
3
g
2.
ey
()
=
wn
o
|
(s
= 15
rm
Q
wn
o
Qo
e




G2 as viewed from Foxes Close

tem 6

(qv]
[®)
Lo
)
&




q

T4 T3

Canopy Line Of G3 as viewed from Foxes Close




b

T16 as viewed from the South East of site on
Linthurst Road

&

ja Item 6




da Iltem 6

c
(@)

e

<

S Rt A

e ?;.‘“-{:i*.‘_ B




T15 as viewed from rear
garden of 75-77 Linthurst Newtown T17

©
&=
@)
2
o
S
2
)
)
<




From top of garden

75-77 Linthurst
Newtown

*




Canopy line of trees as viewed from front of 93
Linthurst Newtown

©
=
O
=
o
O
c
)
o
<




Canopy line of trees in G1 as viewed from the
North Eastern end of Linthurst Road

Yenda Iltem 6

e




Canopy line of
G1 from North Eastern
< end of Linthurst Road

©
&
O
£
o
S
c
)
o
<




©
&
Q
=
©
=
c
)
o
<

¢
¢

NP TRADING




Canopy line of G3 as viewed from the front of
73 Linthurst Newtown.







55




Canopy line of G3 as viewed from Foxes Close




This page is intentionally left blank



DY (10) Agenda Item 6

Town and Country Pianning {Tree Preservation) (England) Reguiations 2012
Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Tree Preservation Order (13) 2016

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order—

Citation
1. This Order may be cited as Tree Preservation order (13) 2016

Interpretation

2.— (1) |n this Order “the authority” means Bromsgrove District Council.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so
numbered in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference fo a numbered
regulation is a reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012,

Effect

3. (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is
made.
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 188 (power to make tree preservation
orders) or subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners)
and, subject to the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall-

(@) cut down, top, lop, uproot, witfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or

(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wiiful damage or wilful
destruction of, '
any tree specified in the Schedule fo this Order except with the written consent of the
authority in accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State in
accordance with regulation 23, and, where such consent Is given subject to conditions, in
accordance with those conditions. .

Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being
a tree to be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197
(planning permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees),
this Order takes effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

Dated this 3™ August 2016

Signed on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council

6;;9 Flanagan

Prinicipal Solicitor
Authorised by the Council to sign in that behalf

Page 129



Agenda Item 6

SCHEDULE

Specification of trees

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

NONE

Trees specified by reference to an area

(within a dotted black line on the map)

NONE

Groups of Trees

(within @ broken black line on the map)

NONE

Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the map)

No. on | Description | NGR Situation
 Map _
W1 Al trees of | 399725, 272531 Land at side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown,
any size Blackwell
and species
within W1
on the plan.

Page 130




Agenda Item 6

Tree Preservation Order (13) 2016

Pond

Scale 1:1250

This produat ineludes mapping dela liconserd from
Suppller with permission, 08 ticence Nunthor 100023519
4 (2011},

DATE TIME NOTES

BROMSGROVENa bucklitch

LA Ay A Gl

A AUVGUST 2016 Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



da Item 6
APPENDIX (11) ¢y - ra03. 9O

CO/867/2017
IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE
ADMINISTRATIVE COURT
PLANNING COURT

IN THE MATTER OF LAND ADJACENT TO 73 LINTHURST NEWTON,
BLACKWELL

AND

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION UNDER SECTION 288 OF THE
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

BETWEEN:
ACCESS HOMES LLP
Claimant
AND
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL
Defendant

BiRMlNGHAM
A ‘E‘

CONSENT ORDER

Upon the application and grant of permission for statutory review of the Defendant’s
decision dated 9 January 2017 to confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 13 of 2016
relating to Trees on Land at the side and rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

(the “Existing Tree Preservation Order”),

TAKE NOTICE THAT the Claimant and the Defendant agree to an Order in the

following terms:

Page 133



Agenda Item 6

UPON the Defendant agreeing to consent to judgment on the grounds of the Claim set

out in the Schedule 1 hereto

AND UPON the Defendant making a néw Tree Preservation Order in a form which
shall be no more restrictive than the plan and schedule attached to this order at
Schedule 3 (“the New Tree Preservation Order”), SAVE THAT the Claimant does not
agree the extent of the proposed Trée Preservation Order and reserves the right to

make further objections

AND UPON the Claimant agreeing not to or not to permit or allow any other person
to:
(a) Cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy or;
(b} Cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, witful
damage or wilful destruction of the trees specified in the Schedule to the
Existing Tree Preservation Order (except as is permitted by any
application under Part 4 of Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012/605 including the Tree Works
Approvals reference TPO17/010 granted conditionally by the Defendant
on 5 April 2017 and TPO17/011 granted conditionally by the Defendant

on 7 April 2017)
Until the new Tree Preservation Order is made by the Defendant PROVIDED the

New Tree Preservation Order is made within 14 days of the date of the deemed

service of this Consent Order, endorsed by the Court,

Page 134



Agenda Item 6

BY CONSENT IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. Bromsgrove District Council Tree Preservation Order No.13(2016) dated 12
January 2017 shall be quashed;

2. The Defendant shall pay the Claimant’s costs in the agreed sum of £11,743.91

(Eleven Thousand, Seven Hundred and Forty-Three Pounds and Ninety-One

Pence).
Signed on behalf of the Claimant Signed on behalf of the Defendant
. %W .......... Ww@ﬂ“ﬂw
Dated: .55 Q"Ol:‘\

Name: Q(}SP\LU\){) A{\)BQ&V\}S Name: o A-RE W&w

Position: . SOLLCITOR Position: PeirociPac Socicitod
Organisation: | ARR\SON) Organisation: ™ RomS @ Lot DISTRACT

CLARK R\WCikERRYS LoD

Cormonk ordus teads

ate 8%\3 i QC)[?' Az
Dated VAN oo ’

hC ‘-u*-'a“"'

- [cl,ﬂ-

Page 135



Agenda Item 6

SCHEDULE 1

Upon further investigation and pursuant to ground two of the claim, the Defendant
considers it reasonable and proportionate to amend the extent of the trees and
woodlands protected under section 198 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

as in the schedule of the New Tree Preservation Area.

Also pursuant to ground three of the claim, irregular procedure at the site visit such as

to give the appearance of procedural unfairness.

SCHEDULE 2
STATEMENT OF MATTERS JUSTIFYING THE PROPOSED AGREED ORDER

1. The parties agree that the attendance of the site visit by the tree officer without
the Development Control Manager, as is the usual practice of the Defendant,
is sufficient in the circumstances of this case to give the impression of
procedural unfairness.

2. Inlight of further information to and assessments by the Defendant’s tree
officers, the Defendant agrees that the area protected by a tree preservation
officer should be reduced. While most of the woodland designation in the
Existing Tree Preservation Order is similarly designated as woodland by the
Forestry Commission and Natural England, additional site visits have
demonstrated that the amenity value of the southiemn area can be adequately
protected by an area order directed towards the established older trees of the

site,

Page 136



Agenda Item 6

SCHEDULE 3
PLAN AND SCHEDULE FOR THE NEW TREE PRESERVATION ORDER

Page 137



c Agenda Item 6

Page 138



Agenda Item 6

TPQ (13) 2016 — Revised First Schedule

Trees specified individually

(encircled in black on the map)

No. | Description National Grid | Situation
on Reference

 Map L.
T Cypress 399763 | 272444 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell

| T2 Cypress 390762 | 272443 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T3 Spruce 398758 | 272439 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T4 Cypress 3097564 | 272435 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T5 Qak 399751 | 272431 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T6 | Chesinut 399747 | 272427 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
17 Spruce 399742 | 272424 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T8 Cypress 399741 | 272422 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
19 Chestnut 399738 | 272420 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T10 | Ash 390737 | 272416 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
Tt | Ash 399729 | 272427 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T12 | Yew 309703 | 272464 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst NeWtown, Blackwell
T13 | Ash 390699 | 272471 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T14 | Ash 399702 | 272485 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwelt
T15 | Chestnut 399729 | 272499 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
Ti6 | Maple 309746 | 272508 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newitown, Blackwell
T17 | Willow 399751 | 272501 | Land adj'acent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T18 | Yew 399759 | 272496 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T19 | Maple 389765 | 272485 | Land adiacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T20 | Ash 309767 | 272519 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T21 | Maple 399763 | 272525 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T22 | Ash 399757 | 272634 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwel]

Page 139




Agenda Item 6

T23 | Apple 399768 | 272517 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T24 | Holly 399790 | 272479 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
T25 | Holly 399792 | 272475 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
Trees specified by reference to an area
(within a dotted black line on the map)
No. |Description National Grid Situation
on Reference '
Map
Al All Holly, Hazel 399749 | 272432 ! Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown
& Yew trees Blackwell
within A1
AZ All Holly, 380717 | 272445 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown
Hawthorn & Yew Blackwell
trees within A2
A3 Al trees of 399709 | 272538 | Land to the rear of 73 Linthurst Newtown
whatever species Blackwell
of trunk diameter
100mm or
greater at 1.5m
within A3.
Groups of Trees
(within a broken black line on the map)
No. | Description National Grid Situation
on Reference
Map
NONE
Woodlands
(within a continuous black line on the map)
No. |Description National Grid Situation
on Reference
Map
Wi All trees, 309847 | 272575 | Land adjacent 73 Linthurst Newtown
coppice -& Blackwell
understorey of

species within
W1

whatever size &

Page 140













- B

D"

Ed

[0

(]

e A
e

-

- o







This page is intentionally left blank



A U&m,&qm&/ﬁwgﬁmw ANQ MJN um, m
dress/Site Details: ,WLN 3 NJ&\N.«\T &,wm\m\ Newtopsn ﬁm&&@m m&m 9y J

: T.E.M.P.O Tree Evaluation Sheet
W&:wﬁoz by: h@vﬁ : Sheet No. of > v ﬂ m Z U _X A \_ WJ

=) T S DB
ree pecies H Amenity Assessment Exped TPO
d - other |~ Score -
Ref (mm} | a-Condition | b - Longevity | © - Visibility | Sub factors | ENCY YIN? Motes
Miked o _ .
Gt | Soecies 5 2 i i

P73 fshy

qGL |34 Ash

T | Bsiy

T3 | Ash

T4 | Ash

-5 | ASh

TE [ Oak

Page 14y

77 B Bigin

R Bilvor Rifth

T4 | Ash

E):

o [Ash

WIS | U [0 0 |0 [U0 oo |0 [WI ]

g i= TR gingTag SA LAV B AN (G
)

Ajjenb o) (soJaz ou vy } sjuiod +7 peNIOTE BARY 1SN SBF41
U3 e e ot |0 [0 Joo (L3 Lo [ W [wo | W )
£
A I I N R N N R R Y

N TS G R G SIS SIS A LA LY

Part 2: Expediency assessment
al ﬁcnnmﬁ: ¢} Relative public visibility
5} Good {highly suitable) 8} Very large frees, or iarge frees that are prominent features (v ige=200sqm} 5y Known threat to iree
3} Falr  (suitable} 4} Large tress,.or mediura frees clearly visible fo the public jge=100-200sqm) 3} Foreseezble threat {o free
1} Poor  {unliksely) 3} Medium frees, or larger irees with limited view ondy (Suitable, med=25-100sam} 2} Percelved threal o tree
0} Unsafe 2} Small frees, or larger ones visible only with difficulty (ntikety, small = 5-255am) 1) Precautionary only
0} Dead 1} Young/v.small or not publicly visible regardless of size (prob unsuitable, <Gsam) 0) Known as an actionable nuisance
b} Longevity dj Cther factors Part 3: Decision guide
5y 1 3} Principal components of arboriculturat features, or veteran frees Any O Do not apply TRPO
4} 40~ 160 4} Members of groups of trees that are important for their cohesion 1~8 TPO indefensible
2} 20— 40 [suitable) 3) Trees with significant historical or commemorative imporiance 7-11 Poes not merit TPO
13 10 — 20 {just suitable) 2} Treas of parficuiarly good form, especially if rare or unusual i2-15 Faossibly merits TPO

0} <1  (unsuitable} 1)} Trees with none of ihe above addifional redeeming fealures 16+ Definitely merits TPO




T.E.M.P.O Tree Evaluation Sheet

. . - . m&»\.}» - —
Evaluation by: nﬁ.&m Date: @ﬂ*yu@,ﬁ.m @%m w,

Shest No. NME of @

ite Details: 3 ‘ S __
ddressiSite Detells: ™ 72 | ihwr ¥ Mewdowr] (Javd adjoimag )
= Tree Species DBH Amenity Assessment - .
d - other mxvm& Score Mvm\w
Qu Ref {mm) | a~ Condition | b - Longevity | ¢ - Visibility | Sub factors | €Y YIN? hotes

173

Holby

5 4 32 1o

!

Holliy

L

i

v %
-

@
C
mW i
/S

T

%%Mxm.
Yoy

1Y

Watlod

1%

Oak.

L0 LA | Lo |
([0 s b (L] 2
o

£ 0P LAl WO L W )
ra
T e TR e X

“Ti9 mmmm ra _ 9 ! i S,
- | 2
G3 e 5 X l &

g L

xSt Bird

[ 7] kN
§ & @& fa ¥kl

£
japiapiog SRRRY SlO SIS
@

wmwa

WLl A
&

Ajiienb o3 (seuoz ou g ) syU1od 4+ PANI2OE BABY ISNHU S8 |

xed

e
G

3 5

&

5} Good
3} Fair
1} Poor
0} Unsafe
0%y Dead

55 00+

0y <10

w%m ek

&) Condition

{highty sultable)
{suitable)
{uniikaly}

b} Longevily

4} 40— 100
2} 20 - 40 {suitable)
1} 10 — 206 {just suitable)

{unsuitabla)

c} Relative public visibility

8) Very large frees, or large frees that are prominent fealures (v ige=200sqm+}
4} Largs tress, or medium trees clearly visible fo the public fige~100-200sqm;
3) Medium trees, or larger trees with limited view only (Sullable, med=25-100sqm)
2} Smail trees, or larger ones visible only with difficulfy wnlikely, smatt = 5-25s5qm)
1} Youngiv.small or not publicly visibls regardless of $ize (prob unsuitable, <Ssgm)

) Otherfactors

5} Principat compenenis of arboricuttural features, or veleran trees
4} Members of groups of tress that are important for their cohesion
3} Trees with significant historical or commemorative importance
2} Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual

1} Trees with none of the above additional redeeming fealures

5} Known threat to free.

3} Foreseeable threat ic tree

2} Perosived threat fo tres

1} Precautionary only

0) Known as an actionable nuisance

Any 0 Do not apply TPO
1-8 TPG indefensitie
711 Does not merit TPO

1215 Possinly merits TPO
16+ Definitely marits TPO




e | Agenda Iltem 6

Forestry Statistics 2017

Introduction, Glossary, Sources

Rei-ease date: 28 September 2017 -
Coverage: United Kingdom
. Geographical breakdown; Country

Issued by; IFOS-Statistics, Forest Resaarch,
231 Corstarphine Road, Edinburgh, EH12 7AT
Enquiries: Jackle Watson 0300 067 5238
statlstics@forestry.gsi.gov.uk
Statistician: Sheila Ward 0300 087 5236
Website: wiww.forestry,gov.uk/statistics
1 | Forestry Statistics 2017 | Introduction, Glossary, Sources |

Page 149



Agenda Item 6

Forestry Statistics 2017

11.1 Sources: Woodland area and planting

————Tntroduction

The ‘definition of woadland in United Kingdom forestry statistics is land under stands of
trees W|th a canopy cover of at Ieast 20% (or having the potentlal to achleVe thls),

mcl ding i tegral open space, and mcludlng felled areas that are awaltlng restocking. There
ls no murn height for trees to form a woodland at maturity, so the defumtion lncludes
woodland scrub but not areas with only shrub species such as gorse or Rhododendron.

There Is no minimum size for a woodland. In this report, statistics based on the National
Forest Inventory (NFI), refer to woods and forests of at least 0.5 hectares, as mapped
through the NFI Previously, flgures based on the 1995 99 Nat|onal Inventory of Woodland
and Trees lncluded sample- based est;mates for woods and forests between 0.1 hectares
and 2.0 hectares in addition to mapped areas of 2.0 hectares or over.

This ls a slrghtly different defrnltlon from that used Internationally which is based on 10%
canopy caver, a minlmum he:ght at m urity of 5m and minimum area of 0 5 hectares The
latest esti ate ‘of the effect of the dlfference n mmimum _canopy tover threshold based on
B9 atlonal Inventory of Woodland and Trees, is that there are around 50

¢ f land with 10-20% canopy cover in the UK (or around 2% of the total
UK woodland area).,

Integral open space is included in woodland area flgures derlved from thée National Forest
Inventorywif the -areas of open space are less than a5 hectares Iarger areas are mapped

‘ Il excluded from thewwoodland area flgures Th|s differs slrghtly frorn the approach
used for the Natlonal Inventory of Woodland and Trees where areas of open space of up to
1.0°hectare were included as woodland.

' Woodland lncludes native and non-native trees; semi- natural and plantation

15

areas, Woodland habltat’ types are not currently differentiated in these statistics,

Most publlc sector woodland is owned by or managed by the Forestry Commission (FC) in
England and Scotlan _l\l \ural R sources Wales (NRW) in Wales, or the Forest Servu:e (FS)
ln Northern Ireland Woodland own d by lo al authorltles, the Mm[stry of Defence, and
other publlc sector bodiés Is included in “prlvate sector woodland",

The Natural Resources Wales woodland areas and land areas shown In this release relate to
areas previously owned or managed by Forestry Commission Wales, They exclude any
areas previously owned or managed by other parts of Natural Resources Wales, such as the
former Environment Agency in Wales and the former Countryside Council for Wales.

The following pages provide more detall on the data sources and methodolegy used to
produce statistics on woodland area and planting. A quality report on Woodland Area,
Planting and Restocking is availahle from our Quality web page.

| Forestry Statistics 2017 | Introduction, Glossary, Sources |
Page 150



Agenda Item 6

First Release

Forestry Statistics 2017

Chapter 1: Woodland Areas and Planting

Release date: 28 September 2017
Coverage: United Kingdom
Geographical breakdown: Country

Issued by: IFOS-Statistlcs, Forast Rasearch,
231 Corstorphine Read, Edinburgh, EH12 7ZAT
Enquiries: Jackie Watson 0300 067 5238

statistics@forestry.gsi.gov.uk
Statistician: Shella Ward 0300 057 5236
Wabsite: www . forestry.gov.uk/statistics

1 | Forestry Statistics 2017 | Chapter 1: Woodland Areas and Planting |
Page 151



Agenda Item 6

Forestry Statistics 2017

4

,hormally require the area to be restocked, but there are some cases In which trees may be

1 1 Woodland Area

£l Jesfi e 3 : fe oo i CARORy—
ver of at_least 20% (25% in Northern Ireland), or havmg the potentlal to achleve thls
The definition relat Jo“land use,_rather than land .cover, so integral open space and felled
areas that are_ewm ng restocking are i mcluded as woodland Further information, lncludmg
how thls UK deflnltlon compares with the international definition of woodland is prowded in
the Sources chapter.

Statistics on woodland area are used to inform government policy and resource allocation,
to provide context to UK forestry and land management Issues and are reported to
international organisations. They are also used in the compilation of natural capital
accounts,

Increases In woodland area result from the creation of new woodland, This can be achieved
through new planting or by natural colonisation of trees on land near existing woodland,
Further information is available in the section on New Planting.

Decreases in woodland area result from the conversion of woodland to other land uses. |
Regulatory approval is usually required before trees can be falled, Felling approval will

e

permanently removed, generally for environmental reasons. The permanent removal of
trees may also be authorised under planning regulations, to enable development.

Most public sector woodland is owned and managed by the Forestry Commission {FC) in =
England and Scotland, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) in Wales and the Forest Service -
(FS) in Northern Ireland. Other public sector woodland (e.q. owned by local authorities) is

included with privately owned woodland as “private sector” in this release.

The Natural Resources Wales woodland areas and land areas shown in this release relate to
areas previously owned or managed by Forestry Commission Wales. They exclude any
areas previously owned or managed by other parts of Natural Resources Wales, such as the
former Environment Agency in Wales and the former Countryside Council for Wales.

| Forestry Statistics 2017 | Chapter 1: Woodland Areas and Planting |
Page 152



Agenda Item 7

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Mr P. J. Conversion of existing barn to form two 30.11.2017 17/00459/FU
Whittaker bedroom dwelling L

Stoney Lane Farm, Stoney Lane, Broad
Green, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire B60
1Lz

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused

This application needs to be considered by Planning Committee, since the
applicant is an Elected Member of Bromsgrove District Council

Consultations

Ecology Consulted 26.10.2017
No objection

Building Control PP Consulted 26.10.2017
No Obijection

Highways - Bromsgrove Consulted 15.11.2017
No objection

Tutnall And Cobley Parish Council Consulted 05.10.2017
No comments received

Drainage Engineers Internal Planning Consultation Consulted 05.10.2017
No objection subject to Condition relating to surface water drainage

WRS - Contaminated Land Consulted 05.10.2017
No objection subject to suitable conditions

Publicity
Site notice displayed 6.10.2017 — Expired on 16.11.2017
No comments received

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP19 High Quality Design

BDP16 Sustainable Transport

BDP15 Rural Renaissance

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
SPG1

Page 153



Agenda Item 7

Plan reference

SPG4

Relevant Planning History

08/1032 Proposed Change of use of Former Approved 04.03.2009
Redundant Agricultural Building to Light
Industrial Use and Insertion of Two New
Fire EXxits.

16/1028 Change of use of farmhouse and 15.02.2017
attached barns to form holiday let
accommodation with reinstatement roof
works to the attached barns; change of
use of detached barn to create dwelling
house with single storey extension;
creation of new access track and
parking area to farmhouse and
remediation and reinstatement works to
dovecot

16/1029 Change of use of farmhouse and Approved 15.05.2017
attached barns to form holiday let
accommodation with reinstatement roof
works to the attached barns; change of
use of detached barn to create dwelling
house with single storey extension;
creation of new access track and
parking area to farmhouse and
remediation and reinstatement works to
dovecot: Listed Building Consent

Assessment of Proposal

The application site consists of an existing building which is located not far from the
centre point of the farmyard. It is surrounded by a complex of farm buildings, some of
which are traditional and some modern. The farmhouse is 19th century Grade Il listed.
The site is located in the Green Belt.

The proposal is for the conversion of an existing recently built/repaired redundant building
to a two bedroom dwelling.

Members will be aware that National Policy on development in the Green Belt is set out in
the National Planning Policy Framework which advises that the essential characteristics
of Green Belts are their openness and permanence. There is a general presumption
against inappropriate development in the Green Belt unless very special circumstances
exist. Most new development should be regarded as inappropriate, but for certain defined
exceptions.

In order to assess whether or not the proposal would comprise inappropriate
development in the Green Belt it is necessary to assess its impact on the openness of the

Page 154



Agenda Item 7

Plan reference

Green Belt and its purpose. Paragraph 79 of the Framework establishes that the
fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land
permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and
permanence. Paragraph 80 states that the Green Belt serves five purposes including to
assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment and to check the unrestricted
sprawl of large built up areas.

The building is in good condition and does not require substantial structural remedial
repairs. | therefore consider the structure to be of a permanent and substantial
construction.

The proposal would introduce a residential use into an area characterised by agricultural
use. The parking of vehicles associated with such a use and the associated domestic
paraphernalia, including garden furniture, structures and play equipment (which in the
main, could not be controlled by planning condition) would have an adverse effect on the
openness of the Green Belt, in that it would be reduced. Furthermore, the domestic use
of the building would encroach into this area of countryside which would conflict with the
purpose of the Green Belt. Whilst in isolation, the loss of openness and impact on
purpose would be small, it would nevertheless harm the essential characteristics and
purpose of the Green Belt. | therefore conclude that because the proposal would not
preserve the openness of the Green Belt and would conflict with the purposes of
including land within it, it would result in inappropriate development in the Green Belt.
Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not be
approved except in very special circumstances.

The Framework at paragraph 55 states that to promote sustainable development in rural
areas, housing should be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural
communities. Local planning authorities should avoid new isolated homes in the
countryside unless there are special circumstances, including where there is an essential
need for a rural worker to live permanently at or near their place of work in the
countryside, or where the development would re-use redundant or disused buildings and
lead to an enhancement of the immediate setting.

In light of the foregoing, | find that the special circumstances required to justify a new
isolated home in this location has not been demonstrated. The location of the new
dwelling would not enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities. This brings the
scheme into conflict with the Bromsgrove District Plan and the Framework as a result.

Policy BDP15.1 (c) states that the Council will support proposals that satisfy the social
and economic needs of the rural communities by encouraging the conversion of suitably
located buildings. The aim of Policy BDP19 is to deliver high quality people focused
space. This includes at BDP19.1 (m) providing sufficient functional space in residential
developments for everyday activities which meets people’s needs and expectations. Due
to its poor location it would be harmful to the residential amenity and the day to day living
of any future occupiers in terms of the close proximity of the adjacent farm buildings.

In conclusion, the proposal would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt.
Further harm would be caused as a result of loss of openness and the conflict that would
result with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. No very special
circumstances exist to clearly outweigh the harm the proposed development would cause

Page 155



Agenda Item 7

Plan reference

to the Green Belt and the other harm identified. The scheme would also lead to
unacceptable living conditions for intended future occupiers.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be Refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposal results in a dwelling in an isolated location which is remote from
services and facilities required for day-to-day living and access from the site would
be car dependent. Paragraph 55 of the NPPF states that new isolated homes in
the countryside should be avoided unless there are special circumstances.

The building is not disused and the development would not lead to an
enhancement to the immediate setting of the building. The proposal is therefore
contrary to any of the special circumstances contained within paragraph 55 and
consequently the proposal is not considered to be sustainable development. The
proposal is therefore considered to be inappropriate development in the Green
Belt, which is by, definition, harmful. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies
BDP1, BDP15(c) and BDP16 in the Bromsgrove District Plan and the provisions
set out in the NPPF.

2. The close proximity of the existing farm buildings would cause an undue
overbearing impact and would therefore result in a poor quality living environment
for the intended future occupiers of the new dwelling, contrary to Policies BDP15,
BDP16 and BDP19 of the Bromsgrove District Local Plan 2017 and the provisions
of SPG1 and the NPPF.

Case Officer: Nina Chana Tel: 01527 548241 Ext 3207
Email: nina.chana@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 156



Agenda Iltem 8

N f :

Agglliecgnt Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.
Redditch Hybrid application comprising: Outline planning 31.10.2017 17/00701/OUT
Gateway application (with matters of appearance,

Infrastructure landscaping, layout, scale and details of internal

Ltd circulation routes reserved) for the development

on a phased basis of 32ha of employment land
for business/industrial uses (Use Classes B1,
B2, B8). The development shall include:
landscaping, parking, associated infrastructure,
utilities, drainage (including SUDS) and ground
engineering works; and Full planning application
for Phase 1 Ground Engineering works, and
details of means of access to the site from the
A4023.

Redditch Gateway, Land Adjacent to the A4023,
Coventry Highway, Redditch, Worcestershire

RECOMMENDATION:

That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Head of Planning and Regeneration to
GRANT planning permission subject to the applicant entering into a suitable legal
mechanism to secure the following:

1. £200,000.00 to be paid on first occupation and held for a period of 15 years
from its receipt in the form of a bond and management arrangement to support
HGV routing.

2. biodiversity offset scheme for each phase of development and biodiversity
monitoring contribution.

1.0 Consideration and Determination of Cross Boundary Application

1.1  Three identical applications have been submitted which include land within three
LPA boundaries (Stratford, Bromsgrove and Redditch).

1.2  The consideration of the impacts of a development proposal are not altered by
political boundaries and cannot be considered in isolation. Members need to
consider the application as a whole, (not just that part of the development within its
own administrative boundary) and come to a decision based upon that
consideration. However, Members will only be determining the application in so far
as it relates to the administrative boundary of Bromsgrove District. For reference
this relates to land North of the Coventry Highway and Blacksoils Brook / east of
Ravensbank Business Park.

Page 157



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

The fact that the development proposal straddles three Local Planning Authority
boundaries does however have a bearing upon each authorities responsibilities for
enforcement of any planning conditions which may be imposed in the event that
permission is granted by each Local Planning Authority. Whilst the purpose of
some of the recommended conditions will be common to all three applications,
others relating to specific areas of the development or issues which are confined
or unique to particular parts of the site will only be imposed by the particular LPA
within which those issues arise.

Consultations

Beoley Parish Council
Response awaited

Mappleborough Green Parish Council (Stratford)

Make the following comments:

Insufficient time to consider the information submitted with the application

Unable to provide consultation response until the end of October 2017

Proposed scale was unknown until the public consultation organised by Stoford’s
Government describes site as ‘regeneration’ despite it being a greenfield site
(23.08.2017)

Amended submission:

Object to the application for the following reasons:

Significant impact

Change character of area

Increased traffic in both passenger and HGVs

Removal of land from Green Belt would diminish open countryside and create an
urban landscape

Impossible to screen all buildings and associated structures — permanent loss of
countryside

Development would distract from nearby listed buildings

Do not accept no significant change in number of trucks travelling through
Mappleborough Green and Studley

Traffic fundamental issue for various communities on the A435 corridor

Local District and County Councillors do not support application

People in Mappleborough Green generally against development

Three Councils should commission long-term pollution and traffic volume
measurements along the A435

Question need — empty business units in Redditch. Brownfield sites should be
developed first

Low unemployment in Redditch — future employees would travel from outside the
local area — increased pollution

Referred to as ‘Regeneration’ but it is a greenfield site

Great crested newts, bats and other species reside on the site

Site and surroundings subject to flooding, and has a tendency to become
waterlogged — associated impact on Ipsley Marsh SSSI

Quote from North Worcestershire Economic Development and Regeneration,
Redditch Eastern Gateway — Economic Impact Study June 2013 (20.10.2017)

Page 158



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

2.3  Studley Parish Council (Stratford)

Object to the application for the following reasons:

e Adverse impact on visual amenity due to prominent nature of site

e Lighting visible from all over the district — detracting from open countryside

e Detrimental impact on listed Gorcott Hall and its setting

e No identified users, no identifies employment opportunities and no need for
development — no shortage of employment opportunities in Redditch and
surrounding area

e |solated from residential areas in Redditch with no viable pedestrian or cycle
access routes and no public transport links

e Redditch has ample brownfield sites within its boundaries which have existing
infrastructure to facilitate construction

e Infrastructure not in place to support traffic from proposed development

e No public transport provision for the site

e No measures to reduce inevitable deterioration in air pollution that will impact on
the Air Quality Management Area in Studley

e No proposal to alleviate HGV traffic along the A435 through Studley - measures
should be put in place to deter HGV traffic along this route. Additional housing
development in the area will mean workers travel along this route to the
development (16.08.2017)

2.4  Tanworth in Arden Parish Council (Stratford)
No representation (07.08.2017)

2.5 Spernall Parish Council (Stratford)
None received

2.6 Morton Bagot Parish Council (Stratford)
None received

2.7 Ullenhall Parish Council (Stratford)
Object to the application for the following reasons:
e Infrastructure is not in place to support development
e Adverse impact on Ullenhall from excess traffic (04.08.2017)

2.8 Beaudesert Parish Council (Stratford)
None received

2.9 Henleyin Arden Parish Council (Stratford)
None received

2.10 Oldberrow Parish Meeting (Stratford)
None received

2.11 Sambourne Parish Council
Object to the application for the following reasons:
e Strong environmental arguments against the development

Page 159



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

e Detrimental visual effect on the area — what was Green Belt would disappear and
Redditch would extend right up to the A435

e Increase in traffic, particularly of HGV movements along the A435 — increased
level of congestion, noise and air pollution

e HGV routing plan is a vain hope — hauliers and carriers would use the most
effective route. All discussions of alternative routing are ill-considered

e Minimal need — similar industrial units in Redditch lie empty

e Brownfield sites should be developed first

e Low level of unemployment in Redditch — future workers will travel from further
afield - unsustainable

e SDC appears to have ‘handed over’ land to Redditch for development — when was
this decided, by whom and where are the details?

e Unnecessary

e Detrimental effect (22.08.2017)

2.12 Cllr George Atkinson (Stratford)
e No comment

2.13 CliIr Mike Gittus (Stratford)
e No comment

2.14 Cllr Justin Kerridge (Stratford)
e The principle of development for employment purposes has already been agreed
by Stratford Council

2.15 CllIr Stephen Thirlwell (Stratford)

e All development traffic should be monitored to ensure that it does not use any of
the country lanes surrounding the Warwickshire villages in that area such as
Ullenhall. Such village roads and lanes were not designed for the use of large
HGVs.

2.16 ClIr Hazel Wright (Adjacent Ward Member Studley with Sambourne, (Stratford)
OBJECTION

e Not clear how good design will be secured

e The site has been derived through loss of green belt

The claim that the development will create jobs for local people is not
substantiated

The development would harm the setting of listed buildings

Landscaping cannot screen the development

The A435 will be impacted during the construction phase

The HGV routing plan will only be as effective as its enforcement and how it will be
enforced is unclear

Page 160



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

2.17 Worcestershire Highway Authority and Warwickshire Highway Authority

Have prepared a joint response as follows:

Both Highway Authorities have undertaken a full assessment this planning
application. Based on the appraisal of the development proposals and the
additional information which has been submitted, the Highway Authority has no
objection subject to conditions and financial obligations.

Worcestershire Highway Authority as no objection to the TA and confirms it
accords with national planning policy and guidance.

The document concludes that various mitigation is required to enable modal
choice and overcome issues on the highway network, which will be secured and
implemented through suitable conditions and financial obligations., which is
acceptable. Warwickshire Highway Authority has also identified a need for a
Highway Safety Improvement Scheme at the junction of the A435 Southbound /
A4023 Coventry Highway. This would be conditioned and delivered under a
Section 278 Agreement.

Framework Travel Plan;

The applicants have submitted a Framework Travel Plan, which has been
prepared on their behalf by BWB.

The Highway Authorities support the principal shown within the document and will
require the measures and incentives to be implemented on first occupation of the
development proposals as set out in Section 7 of the document. In addition the
Highway Authorities will also require the submission of the first staff travel surveys
within 12 months of first occupation of the development, suitable conditions will be
worded to this effect.

The Framework Travel Plan will be overseen and managed by Worcestershire
County Council.

Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) Routing Strategy;

The applicants have submitted a potential HGV Routing Strategy as part of the
Transport Assessment in Appendix H. The aim of this plan is to prevent HGVs
routing south down the A435 impacting on Mappleborough Green and Studley, the
latter which forms part of an Air Quality Management Area.

Both Highway Authorities support the principal shown within the document and will
require a full HGV Routing Strategy to be submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authorities and to be implemented on first occupation of the
development. In addition, both Highway Authorities will also require the submission
of the first HGV routing surveys within 12 months of first occupation of the
development, suitable conditions will be worded to this effect.

In addition, the Highway Authorities require a contribution of £200,000.00 to be
secured via a s106 agreement to be submitted prior to first occupation and held for
a period of 15 years, to allow the mitigation of HGVs on each Highway Authorities
networks should they be deemed necessary.

Page 161



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

*The TA has been independently reviewed by Transport Consultants Mott

MacDonald commissioned by Bromsgrove District Council. The findings of Mott
MacDonald are discussed in Section 17 of this report.

The TA states that the impact of the proposed development is minimal. The review
by MM finds no reason why this shouldn’t be the case. MM note that Warwickshire
County Council and Worcestershire County Council have been engaged
throughout the process and has led to a well scoped assessment. MM agree with
the findings of the Transport Assessment based on the information included within
the TA. It should be noted that MM have not undertaken an independent review of
the VISSIM or Paramics modelling; however, they understand that these models
have been approved by Highways England and Warwickshire County Council
respectively.

2.18 Highways England

NO OBJECTION. Following comments raised:

e Following a review of the submitted Transport Assessment, the traffic arising from
the development would have limited implications for the operation of the Highways
England network

e Improvements to Junction 3 of the M42 is being Government funded and are
currently under development (11.08.2017)

2.19 Coal Authority

NO COMMENT. The site does not fall within the defined coalfield (08.08.2017)

2.20 CPRE (Warwickshire)

OBJECTION

e The development would ruin the setting and approach to the town of Redditch on
the A4023

e The proposal conflicts with Policies CS1 and CS9 of the SDC Core Strategy

e The proposed development would have an adverse impact upon the residents of
Winyates Green as industrial development is not compatible with residential
development

e The northern part of the site should remain open countryside

e There is no shortage of employment land for Redditch, so the development is not
required

2.21 CPRE (Worcestershire)

OBJECTION

» Loss of natural or semi-natural species rich meadow. No planted (or seeded)
resource can ever properly replace a natural one. Any planted resource is
inevitably artificial.

» Loss of hedgerows which are themselves an element of the historic environment

Page 162



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

» Appropriate buffer zones will be needed along the edge of the wood to the
northeast of the Ravensbank portion of the site to ensure that the wood (with
protected species is not damaged)

» The Ravensbank bridleway along the edge of the site should be preserved.

« The site is upstream of Ipsley Alders Marsh Nature Reserve and particular care will
be needed to prevent pollution of Blacksoils Brook which passes through the site.

* The setting of Gorcott Hall which is a Grade 1I* listed building

* The northern part of the site is adjacent to the existing Ravensbank and Moons
Moat industrial areas. If it is to be developed, industrial uses would be appropriate.
This has long been acknowledged through the designation of the Bromsgrove part
as an Industrial ADR. The northern part of the Winyates Triangle is a natural
extension to this.

« Conversely the southern part of the Winyates triangle adjoins the Winyates Green
housing area but could be developed for housing (provided the environmental and
other constraints could be overcome)

2.22 Environment Agency

NO OBJECTION subiject to conditions (summary of main comments below)

e Flood risk - Although EA Floor Maps indicate that the site falls in Flood Zone 1,
detailed modelling indicates that parts of the site lie within Flood Zones 3a and 3b
— through rerouting and redesigning channels and removing structures, vast
majority of site would be in Flood Zone 1 post-development with no increase in
flood risk downstream

e Biodiversity - Biodiversity information lacking — content that this could be secured
by condition

e Construction Environmental Management Plan - No impact from development in
terms of groundwater pollution or levels subject to Construction Environment
Management Plan and surface water drainage scheme secured by condition

e Groundwater and connectivity with SSSI — unlikely that development would
significantly impact groundwater levels within SSSI

e Water resource and efficiency — encourage careful consideration of water use and
sustainable water consumption during construction (26.09.2017)

2.23 Forestry Commission
No objection (28.07.2017)

2.24 Historic England

Make the following comments:

e A number of heritage assets close to the site — the most important being the Grade
I1* listed Gorcott Hall which has historic fabric from the early 16™ century onwards.
There are also associated Grade Il listed structures

e The Built Heritage Assessment provided as part of the application concludes that
the development would cause less than substantial harm to the significance of the
Grade II* listed building — the harm is described as ‘moderate’, which is a
reasonable assessment and a conclusion that HE endorse

Page 163



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

e Involved in discussions at pre-application stage — the scheme was considerably
improved at that stage; mainly by moving new buildings further away from Gorcott
Hall and ensuring that they are kept as low as possible within the landscape

e However, further scope to reduce the impact of the proposals on the setting of the
listed buildings which would be desirable in lessening their impact on the
significance of these buildings

e Harm needs to be balanced against public benefits (16.08.2017)

Amended submission:
Do not wish to offer any comments (26.10.2017)

2.25 Natural England

NO OBJECTION —
subject to appropriate mitigation being secured. Following comments raised:

e Without appropriate mitigation, the development would damage or destroy the
interest features for which Ipsley Alders Marsh Site of Special Scientific Interest
has been notified

e Water quality and quantity implications for Ipsley Alders Marsh should be taken
into consideration which addressing site design, drainage and attenuation

e Construction Environmental Management Plan should be conditioned to avoid

damage to SSSI

Surface water drainage scheme should be conditioned

Development should comply with CS.7

Impact on public rights of way should be considered

Agricultural Land Classification report submitted does not fully follow ALC Revised

Guidelines and conclusion that the land is subgrade 3b and 4 is un-evidenced —

new ALC survey should be submitted to include soil survey of the land

(22.08.2017)

2.26  NWEDR (North Worcestershire Economic Development
SUPPORT

2.27 Ramblers Association
NO OBJECTION in principle. There will be matters of detail upon which we may
wish to comment but that may be best left until the reserved matters stage.

2.28 Worcestershire County Council Strategic Planning
Object to the application for the following reasons:

e Minerals and Waste — full justification and detail of any bunds will be required at
reserved matters stage and visual impact considered in any LVIA. Full planning
application for Phase 1 does not appear to include any details of the amount of
material to be deposited or heights of bunds created, nor any justification for
requirement. Any bunds proposed should be treated as a proposal for landfilling.
Holding objection until such time as sufficient information is provided to enable the
landscaping proposals to be assessed in more detail. Levels should be

Page 164



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

conditioned. Areas for waste collection should be incorporated at reserved matters
stage
e Minerals — site is not in an area of identified mineral deposits. No formal comments
to make
e Public Rights of Way — no objection in general however some existing public rights
of way do not appear to be shown on submitted plans on their definitive lines, or
are missing. Proposals incorporate diversion of PROW — application should be
made to LPA. Clarification required on how footpaths around new road junction
works are to be incorporated — conflict with landscaping works (pond and retaining
wall). If PROW are to be shared with cycles, would normally require a width of 5m
provided
e Ecology — clarification required prior to determination. Insufficient information to
demonstrate no-net-loss of biodiversity. Biodiversity Impact Assessment required
to demonstrate that offsetting is practical, deliverable and securable. The
‘Hydrology Review Report’/’Eco-Hydrology Report’ which is referenced has not
been submitted — cannot be confident in conclusions drawn. No reference to
Worcestershire Green Infrastructure Partnership’s Gl Concept Plan. Queries
raised regarding author of ES Ecology chapter, reference to ‘over-mature’ trees,
diversion of water channels, impacts on downstream SSSI, impacts on
Ravensbrook Drive Bridle Track LWS, impacts on county boundary hedgerow,
assertion that GCN unlikely to use grassland, creation of mammal pass
e Water Environment — essential that mitigation specifications proposed by
hydrological expert have been evaluated and are supported by appropriately
gualified and experienced ecologist. No evidence to support assertion that SSSI is
fed from local spring water. Disconnect between Water Environment and Ecology
chapters of ES. Unclear what ‘moderate adverse impact’ on groundwater
contamination of SSSI is based on. De-culverting of Blacksoils Brook is welcomed
but opportunity missed in achieving ecological betterment
e Draft Mitigation Enhancement Summary — provided in draft format which is
inappropriate for a planning application. Queries raised regarding authors, specific
mitigation measures, use of vague language, mitigation required for each bat
species, implications of hedgerow clearance, 30 year habitat management plan.
Lighting should be conditioned. Insufficient information to demonstrate ‘no
significant impact’ on Alders Marsh SSSI or ‘no significant impact on retained and
newly created habitats’.
e Key recommendations, prior to determination:
o Ecological Constraints and Opportunities Plan should be prepared and
submitted
o Biodiversity offsetting should be explicit
o Suitably competent and experienced ecologist engaged which cohesively
takes into account drainage recommendations
o ES should be revised to address valuation of habitats (25.08.2017)

Additional comments:

e Satisfied that final detail of bunds could be considered at reserved matters stage

e Generally satisfied with proposals set out in outline element, subject to clarification
on approach to screening of service yards for the Phase 1 part of development
(12.09.2017)

Page 165



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

2.29 Warwickshire Fire and Rescue Service

NO OBJECTION
subject to a condition which secures provision of water supply and fire hydrants
necessary for fire fighting purposes at the site. (16.08.2017)

2.30 Warwickshire Police (Crime Reduction and Community Safety)
NO OBJECTION
e Subsequent reserved matters should ensure the specification for openings, roller
shutters, doors and windows, are designed to deter crime.
e Introduction of features within road layout to discourage car cruising events
e Security of site offices, plant and equipment during the construction phase.

Amended submission:
No further observations (16.10.2017)

2.31 Worcestershire Requlatory Services (Bromsgrove and Redditch)
Contaminated Land

Make the following comments:

e Contaminated land — assessment, which has been carried out in accordance with
current guidance and best practice, considers site to be low risk in terms of risk
from contaminated land. Agree with recommendation within submitted report that
further investigation is required and this could be secured by condition

e Air quality — a number of shortcomings associated with submitted Air Quality
Assessment (AQA). However, when considering the nature of the proposed
development, its location and current air quality in the local area within
Worcestershire, it is unlikely that refining the model further would result in different
conclusions. The AQA concludes a “negligible” impact on air quality within
Worcestershire which is considered to be reasonable. Conditions recommended
(31.08.2017)

Amended submission:
Previous recommendations still apply (18.10.2017)

2.32 Woodland Trust

OBJECTION to the application for the following reasons:
e Loss of two veteran oak trees T73 and T74 and proximity of development to two
veteran oaks T46 and T92 whose root protection zones will be impacted
e All four veteran oaks are verified on the Ancient Tree Inventory
Essential that no trees displaying ancient/veteran characteristics are lost as part of
the development
Intensification of recreational activity of humans
Fragmentation as a result of separation of adjacent semi-natural habitats
Noise and light pollution during both construction and operational phases
Lopping/fellings where trees overhang public areas

Page 166



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

e Safety issues threatening longer-term retention of trees
e Removal of T73 and T74

e Documentation incorrectly states that only one veteran oak tree is present on site
(24.08.2017)

2.33 Worcestershire Wildlife Trust

OBJECTION for the following reasons:

e Detrimental impact on Ipsley Alders SSSI and nature reserve — direct groundwater
links between development site and the SSSI. Concern that some of the
assumptions about the effectiveness of drainage and SUDS in the ES are
incorrect. Potential impact on the main water source to the SSSI. Actual
groundwater strikes as a result of land forming would open a direct pathway for
pollution of the SSSI. Further clarification required

e Alter hydrology of adjacent Ravensbank Drive Local Wildlife Site — loss of two
small watercourses which currently feed the LWS and the impact this would have.
Further clarification required

e Habitat losses and impacts do not appear to be mitigatable onsite given the
indicative layout — insufficient information to evidence that biodiversity offsetting
can be done effectively. Value of some habitat features including grassland and
over-mature trees have been undervalued in the ES. Further clarification required

e Surveys have shortcomings leading to inaccurate results — for example,
assessment of species rich grassland, treatment of over-mature trees, bat survey
methodology and great crested newt mitigation strategy (24.08.2017)

Amended submission:

Continue to object to the application for the following reasons:

Insufficient detail on biodiversity offsetting

Insufficientdetail on proposals to mitigate harm to protected species
Insufficient detail to determine impacts on Ravensbrook Drive LWS
Additional information addresses previous concerns relating to SSSI

Pleased to note species rich grassland is being retained

Robust Construction Environmental Management Plan required (31.10.2017)

2.34 Warwickshire Flood Risk Management

NO OBJECTION subiject to conditions
(29.08.2017)

Amended submission:
No additional comments (31.10.2017)

Page 167



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

2.35 North Worcestershire Water Management (LLFA)
NO OBJECTION subiject to conditions. Following comments raised:
e Flood risk
o Site specific modelling indicates that the channels on site typically become
overwhelmed readily
o Modelling following mitigation indicates that overland flows across the site
would be virtually eliminated, exception bing the 1000 year storm would still
see some inundation from the Brooksoils Brook channel just upstream from
Coventry Highway embankment. At lower return periods almost no overland
flow at all, and almost all water held within proposed water course network
o Hydrograph provided within model indicates that overall discharge post
development is reduced compared to pre-development rates
e Groundwater and hydrology
o Addendum to ES requested to clarify location of trial pits to establishes
extent to which infiltration from site contributes to groundwater
e Sustainable drainage scheme
o As outline, no specific detail on design and layout of SUDs, however
indicated features considered to be acceptable (26.09.2017)

2.36 Worcestershire Water Officer
NO OBJECTION subject to condition (16.08.2017)

2.37 Warwickshire Wildlife Trust
OBJECTION

e Loss of priority habitat: lowland meadow — ecological survey of the grassland was
carried out in September which is sub-optimal time of year given that many of the
wildflowers have finished flowering and it can be very difficult to identify them.
Survey still found relatively high diversity in wildflowers present. Warwickshire is
lacking in lowland grassland

e Proposed mitigation for protected species: great crested newt and badger —
developable area should be reduced to retain pond 3 and its surrounding habitat.
Insufficient information to evidence that off-site mitigation can be achieved

e Mitigation and compensation for overall loss of biodiversity — Biodiversity Impact
Assessment has not been submitted. EIA states that biodiversity offsetting will be
required but no detail has been provided

e Impact on nearby Ipsley Alders Marsh SSSI — development site linked to SSSI via
groundwater rather than by direct flow from onsite watercourses. Any changes to
groundwater levels may adversely affect SSSI

e Mitigation for the impacts on neighbouring Local Wildlife Site — Ravensbrook Drive
Bridle Track is a LWS that runs along the western boundary of the southern site
area. Negative impact through adjacent road and diversion of watercourses

e Survey effort regarding protected species — bat surveys have not followed best
practice guidance. EIA fails to consider the impact of light spill from the site
affecting off-site roosts (24.08.2017)

Page 168



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

Amended submission:
Maintain objection. Following comments raised:

e Retention of meadow grassland to south of site addresses one of the reasons for
objection

e Maintains that insufficient information submitted to evidence that off-site mitigation
can be achieved

¢ Insufficient information on proposed biodiversity offsetting (19.10.2017)

2.38 Stratford on Avon District Council Conservation Officer

Make the following comments:

e Extensive pre-application discussions — the application now submitted is broadly in
line with the end product of the pre-application discussions

e Historic England involved with pre-application discussions and agree entirely with
the consultation response received from them — further mitigating measures could
further reduce the level of harm, and there may be some cope for this as part of
any subsequent reserved matters process

e Significant degree of success in achieving, through those discussions, a lower
level of harm with regard to the setting of the Grade II* listed Gorcott Hall

e Main difference with last provisional plans discussed at pre-application stage is
increase in height of units A and AA from 18m to 21m — they have an adverse
impact on the setting of Gorcott Hall and increase in height exacerbates this
adverse impact — slightly higher from a mid-point within the ‘less than substantial
harm’ spectrum

e Agree with conclusions within the submitted Heritage Assessment — development
will result in less than substantial harm to the significance of Gorcott Hall in the
middle of the less than substantial threshold, low level of less than substantial
harm to associated buildings and very low levels of less than substantial harm for
other listed buildings

e Only building considered which is not focused on in the submitted Heritage
Statement is the Grade Il listed Church of the Holy Ascension — vert low level of
less than substantial harm

e Very significant public benefits required to outweigh less than substantial harm
identified (25.08.2017)

Amended submission:
Make the following comments:
e Amendments slightly positive in that they would increase the distances from
a) Designated heritage assets (within SDC remit) to the southeast of the
southern part of the site
b) Built form within nearest part of development site
¢ Assuming that there would not be an associated increase in height of the realigned
built form, removals of substantive built form in the very south fo the site is helpful
in terms of ameliorating any adverse impacts on the setting of nearby listed
buildings (18.10.2017)

Page 169



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

2.39 Bromsgrove District Council Conservation

Make the following comments:

e Gorcott Hall, a Grade II* listed building, comprises a small country house dating
back to the 15™ centur}{, but with substantial additions and alterations taking place
in the 16", 17" and 18™ centuries

e The Heritage Statement submitted with the application concludes that the harm to
the significance of Gorcott Hall is less than substantial, falling within the middle of
that assessment, and would therefore be described as moderate

e Detailed pre-application discussions took place between Conservation Officers for
Bromsgrove, stratford upon Acon and Hisotirc England

e The scheme largely mirror the draft scheme discussed in September 2016

e Development to the southwest of Gorcott Hall would be restricted to 9-12m in
height and ground levels would be redcued to sink the units down into the
landscape

e Combined with the landscape buffer visibility and impact on Gorcott Hall would be
reduced

e Zone to the north of the brook has been increased to 21m from pre-app
discussions at 18m which is disappointing

e Agree that harm to significance of Gorcott Hall would be less than substantial, and
within that assessment, is at the very least moderate

e Imperative that at the reserved matters stage a great deal of thought is given to;
materials and especially colour schemes, specifics of ground profiling, soft
landscaping, hard landscaping, security, lighting, land management and
photomontages from Gorcott Hall (25.08.2017)

2.40 Warwickshire Flood Risk Management
NO OBJECTION subiject to conditions to control discharge of surface water and
mitigate risk of its contamination.

2.41 SDC Governance and Community Safety
NO COMMENTS on the basis of the application being for industrial units
(30.08.2017)

2.42 Warwickshire County Council ECOLOGY

Initial response
Objects to the application unless concern about the nationally important habitat of
UK Priority Lowland Meadow is resolved. All other ecological concerns can be
resolved through conditions and/or obligations:
e Protected species
o — Bat surveys do not conform to the Bat Conservation Trust Guidelines,
however indicate that hedgerows and brook are important flight-lines.
Essential to ensure unbroken and unlit commuting routes from woodland.
o Badgers on site would have reduced foraging areas — acceptable subject to
landscaping planted to maximise foraging potential and connectivity for
mammals in road junction layout.

Page 170



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

o Barn owl, soldierfly and great crested newt can be resolved through
landscaping reserved matters and conditions (constructional environmental
management plan and lighting scheme)

e Protected habitat

o Southernmost fields are Lowland Meadow UK Priority Habitat which is a
rare and declining habitat that is of county importance where all remnant
pastures need to be secured and enhanced. The retention and
enhancement of these fields would reduce the ecological impact of the
development

o County important Ravensbrook Drive Bridle Track adjacent to the western
boundary of the southern site and onsite Blacksoils Brook (both Local
Wildlife Sites) would need to be buffered and secured from impacts from
development including light spill

o Veteran trees should be protected unless this cannot be avoided

e Biodiversity offsetting

o Northern area has potential to provide a net biodiversity gain for habitats but
a loss of linear features

o Southern area would result in a significant loss of habitat and potential gain
for linear features

o Actual losses/gains unknown

o Biodiversity impacts would need to be monitored throughout the build
through biodiversity offsetting schedule within S106 legal agreement
(25.08.2017)

List of recommended conditions and obligations provided (13.09.2017)

Amended submission:
OBJECTION REMOVED. Following comments raised:

e Conditions provided in initial response still applicable

e Suggested wording for legal agreement to secure biodiversity offsetting provided
(31.10.2017)

2.43 Worcestershire County Council ARCHAEOLOGY
NO OBJECTION subiject to standard condition relating to scheme and programme
of site investigation and recording

e Broadly concur with approach suggested in section 8 of Cultural Heritage chapter
of the ES but recommends that the standard percentage-based sampling
approach form the basic requirement for the field evaluation strategy and should
include an appropriate programme of geoarchaeological works and
environmental/palaeoenvironmental sampling (04.09.2017)

2.44 SDC Environmental Health
Makes the following comments:
e Contaminated land — site considered to be ‘low risk’ based on assessments carried
out to date. Further site investigation recommended, but could be dealt with by
conditions

Page 171



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

e Air quality — conclusions of applicant’s transport consultant’s noted in that traffic
generated by development would be dispersed across the network and impacts on
air quality in Studley are unlikely to be significant. Recommends that a quantitative
air quality assessment be carried out so as to have a robust understanding of the
impacts of the development on the Studley AQMA. Concerned with the advisory
status of the HGV Routing Strategy and practicalities of implementation.
Recommended that a robust HGV Routing Strategy be submitted which includes
the construction phase of development

e Noise — Worcestershire Regulatory Services will take lead on noise and vibration
matters on behalf of three Authority areas affected (05.09.2017)

Makes the following comments:

e As Studley is an AQMA, appropriate for impact to be robustly assessed prior to
determination

e Report should include an assessment of impact without the proposed mitigation as
concerned about alternative route in the VRMP — could potentially impact on air
quality in Studley if impractical and therefore should be considered prior to
determination (28.09.2017)

Amended submission:
No objection. Following comments raised:
e Maintains previous response with regards to air quality (24.10.2017)
2.45 Publicity
541 letters sent on the 28th July 2017 (expired 24™ August 2017)
18 site notices were posted on the 31st July 2017 (expired 24™ August 2017)

Press adverts in the Bromsgrove Redditch Standard newspapers on 28" July 2017

541 re-consultation letters sent on the 13" October 2017 (expired 27™ October)

2.46 Neighbour Representations

466 representations were received from local residents in Objection.
The following issues have been raised:

e Principle/Need
No need for the development
Brownfield land and vacant premises should be utilised first
Development should be located adjacent a motorway
Site should be developed for housing in preference to employment uses
The end users are not identified

e Loss of Green Belt/Greenfield
The development would result in the loss of greenfields, green belt and trees

Page 172



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

e Ecology/Biodiversity
The proposal would have a detrimental impact upon ecology / wildlife
Reports are out of date
Harm to Ipsley/Alders SSSI

e Transport/Highways
The proposal would result in traffic congestion on roads which are already heavily
congested
The A4023 and A435 cannot cope with extra traffic
HGV’s will use inappropriate roads
A bypass should be built for Studley
HGVs should be banned from Studley
Enforcement of HGV routing
No vehicular access should be allowed from Farm Moor Lane
The development would encourage ‘rat running’
Insufficient parking is proposed
The development would lead to overspill parking in Far Moor Lane
There is a lack of connections to public transport
The new junction will cause traffic chaos
The development would prejudice road safety

e Amenity/Pollution
The development would result in noise nuisance and consequent loss of amenity
during and following construction
The development would have an adverse impact upon air quality (especially in
Studley)
The development would have an adverse impact upon the quality of life of the local
community
The development would adversely affect health
The development would cause light pollution
The development would be visually intrusive and detract from the outlook enjoyed
by occupiers of the adjacent residential development
The development is too high and too close to Longhope Close
The development would result in litter
The buildings are too high
There is no timescale of the development
The hours of operation of the development should be restricted

e Heritage
The development would have an adverse impact upon the setting of listed
buildings (particularly Gorcott Hall)

e Flooding
The development could cause or exacerbate local surface water flooding issues
Surface water drainage is inadequate

e The other following issues have also been raised:
The proposal would result in an influx of migrant workers
Precedent for further development
The development would have an adverse impact upon house prices

Page 173



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

3.0

3.1

3.2

Petition with 35 signatures received. Grounds for objection:

Lasting impact
Development would inevitably bring:
o more heavy goods traffic
more pollution
more noise
effect the hydrology of the area
further development of green spaces

0 O O O

Petitions objecting to the application on the same grounds as above received for
each of the following roads:

Hollyberry Close — 101 signatures
lllshaw Close — 73 signatures
Kingham Close — 56 signatures
Gateley Close — 21 signatures
Flaxley Close — 47 signatures
Furze Lane — 5 signatures

Jays Close — 18 signatures
Prestbury Close — 21 signatures
Hindlip Close — 8 signatures
Various — 140 signatures

Relevant Policies

The adopted Development Plan setting out the planning policy provisions relevant
to development on the site as a whole comprise the following:

Stratford-on-Avon Core Strategy (2016)
Bromsgrove District Plan (2017)
Redditch Local Plan No.4 (2017)

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP5B Other Development Sites

BDP6 Infrastructure Contributions

BDP13 New Employment Development
BDP14 Designated Employment

BDP16 Sustainable Transport

BDP19 High Quality Design

BDP20 Managing the Historic Environment
BDP21 Natural Environment

BDP22 Climate Change

BDP23 Water Management

BDP24 Green Infrastructure

BDP25 Health and Well Being

Page 174



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

3.3

3.4

3.5

Stratford-on-Avon Core Strategy (2016)

Relevant Policies in the Development Plan for this application are
CS.1 Sustainable Development

CS.2 Climate Change and Sustainable Construction
CS.3 Sustainable Energy

CS.4 Water Environment and Flood Risk

CS.5 Landscape

CS.6 Natural Environment

CS.7 Green Infrastructure

CS.8 Historic Environment

CS.9 Design and Distinctiveness

CS.10 Green Belt

CS.15 Distribution of Development

CS.22 Economic Development

REDD.1 Redditch

REDD.2 Redditch

CS.25 Healthy Communities

CS.26 Transport and Communications

CS.27 Development Contributions

Redditch Local Plan No.4 (2017)

Policy 16 Natural Environment
Policy 22 Road Hierarchy
Policy 24 Development within Primarily Employment Areas

Others

e NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
e NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance

Worcestershire County Council Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3)
Stratford on Avon District Design Guide (information guidance)
Historic England Good Practice Notes 2105:
o GPA 1 - The Historic Environment in Local Plans
o GPA 2 — Manging Significance in Decision-Taking in the Historic
Environment
o GPA 3 — The Setting of Heritage Assets
Air Quality Action Plan for Alcester Road, Studley
Warwickshire Local Transport Plan (2011-2026)
Warwickshire Landscape Guidelines 1993
Planning and Community Safety — Design and Crime Reduction 2006: Planning
Advice Note (informal guidance)
Green Infrastructure Study for Stratford on Avon District Council (2011)
Stratford on Avon Employment Land Assessment 2011

Page 175



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

. Corporate Strategy 2015-2019

. Stratford on Avon Business and Enterprise Strategy 2012-2015

. Stratford District Partnership 2026 Vision — Sustainable Community Strategy

. Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (GLVIA3)

. National Character Areas 17.07.2012

. Guidance on Transport Assessment published jointly by Department for Transport

and Department for Communities and Local Government 2007

3.6 Redditch Borough Plan

3.6.1 The Redditch Borough Local Plan 4 was adopted on 30 January 2017 for the
period 2011-2031

3.6.2 Only a small part of the site providing pedestrian access into the main area of
development lies within Redditch borough. However, the justification for the
allocation of Redditch Gateway with Bromsgrove and Stratford-on-Avon is derived
from the objectively assessed needs of Redditch. Redditch Gateway is therefore
identified on the plan’s key diagram.

3.6.3 BoRLPNo.4 Policy 23 identifies the employment land requirements for Redditch
and notes that Redditch Gateway is “a key initiative for employment provision to
meet Redditch related employment needs.” Around 10ha is therefore allocated
with Bromsgrove District adjacent to the existing Ravensbank development and
further land in Stratford-on-Avon at Gorcott (c 7ha) and Winyates Green (¢ 12ha).

3.6.4 The policy continues that the development will provide a significant enhancement
to the employment land supply through the creation of a “high profile and highly
accessible” employment scheme that will benefit from links to the M42/M40
corridor, able to help support existing business in Redditch and provide opportunity
to diversify the employment base.

3.6.5 Development requirements include the need for a comprehensive development on
the basis of a phased Masterplan that provides for high quality employment in a
landscaped setting and have a co-ordinated, Masterplan approach to delivering a
new primary access.

4.0 Relevant Planning History

This application has also been submitted to Redditch Borough Council and
Stratford District Council

4.1 Redditch

17/00700/OUT (Redditch) PENDING Consideration by Redditch Borough Council
Scheduled committee date: 13" December 2017

Page 176



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

4.2 Stratford

17/01847 (Stratford) Pending Consideration by Stratford District Council
Scheduled committee date: 6" December 2017

89/00702/FUL (northern parcel) A435 And A4023 Interchange Land to the north
west of Adam Lane Mappleborough Green - Business And Science Park within
Use Class B1 Withdrawn 07.02.1990

00/02173/0OUT (southern parcel) Residential development (outline)
Withdrawn 12.03.2002

4.3 Bromsqgrove

There is no relevant planning history for that part of the proposed site within
Bromsgrove District.

ASSESSMENT OF PROPOSAL

5.0 Site Description

5.1 The site extends to approximately 31.5 ha (78 acres) and is within two main land
parcels to the north and south of the A4023 Coventry Highway, a main dual
carriageway arterial road linking from the A435 which forms the eastern boundary
of both parcels.

5.2  The site lies on the edge of the built-up area of Redditch, approximately 2.5 miles
from the town centre. The land is presently in agricultural use.

5.3  To the north of the A4023, the northern parcel (10.28ha) increases in level in a
north/easterly direction and is formed from a series of fields, currently grazed and
defined by semi/mature hedgerows. Trees are generally confined to the
hedgerows except for a few isolated specimens. The Blacksoils Brook bisects the
northern parcel along an approximately north-east / south-west alignment. A
former chalk pit is evident within one of the fields.

5.4  To the south of the A4023, the southern parcel (21.24 ha) is relatively flat and in a
broadly triangular shape. As with the northern parcel, it is formed by a series of
fields defined by hedges.

5.5 Land both immediately north and south of the A4023 is set lower than the level of
the road. The A435, part of the strategic highway network, linking Birmingham and
Evesham (via the A46 and crossing the M42) forms the eastern boundary. It
changes from a dual carriageway to single carriageway towards the southern
boundary of the site as it approaches Mappleborough Green.

5.6  Two public rights of way, namely 585(C) and 588(D) cross the northern part of the

application site, (within Bromsgrove’s jurisdiction), and emerge on the northern
side of the A4023 Coventry Highway, where they intersect with rights of way

Page 177



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

799(C) [running north west towards Ravensbank Drive] , 800(C) [running south
east along the western edge of the site], and 641(C) [which links to Far Moor Lane
just south of the Blue Inn].

5.7  The site is neither within nor adjacent to a Conservation Area and does not include
any statutorily or locally listed buildings. The site is not subject to any Tree
Preservation Orders.

5.8  The majority of the land to the north of the northern land parcel is formed by
agricultural land and mature woodland. The exception to this is Gorcott Hall, a
Grade II* listed building and associated grounds (containing related listed
structures) whose boundary with the site is formed by a mature hedge. The
northern parcel is bounded to the west by existing employment developments
including the Ravensbank Business Park. The southern boundary to the northern
development land is formed by the A4023.

5.9 The A4023 and A435 also form the respective northern and eastern boundaries to
the southern, development land parcel. To the west lies existing commercial
development (hotel and car showrooms) and established residential development
off Far Moor Lane. A pedestrian footpath 800(C) runs along the western and
southern site boundaries, south of which is Longhope Close, including Lower
House, a Grade Il listed building. A screen of mature trees and hedgerow also
runs along the eastern boundary. To the southeast of the site and on the other
(eastern) side of the A435 are the School and Yew Tree and Church Cottages and
the School House (formerly 1 and 2 School Cottages), which are Grade Il Listed.

6.0 Proposal

6.1 The application is a hybrid application through which:

e outline planning permission is sought for the whole site for the development of up
to 90,000sgm of employment floorspace falling within Use Classes B1, B2 and B8.
B1 use will be restricted to 10% of the total floorspace and will be a combination of
ancillary floorspace within the B2/B8 buildings and freestanding smaller units

e full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 of the ground engineering works

Outline

6.2 A series of employment zones are proposed, accessed in the northern parcel from
a central spine road that would run alongside a retained ecological and landscape
corridor including the Blacksoils Brook. In the southern parcel, the development
zones would be accessed from a new road that will run parallel to the western
boundary. The proposed zones are identified on the Parameters Plan (ref 5372-
205C), the Plot Area Plan (ref 2372-066E) and the lllustrative Masterplan (ref
5372-203 rev A).

Page 178



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

6.3  Ground engineering works would be required to create the development plateau
for each employment zone in the northern area. The precise levels changes would
be dependent upon the size of the eventual buildings. The final ground levels are
not therefore confirmed at this stage. Notwithstanding this, through the pre-
application discussion with the three Councils there has been a requirement to
ensure that the buildings do not exceed a certain height in order to ensure that the
setting of Gorcott Hall is protected. The Parameters Plan therefore sets a
maximum level above AOD beyond which the building heights will not be able to
project.

6.4 The Parameters Plan also identifies that the building heights would be restricted to
between 9m and 21m above development plateau ground level. The lower
buildings would be sited at sensitive locations in relation to existing surrounding
development.

6.5 The Parameters Plan also identifies zones for landscaping, planting and new
features to be created as part of the sustainable drainage as well as green
corridors between development plots. Principal amongst these green zones will be
the area retained to the south west of Gorcott Hall to retain the setting of this listed
building. Boundary hedgerows and trees plus the Blacksoils Brook and associated
vegetation will be retained and enhanced through additional tree and hedge
planting. Trees and hedges within the proposed development plots would be
required to be removed. Compensatory planting would be secured as part of the
future detailed landscaping proposals.

6.6  The proposal would require a diversion of public right of way number 585(C) under
section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act.

6.7 Internal roads do not form part of the current application proposals. Detailed
designs for these would come forward as part of the subsequent submissions for
reserved matters, if this application is approved. An illustrative layout plan (not for
determination at this stage) shows an example of how the quantum of
development might appear, if constructed within the tolerances proposed on the
parameters plan.

Full Planning Permission

6.8  Approval is sought for the access into the site and the initial length of carriageway
within the site. Access is proposed from a new signal controlled crossroads
junction on the Coventry Highway (drwgs BMT/2116/100-01 rev P9 and 100-02 rev
P2). The new junction would provide for all movements and require modification to
the exiting lanes of the A4023 to create relevant lanes to access/egress the site.

6.9  The engineering works are required to facilitate the access into both the northern
and southern parcels and to undertake the works necessary to create the first
development phase. The overall area of works is approximately 2.47ha. Drawing
BWB-HGT-01-DR-D-612 rev P1 outlines the extent of the area of works required,
notably for the development platform and identifies the resulting contour levels.
These would result in banking being created around the edges of the development

Page 179



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

platform. The banking would be composed of soil with no requirement for retaining
structures.

6.10 Drawing BWB-HGT-01-DR-D-637 rev P1 provides a north-south and east-west
section through the proposed platform showing the existing and proposed profile. It
is expected that 6336m3 of soil will be disturbed by the cut and fill. Surplus
material from the operation would be used to create the support for the proposed
access. There would be no requirement for soil to be disposed of off-site.

7.0 Planning Judgement

The main issues for consideration in this case relate to the following:

8.0  Principle of Development
Economic Impact
Visual Impact
Residential Amenity
Air Quality
Traffic
Parking
Surface Water Drainage
Built Heritage
Biodiversity
Public Rights of Way / Accessibility
Loss of Agricultural Land

Each matter will be given consideration under a separate heading below along
with any other material considerations.

8.0 Principle of Development

8.1 The site is allocated for employment use in the Bromsgrove District Local Plan
(adopted January 2017), the Redditch Borough Plan (adopted January 2017) and
the adopted Stratford District Core Strategy.

8.2 The need for the development has been established through the preparation and
Examination of the Redditch Local Plan.

8.3 BDC and its neighbouring Local Planning Authorities are required to identify sites
to meet the employment needs during their respective plan periods.

8.4  The objective is to assist in meeting the employment requirements of Redditch.

8.5 The BDP includes a site specific policy BDP5 — Strategic Site Allocations, in
particular, BDP5B — Other development Sites, which identifies sites outside of the
town of Bromsgrove that will contribute towards the development requirements.
That part of the application site situated within Bromsgrove is described as
Ravensbank expansion site (for Redditch’s needs)

Page 180



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

8.6 The SADCCS and BDP are up-to-date adopted local plans and both allocate the
site for employment development within classes B1, B2 and B8. The proposals
therefore accord with the principal provisions of the land use allocation and
SADCCS policies CS.22, REDD.1 and REDD.2 and BDP policy BDP5B

8.7 The site is allocated for employment uses within each of the three authorities’ local
plans, as follows:

Redditch Local Plan 4 (Adopted January 2017)

8.8  Only a small portion of the site providing pedestrian access to the development is
contained within the administrative area of Redditch; however the justification for
the allocation of the ‘Gateway’ is in order to meet the employment needs of
Redditch.

8.9 BoORLP Policy 23 outlines the employment land requirements for Redditch and
notes that the Redditch Gateway is a key initiative for employment provision to
meet Redditch related employment needs.

8.10 The western edge of the site within Redditch Borough is a designated Special
Wildlife Site to which BoRLP Policy 16 applies.

Bromsgrove District Plan (Adopted January 2017)

8.11 The Bromsgrove District Plan includes a site specific policy on the Redditch
Gateway. Policy BDP5B, identifies that 10.3ha of employment land is allocated in
order to meet Redditch’s needs. The reasoned justification in Para 8.50 identifies
that “This site is located to the South/East of the existing Ravensbank site and is
approximately 10 hectares in area. The original employment site caters for
Redditch Borough'’s needs and it is envisaged that this expansion site will provide
additional capacity for Redditch’s future needs on a similar basis.”

Stratford-on-Avon Core Strategy (Adopted July 2016)

8.12 The Core Strategy provides the strategic context for development with the District
up until 2031 and includes two site specific policies pertaining to this particular site.
The policies are REDD.1: Winyates Green and REDD.2: Gorcott Hill. These two
policies reflect the areas of land to the north and south of the A4023 and comprise
the balance of the ‘Gateway’ site. These site specifics policies also seek the
following from the development of the site:

*  Provide for a minimum of 15% of total floorspace within Class B1(a) and Class
B1(b) research and development uses;

* Vehicle access off A4023;

* Protect character and setting of Gorcott Hall

* Retain mature hedgerows and trees on the site

* Traffic management and mitigation measures on A435 as appropriate

» Pedestrian and cycle links across A4023 to adjacent residential areas

* Protect and enhance the Pool and Blacksoils Brook

* Protect priority habitats within the site

Page 181



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

8.13 Whilst the proposed application is considered to be in broad conformity with the
adopted policies and designations of all three plans; one of the areas where there
is considered to be some inconsistency is in relation to the amount of office space
required by the policy within the Stratford Plan. It is worth noting that the
allocations within the Redditch and Bromsgrove Plans are for developments within
the use classes B1, B2 and B8 and there are not any further restrictions placed on
the site in terms of thresholds.

8.14 The submitted proposals will provide for circa 10% of office floorspace to be for B1
use, and it is likely that this use will come forward as office space as a component
of larger industrial manufacturing or warehouse buildings where typically at least
10% of the space is for office use.

8.15 Given the departure from the adopted policy position, the applicants have
submitted further market evidence (undertaken by Savills) to identify why the 15%
office requirement is not deliverable and this has been independently assessed by
Stratford, via the report prepared by Cushman and Wakefield in March 2017. The
conclusions of both reports are as follows:

Savills:

“The adopted policy requirement of 15% office floorspace is unlikely to deliver
office floorspace due to the market conditions described. Areas of this important
site may therefore not be developed and will not make a meaningful contribution to
the employment land supply, precluding the development of B1c/B2/B8 floorspace
for which there is a very strong demand and potential to generate high quality and
varied employment opportunities.”

Cushman and Wakefield :

“It is therefore our opinion that the information provided by Savills in their report is
consistent with the market, and that stand-alone offices are very unlikely to be
developed on Redditch Eastern Gateway. In our view, reserving land specifically
for this use would sterilize the land so reserved, resulting in the creation of fewer
jobs.

8.16 However, a significant amount of office space will be developed as part of a more
Blc, B2 and B8 focussed scheme, with the proportional element of the building
built as office increasing compared to historic levels. On this basis, the tale up of
the site will be quicker, with the consequent earlier creation of jobs.”

8.17 | agree with the market assessments and subsequent conclusions provided within
these documents. With this evidence in mind, it is considered appropriate to take
a view that does not strictly accord with policies REDD.1 and REDD.2 of the
adopted Core Strategy for Stratford. This would enable the site to come forward at
an appropriate pace to meet market demand and will ensure that is not sterilized
and left undeveloped.

8.18 As explained above, the site is allocated for development under Policies REDD.1
and REDD.2 of the Core Strategy. Prior to the adoption of the Core Strategy and
associated allocation of this site, the northern development parcel (covered by
REDD.2) was located within the Green Belt.

Page 182



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

8.19 Policy CS.10 of the Core Strategy removed this section of land (which extended to
approximately 9.8 hectares in area) from the Green Belt.

8.20 The Exceptional Circumstances for this (as outlined within the explanatory text to
CS.10) being that, through joint working with RBC and BDC, land in Stratford on
Avon District should be identified for employment uses to meet the needs of
Redditch. The employment Land Review Update for Redditch identifies a shortfall
of 27.5 hectares of land that cannot be accommodated within its boundaries.

8.21 A study commissioned by North Worcestershire Economic Development and
Regeneration identified land at Winyates Green (southern development parcel),
and Gorcott Hill (northern development parcel), as the best option available to
meet this shortfall. The southern development parcel is outside the Green Belt but
is only 12 hectares in size. Furthermore, a new access of the A4023 Coventry
Highway is required to gain access to both sites. The cost of this would not be
viable unless both areas are made available for development.

8.22 In light of the above exceptional circumstances, the northern development parcel
was removed from the Green Belt under Policy CS.10 of the Core Strategy.

9.0 Economic Impact

9.1 Itis important to note the wider economic context in which this site is viewed. The
site is identified within the Worcestershire Local Enterprise Partnerships’ (LEP)
Strategic Economic Plan, highlighted as one of four ‘Game Changer’ sites within
Worcestershire. The focus for this site is to:

“Create a high quality business park to attract and safeguard investment and
employment, with a target being advanced engineering businesses.”

9.2 The site is also referenced as a key economic growth and regeneration project in
the Greater Birmingham and Solihull Strategic Economic Plan, as follows:

‘Redditch Eastern Gateway is an identified employment site situated on the
outskirts of Redditch. The Gateway'’s strategic location takes full advantage of the
M40/M42 motorways and just a 20 minute drive time to Birmingham International
Airport and railway station, with the potential for 100,000 square metres of high-
profile employment development, 2,000 jobs and an additional £90 million of GVA.
GBSLEP is working closely with Worcestershire LEP on this opportunity.”

9.3 The site is, therefore, a key development opportunity for both Worcestershire and
Greater Birmingham and Solihull LEP’s that will help to attract and safeguard
investment within the Redditch area. There is strong support for these proposals
from both Local Enterprise Partnerships recognising that the site will provide
important space for new commercial development, which is in short supply within
the area.

Page 183



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

9.4

9.5

10.0

10.1

Economic Development Priorities for Redditch

Whilst the proposal lies substantially within Stratford upon Avon and Bromsgrove
administrative areas, the site was primarily identified to meet the employment
needs of Redditch. In this regard the proposal will contribute to the key aims and
objectives identified in the adopted ‘Economic Priorities for Redditch’. Some of the
key priorities identified within the Strategy that are pertinent to this proposal,
include:

Ensuring that sufficient land for employment is allocated;

Provide support for growing businesses

Keep employment land provision under review to ensure that we have an
adequate supply to meet business growth requirements.

The current application would enable Redditch to meet some of its key economic
aspirations for the Borough and this should be taken into account in the
determination of this application.

Design Principles and Parameter Plans

The parameters plan provides land uses, building heights, indicative internal
circulation routes, pedestrian/cycle access points and green infrastructure (to
include perimeter planting, landscaping buffer zone adjacent to Gorcott Hall and
retained grassland to the southern tip). Assessing each of these in turn:

Land use — the location and maximum extent of land proposed for development is
shown. Being proposed for employment use only, the vast majority of the site is
shown as employment zones to comprise buildings with associated car parking
and servicing areas. An employment zone for parking only lies adjacent to its north
boundary, with a landscaping buffer zone to its northeast boundary and retained
grassland to its southern tip.

Building heights — the plan prescribes the maximum heights of buildings within
the site, also providing a height as measured from AOD to ensure that the heights
are complied with if any regarding occurs. The southern development parcel
proposes a maximum height of 21m, not to exceed AOD 124.75. The western part
of the northern development parcel also proposes a maximum height of 21m, not
to exceed AOD 128.0. The middle section of the northern development parcel
proposes a maximum height of 15m, not to exceed AOD 124.0, whilst the eastern
section of the northern development parcel proposes a maximum height of 9m, not
to exceed AOD 122.0 or 123.0 (depending on the specific location). In general the
heights do not vary significantly across the site, with the exception of the north-
easterly corner where lower heights are proposed to respond to the Grade II* listed
Gorcott Hall and its associated Grade Il listed structures/buildings.

Access and movement — the plan shows the primary access point off the A4023
Coventry Highway, as well as the initial length of carriageway within the site.
Indicative internal circulation routes are shown, as are pedestrian and cycle
access points. The access arrangements would allow for sufficient vehicular,

Page 184



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

pedestrian and cycle routes that link the development to surrounding routes and
rights of way.

Green infrastructure — the plan shows the provision of perimeter planting to all

boundaries of the site, with a landscaping buffer zone to its northeast and retained
grassland to its southern tip. Potential areas for SUDS are also shown on the plan.

11.0 Visual Impact

11.1 Policy BDP1 (1.4f) states that “In considering all proposals for development in
Bromsgrove District regard will be had to the following : The impact on visual
amenity”

11.2 Policy BDP19 (High Quality Design) provides a set of principles to safeguard the

local distinctiveness of the District and ensure a high quality, safe and distinctive
design throughout the development.
The proposed development would inevitably and permanently change the existing
character and appearance of the site, which is presently a series of fields
interspersed with trees and hedgerows. The form and scale of development
proposed means that buildings will be visible from some public vantage points.
This harm has to be balanced against the benefits of the development.

11.3 Ground engineering works would be focussed on the northern site. Existing ground
levels do not enable the optimal development of the site and remodelling of
contours is therefore necessary. This would be achieved through the creation of
level development platforms that would create a series of development zones set
into the wider landscape and require the creation of retaining structures around the
north-eastern edges of the development zones. Those retaining structures would
not be evident in views from Gorcott Hall as they would sit lower than the land to
the north where the hall is situated. The new buildings would screen the retaining
structures when viewed from the south. The Parameter Plan 5372-205C identifies
the maximum building heights above AOD for each zone and have been defined to
ensure that the visual impact of the development would be mitigated in short and
longer views.

11.4 The full planning permission element of the application seeks consent to undertake
the first phase of the ground engineering works. The submitted drawings identify
the areas of cut and fill in order to create a level development platform. The edges
to the platform will be formed by contoured banks. The proposals (including the
creation of the banks for the proposed access) will not require any soils to be
removed from the site.

11.5 The main development proposals are in outline only. Consequently, matters of
detailed design, layout and appearance (including proposed external facing
materials for the buildings) would be subject to the approval of reserved matters
and subject to conditions on any approved outline permission. The submitted
lllustrative Masterplan identifies a potential layout and the subsequent detailed
proposals may take a different form dependent upon the requirements of future
occupiers.

Page 185



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

11.6 Nevertheless, the Parameters Plan, clearly identifies areas for development and
areas that will form new landscaped buffers and ecological opportunities. The
zones have been identified to provide for the efficient use of the land whilst
seeking to minimise impacts on surrounding land uses and establish the potential
height and proximity of building to adjoining development.

11.7 If permission is granted for the development, | would wish to ensure that the key
parameter plans and some of the details and principles of the DAS be “fixed” by
way of conditions to guide future developments at the reserved matters stage.
Given that this development is likely to be built over a 15 year period, greater
flexibility is required to enable future developers to respond to changing standards,
requirements and aspirations as the development progresses. On this basis, |
consider that a condition could be imposed, requiring reserved matters
applications to encompass the principles and parameters set out in the application
and supporting documents, thereby providing greater clarity and certainty of the
design and layout standards required, whilst acknowledging that national and local
standards and requirements may vary over time and thus allow for the potential
review of the approved documents.

12.0 Residential Amenity

12.1 Policy BDP1 (1.4e) states that “In considering all proposals for development in
Bromsgrove District regard will be had to the following : Compatibility with
adjoining uses and the impact on residential amenity”

12.2 A number of existing residential properties are located within close proximity to the
site, the closest being those on Longhope Close adjacent to the southwestern tip.
The Wynyates Green estate lies to the western side of Far Moor Lane with
properties backing onto that road. There are a small number of residential
properties dispersed along the opposite edge of the A435 which forms the eastern
boundary.

12.3 | have had regard to the height details on the submitted parameters plan in
conjunction with the separation distances which would remain between residential
properties and employment zones.

12.4 At its closest, the employment zone located within the southern development
parcel would be located approximately 23m from the nearest residential property
on Longhope Close, beyond an existing soft landscaped boundary to the
application site. This soft landscaped boundary is proposed for retention and
strengthening and, adjacent to Longhope Close, would extend to a minimum depth
of 20m.

12.5 Buildings in this zone could be up to a maximum height of 21m, not to exceed
AOD 124.75, however, matters of layout and scale which would determine the
siting and massing of buildings are reserved. This means that a subsequent
application for approval of those details would be required. Accordingly,
subsequent consideration of detailed designs, would provide an opportunity for the

Page 186



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

Local Planning Authority to consider the proximity of proposed development to
nearby residential properties. Consequently it would be possible to ensure that
separation distances between dwellings and proposed buildings/associated
service yards are sufficient to ensure there would be no unduly adverse impact in
terms of overbearance, loss of light and loss of privacy.

12.6 The closest dwelling to the west side of Far Moor Lane is located approximately
40m from the development site. Again, development in the nearest employment
zone would be 21m in height, not to exceed AOD 124.75. As above, subsequent
applications for reserved matters would enable the Local Planning Authority to
control matters of layout (including siting of buildings and servicing areas) in
addition to scale and appearance which will enable careful consideration to be
given to the impact of the detailed design of the development with regard to
neighbouring residential development when those proposals come forward.

12.7 Subject to consideration of the detailed design of any forthcoming reserved
matters submissions, | am satisfied that the proposed development would not have
an unduly adverse impact on neighbouring residential amenity.

12.8 The application seeks 24 hour operation in order to meet potential occupier
requirements. This is to ensure that the development remains competitive and
suitable for the widest range of potential occupiers.

12.9 In terms of traffic noise impacts from within the development, the Environmental
Statement concludes that noise generated will be below the ambient noise
background of general traffic noise from surrounding roads. Mitigation measures
are suggested in order to reduce noise disturbance arising from the service yards
including orientation of buildings and appropriate yard boundary treatment. A
condition to ensure these details are submitted as a component of any subsequent
reserved matters applications is recommended.

12.10 It is envisaged that noise arising during the construction phase would be mitigated
through a Construction Environment Management Plan, alongside an hours of
working condition.

13.0 Light pollution

13.1 As the majority of this application is in outline form, specific lighting detail has not
been provided at this stage. The Design and Access Statement confirms that
lighting would be the subject of subsequent reserved matters submissions, the
specific detail of which would be assessed and subject to LPA control at that
stage.

13.2 Conditions could be imposed in order to reduce the impacts of lighting both during
the construction phase and operational stage. Subject to this, and in conjunction
with appropriate lighting design to be submitted at the reserved matters stage, |
consider that an acceptable lighting solution would be secured.

13.3 | consider that appropriate conditions could control lighting design to mitigate the
risk of harm to neighbouring residential amenity.

Page 187



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

14.0 Noise and Vibration

14.1 Policy BDP19 (19 .1t) “The Council will deliver high quality people focused space
through: t. Development proposals should maximise the distance between noise
sources (for example motorways) and noise sensitive uses (such as residential),
whilst also taking into account the implications of the existing night time use of the
locality”

14.2 A Noise and Vibration assessment forms part of the ES (chapter 12) and refers to
the results of noise and vibration assessments carried out on the basis of both the
construction and occupation phases of development.

14.3 Baseline noise measurements have been taken at four receptor locations that
represent the nearest noise sensitive properties to the development site.

14.4 The construction noise and vibration activities at the nearest noise sensitive
properties vary from a negligible effect to a minor adverse effect during normal
daytime operations. Construction works should be undertaken in accordance with
‘best practicable means’ to minimise the construction noise effects.

14.5 The vibration arising from the construction works would not be perceptible and no
further noise mitigation measures are required to reduce the construction vibration
effects.

14.6 The change in the daytime road traffic noise levels due to the development is
negligible at all receptors with the exception of Gorcott Hall where there is
predicted to be a minor adverse effect. The change in night-time level due to the
development is less than 1 dB and provides a negligible effect.

14.7 The traffic on internal circulation routes within the site is predicted to provide a
negligible increase in the ambient noise levels at the nearest receptors. The
existing night-time noise level at the nearest receptor indicates that with partially
open windows the sleep disturbance criteria is already exceeded and windows
would need to be closed to meet the internal target noise level. With open windows
the development traffic noise would be below the sleep disturbance criteria within
the nearest receptors.

14.8 To reduce the noise impact of site activity in the yard areas in the night-time
period, a scheme of 3m high noise barriers is proposed around the perimeter of
the yards. The barriers provide a small noise reduction such that there are only
two receptor sites where the BS4142 assessment exceeds the WRS criteria in the
night-time period. However, the highest absolute noise levels at night from site
activities, with the scheme of barriers, is well below the threshold for sleep
disturbance even with partially open windows. Taking both the BS4142 and sleep
disturbance assessments into account the site activity noise level is considered to
be a minor adverse effect with the scheme of noise barriers. | consider that this
noise attenuation could be secured through conditions and consideration of
detailed specifications at the reserved matters stage.

Page 188



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

14.9 No objection has been raised by either SDC’s Environmental Health Officer or
Worcestershire Regulatory Services with respect to noise or vibration and on this
basis, | am satisfied that the proposal would not have an unacceptable adverse
impact upon neighbouring residential amenity in respect of these issues.

15.0 Ground conditionsand land contamination

15.1 Chapter 6 of the ES addresses the effects of ground conditions on the proposal
which is supported by a Geo-environmental Assessment Report and Agricultural
Land Assessment.

15.2 The Geo-environmental Assessment Report considers the potential for effects
relating to ground conditions and contamination surface as a result of the
proposed development during both the construction and occupational phases of
the development.

15.3 Both the northern and southern development parcels have been used for
agriculture, and the contaminative risk is considered to be low.

15.4 WRS have considered the proposal and find the submitted Phase | desk study
thorough, includes an appropriate site conceptual model and that the assessment
has been carried out in accordance with current guidance and best practice. A
preliminary intrusive investigation has also been undertaken comprising general
site coverage through the excavation of 29 trial pits. To date the contaminated land
risk assessment has not identified any significant risk to end-users of the site.

15.5 Both SDC’s Environmental Health Officer and Worcestershire Regulatory Services
have raised no objection on the basis of the contamination information submitted
with the application. WRS suggest that the above requirements, and any
necessary associated remediation, can be successfully dealt with through
appropriate planning conditions. | concur with this view.

16.0 Air Quality

16.1 Air quality in Bromsgrove District is predominantly good and the air is mainly clean
and unpolluted. There are however a few locations where the combination of
traffic, road layout, geography, emissions from plant and machinery such as
boilers has resulted in exceedences of the annual average for nitrogen dioxide
(NO2) and fine particulates (PM10). Several areas in the District are closely
monitored for their air quality level, and a few are designated as Air Quality
Management Areas (AQMA).

16.2 Whilst the application site itself does not lie within an Air Quality Management Area
(AQMA), there is one in place in Studley along the Alcester Road A435 (within
Stratford-upon-Avon). This AQMA was declared on the 23" February 2006 for
exceedances of the nitrogen dioxide annual mean objective.

Page 189



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

16.3 The Warwickshire Local Transport Plan (2011-2026) seeks to, amongst other
things, improve air quality by improving congestion/reduce traffic and encourage
people to use more sustainable modes of transport. This Plan identifies the impact
of traffic on the A435 corridor as the most significant environmental problem in
Western Warwickshire. It states that the A435 between Alcester was de-trunked in
January 2008 between Gorcott Hill near the junction with the A4023 and the A46
near Alcester and that in those settlements lying along the section of the A435 to
the north of Alcester, (i.e. Coughton, King's Coughton, Studley and
Mappleborough Green), there are serious adverse effects on quality of life due to
high traffic volumes containing a large number of HGVs. One of the key objectives
of the strategy is to deliver improvements that reduce the environmental impact of
traffic within the District and improve local air quality in existing AQMASs.

16.4 Chapter 13 of the ES relates to air quality and considers, amongst other things, the
impact of the development on the Studley AQMA. It states that the AQMA is
located approximately 4km south of the site and it is anticipated that traffic
generated by the development would have largely dispersed across the network
over this distance. It concludes that the development would not have a significant
impact on the Studley AQMA as it is unlikely that the development would
significantly affect pollutant concentrations within the AQMA.

16.5 The ES goes onto state that operational mitigation measures would be developed,
with the aim of reducing traffic to and from the development through encouraging
more sustainable transport options. These measures are:

e new signal controlled junction onto the Coventry Highway which would include
pedestrian and cycle crossing facilities, located at the existing intersection of the
existing public rights of way;

e new footways and shared footways/cycleways throughout the development that
would tie into the existing and new facilities surrounding the site;

e improved bus service infrastructure comprising of bus stops and laybys on the
Coventry Highway to allow the existing 150 bus service to serve the site;

e the introduction of a HGV routing plan to manage the number of HGVs routing
through sensitive areas, including the Studley AQMA

16.6 The above would be implemented in addition to a Travel Plan. The report
concludes that the significance of air quality impacts would be negligible, and
therefore there is no need for any specific and detailed air quality mitigation
measures.

16.7 The applicants have submitted a potential HGV Routing Strategy at Appendix H of
the TA. The aim of the plan is to prevent HGVs routing south down the A435
impacting on Mappleborough Green and the AQMA of Studley. The TA states that
the advisory HGV routes would promote the use of the A435 (north) and the
A4023 Coventry Highway to access the wider highway network. These links
provide direct access to the M42, M40 and M5. The principle of this HGV Routing
Strategy is accepted by both Warwickshire and Worcestershire Highway
Authorities and | concur that this would be effective in preventing a significant
increase in HGV traffic through the Studley AQMA.

Page 190



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

16.8 A condition requiring the submission and approval of a full HGV Routing Strategy
as well as the submission of the first HGV routing surveys within 12 months of
occupation has been recommended by both Warwickshire and Worcestershire
Highways Authorities. In conjunction with a financial contribution of £200,000.00
which would be paid and held for a period of 15 years to allow for HGV mitigation
to be carried out where it is deemed necessary, | am satisfied that the impact on
the Studley AQMA would be limited.

16.9 Worcestershire County Council Regulatory Services has confirmed that due to the
location of the site and the current air quality in the local area (specifically within
Worcestershire), the air quality impacts of the development would be acceptable.

16.10 SDC’s Environmental Health Officer has raised concern on the basis of the air
quality impact of the development on the Studley AQMA. Although a HGV Routing
Strategy is proposed to minimise additional HGV traffic through Studley, the EHO
recommends that additional information is submitted prior to determination to
ensure a robust understanding of the impacts of this HGV Routing Strategy on the
Studley AQMA.

16.11 | am satisfied that the principle of a HGV Routing Strategy, in conjunction with a
financial contribution of £200,000.00, would ensure that the impact of the
development from HGVs on the highway network, specifically on the A435 through
the Studley AQMA would be acceptable. On the basis of this, | do not consider that
further investigation on this matter is required. The applicant concludes that, in
conjunction with a Travel Plan these measures would lead to a negligible impact
on air quality and this is anticipated to result from the few vehicles that would
inevitably pass through the Studley AQMA. Subject to conditions, | am satisfied
that the impact of the development on this AQMA would be acceptable.

16.12 Impacts from the development would arise as dust during the construction phase
and traffic during operation. For dust, this would primarily result from the
earthworks and construction activity. Impacts would generally decline with
increased distance from the site with highest risk of impact being within 20m of the
site declining to negligible risk at a distance of 350m. The Environmental
Statement (Table 13.8) identifies sensitive receptors within these distances. The
location of the site, to the north of the majority of existing development means that
prevailing wind directions will help minimise risks to existing development and the
SSSI from impact from dust.

17.0 Traffic Impact

17.1 Policy BDP1 (1.4a) states that “In considering all proposals for development in
Bromsgrove District regard will be had to the following: Accessibility to public
transport options and the ability of the local and strategic road networks to
accommodate additional traffic”

17.2 The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment (TA). In addition to

review by the respective County Highway Authorities, this has been reviewed by
Mott MacDonald (MM) (Transport consultants acting on behalf of and

Page 191



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

commissioned by Bromsgrove District Council) The proposal would result in a
change in existing traffic movements.

17.3 The Transport Assessment does not utilise the Bromsgrove and Redditch
Highways Assignment Model (BARHAM). The TA instead utilises uses TRICS trip
rate data to determine the projected trip generation. These trip rates have been
accepted by both Highway Authorities. Despite some concerns about
methodology, MM advise that they consider the trip rates satisfactory.

17.4 Census Journey to Work data from 2011 has been utilised to determine the
assignment of development trips to the network. The assignment of these trips
appears satisfactory. Currently, no trips are assigned into and out of the site from
the west. It could be argued that some trips heading south may travel west when
leaving the site and use the A435 via Studley, but the Census data indicates only a
small proportion head in that direction and the difference would be negligible.

17.5 An HGV routing plan has also been devised following discussions with the HAs to
reduce HGV routing through sensitive areas including the A435 through Studley.

17.6 MM have reviewed the proposed site access Linsig model and consider that the
junction has been modelled correctly and would operate well within capacity.
Whilst the VISSIM Model has not been reviewed, the results indicate that the
proposed development has minimal impact in queues and journey times on the
surrounding network.

17.7 Highways England raised concerns regarding the sensitivity of the M42 junction 3
to fluctuations in development traffic and requested a level of sensitivity testing.
The sensitivity testing utilised a VISSIM model developed by JMP covering the
M42/M5 corridor for the years 2023 and 2030. The test agreed upon routed an
additional 20% of development traffic via the A435 and through Studley.

17.8 The modelling of the M42 junction 3 identified that proposed development traffic
does not have a significant impact on the strategic highway approaches, but does
slightly increase the queueing on the A435 approaches. Highways England have
agreed with the conclusions of the modelling and Worcestershire County Council
have requested a financial contribution towards a wider improvement scheme.

17.9 BDC’s highway consultant's — MM, consider the results included within the TA
appear to show low level impact.

17.10 Warwickshire County Council commissioned Vectos Microsim to undertake a
sensitivity test assessment of the development traffic using the Studley area
Paramics model. It appears that a significantly greater amount of traffic has been
routed through Studley for this sensitivity test. Despite this, it appears that the
development does not have a detrimental impact on the Barley Mow junction or
through Studley. Warwickshire County Council agree with the conclusions and
state that there are no requirements for capacity improvements on the network as
a result. However, Warwickshire County Council has requested a financial
contribution towards an HGV routing strategy and a wider HGV signage strategy to
minimise impact on sensitive areas including Studley.

Page 192



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

17.11 BDC'’s highway consultant - MM consider that the results included within the TA
appear to show that impact on Studley will be minimal. Concerns were raised
during the public consultation exercise and during discussion with the Highway
Authorities about the potential impacts of HGV traffic for the site using the A435
through Studley, the centre of which is a declared AQMA. The applicant has
responded to these concerns by proposing a routing plan that aims to divert HGVs
from the A435 to avoid Studley. This has been accepted in principle by both
Highway Authorities, although the final routing plan is subject to the formal
approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Opportunities for Sustainable Travel

17.12 The TA has examined opportunities for pedestrian, cycle and public transport
journeys. The existing issue of a lack of pedestrian access is to be resolved with
the installation of a shared cycle/footway connecting into the existing cycle routes
to the west of the site.

Parking

17.13 Parking provision is a detailed design matter. However, the illustrative layout
provides an indication to potential parking locations and has been designed with
reference to the amount of potential car parking that could be achieved to accord
with the Councils’ parking guidance

17.14 Parking provision is governed by adopted standards. The illustrative master plan
demonstrates that adequate off road parking could be accommodated to serve the
guantum of development proposed.

17.15 Providing appropriate levels of parking will mean that all parking should take place
within the site. During the consultation exercise, questions were raised about on-
street parking and how off-site would be prevented. This is a matter of civil
enforcement however, at present there are only limited restrictions on parking on
adjoining roads. The applicant can do no more that provide the amount of parking
that is permitted by the Council’s adopted guidance. | consider that there is
sufficient space within the site to accommodate the level of parking which would
reasonably be required to service the development proposed.

17.16 A Framework Travel Plan has also been prepared to encourage sustainable travel
choices. This will include promoting alternatives to the car (pedestrian and cycling)
and use of public transport by improving access via the 150 bus route by providing
new bus stops on the Coventry Highway. Two pedestrian / cycleway linkages onto
Far Moor Lane would encourage and facilitate ease of access by those modes.

Page 193



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

18.0 Surface Water Drainage and Flood Risk

18.1 Policy BDP23 (23.1c) states that “The Council will deliver safe developments with
low environmental impact through: Ensuring development addresses flood risk
from all sources, follow the flood risk management hierarchy when planning and
designing development, and do not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere. Where
inappropriate developments in areas at risk of flooding are necessary after the
sequential test is applied, appropriate designs, materials and escape routes that
minimise the risk(s) and loss should be incorporated”

18.2 The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 (lowest risk of flooding). Table 2
of the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) classifies buildings used for financial,
professional and other services, general industry and storage and distribution as
‘less vulnerable’. Table 3 of the PPG identifies that a ‘less vulnerable’ development
within Flood Zone 1 is ‘appropriate’.

18.3 The applicant has also provided site specific modelling of the minor watercourses
within the site. From this model, a series of site specific inundation maps have
been produced showing the extent of the various flood zones across the site at the
typical return periods. The model indicates that the channels on site typically
become overwhelmed readily, some at even low return periods, resulting in large
amounts of shallow sheet flows across the site, particularly across the northern
development parcel. The Environment Agency confirm that on the basis of this
modelling, part of the development site falls within Flood Zone 3.

18.4 The hydraulic model has defined the baseline flood risk from the Blacksoils Brook
and minor watercourses and has been used to test the outline development layout
and flood mitigation measures to offset the impacts of development in the
floodplain.

18.5 A map of the proposed water course diversions are provided at Annex 5 of the
model, and the same return periods have been simulated following these
alterations. The model outputs indicate that overland flows across the site would
be virtually eliminated. The exception to this is at the 1000 year storm which would
still see some inundation from the Blacksoils Brook channel just upstream of the
Coventry Highway embankment and where the diverted tributary 3 meets the
Blacksoils Brook. At lower return periods there is almost no overland flow at all and
almost all water is held within the proposed watercourse network. In addition, there
is a predicted betterment downstream of the proposed development within
Ravensbank Industrial Estate and nearby residential areas.

18.6 The impact of these alterations to the site’'s watercourses has also been
considered downstream. The virtual elimination of surface water flow across the
site naturally reduces the opportunity for losses through infiltration and pooling
across the surface. The hydrograph provided within the model indicates that
overall discharge post development is reduced compared to pre-development
rates.

Page 194



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

18.7 It is important that the development incorporates appropriate surface water
drainage, not only to manage potential flood risk on site and to ensure that the risk
of flooding is not increased off site, but also to ensure that the quality of the water
entering the water course is of sufficient quality to avoid any adverse impact on the
Ipsley Alders Marsh SSSI.

18.8 The development would be designed to ensure attenuated surface water storage
to accommodate the 1 in 100 year storm event plus a 40% allowance for climate
change. At present, existing water channels are undersized and therefore
incapable of accommodating flows in storm events leading to temporary and short-
lived localised areas of flooding within the site. A series of measures are identified
in the FRA and the Water Management Strategy that would relieve the flooding
within the site primarily through the:

o diversion and replacement of existing water channels which will the flow into
the Blacksoils Brook

o introduction of swales and permanently wet ponds that would filter and store
water prior to release in to the brook at a controlled rate equivalent to green
field run off; plus

o attenuation tanks including filter traps under areas of permeable paving
(storage volume up to 357m3)

18.9 The LLFAs have confirmed that the proposed features, as described within the
hydrology chapter of the ES, are acceptable but have requested the attachment of
conditions to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
submitted FRA, the provision of infiltration testing to ensure appropriate means of
managing surface water run-off and the submission of a scheme detailing the
management and maintenance of the ditch network during construction.

18.10 | note that a number of representations have been received on the grounds that
the proposal would potentially exacerbate flooding in the area as well as impact on
the Ipsley Alders Marsh SSSI which is located outside the application site. These
concerns have been given careful consideration in the assessment of the planning
application, but the responses from the statutory undertakers do not support these
concerns.

18.11 The drainage and water efficiency proposals would be subject of further approval
at reserved matters stage. However, based on the consultation responses from the
Environment Agency and the Lead Local Flood Authorities (both Warwickshire and
Worcestershire), | am satisfied that the final drainage scheme would be in
accordance with the Policies of the Core Strategy, specifically Policies CS.4,
REDD.1 and REDD.2.

19.0 Built Heritage

19.1 Policy BDP20 (20.3) states that “Development affecting Heritage Assets, including
alterations or additions as well as development within the setting of Heritage
Assets, should not have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance or
significance of the Heritage Asset or Heritage Assets.”

Page 195



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

(20.6) “Any proposal which will result in substantial harm or loss of a designated
Heritage Asset will be resisted unless a clear and convincing justification or a
substantial public benefit can be identified in accordance with current legislation
and national policy.”

19.2 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires that, "In considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning
authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall have special regard
to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses."

19.3 The NPPF outlines various principles and measures to be considered when
assessing proposals that have an effect on the historic environment. Para 128
states that local authorities should require applicants to provide a description of the
significance of the assets affected at a level of detail sufficient to enable the
potential impacts to be considered. The applicant has provided this assessment
through Chapter 8 of the Environmental Statement submitted in support of this
application and Appendix 8.2 of the ES provides a Built Heritage Statement. The
Built Heritage Statement confirms that there are no listed buildings within the site
itself, but that the development has the potential to affect eight listed buildings.

19.4 Where any development has an impact on the significance of a designated
heritage asset great weight should be given to the assets conservation (para 132
of the NPPF). Substantial harm should generally be avoided. Where development
will lead to less than substantial harm of a designated asset, the harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including securing its optimum
viable use.(Para 134).

19.5 In this instance, the key asset being considered is Gorcott Hall, a Grade II* listed
Building and its setting. Gorcott Hall comprises a small country house dating back
to the 15th century, but with substantial additions and alterations taking place in
the 16th, 17th and 18th centuries. The earlier ranges were originally constructed in
timber framing, with a mix of brick noggin and lime render infill panels, although
some of these elements have been replaced with brick, later additions and
extensions have been constructed in brick. It represents a building of great
interest, with its various phases of development.

19.6 The building is located within its own private and relatively extensive grounds,
which themselves form a non-designated heritage asset, whilst a further five listed
(Grade IlI) buildings are located within its grounds:

Stable, Granary, Barn and attached Animal House

Right Gatepier and attached Garden Wall approximately 10m se of Gorcott Hall
Left Gatepier and attached Garden Wall approximately 10m sw of Gorcott Hall
Right Gatepier and attached Garden Wall approximately 30m sw of Gorcott Hall
Left Gatepier and attached Garden Wall approximately 30m sw of Gorcott Hall

Page 196



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

19.7 The Heritage Statement document draws the conclusion that the harm to the
significance of Gorcott Hall is less than substantial, falling within the middle of that
assessment and would therefore be described as moderate.

19.8 Other assets that have been considered are Lower House on Longhope Close (to
the south) and a listed church (Church of the Holy Ascension) and listed cottages
(School House , Yew Tree and Church Cottages) in Mappleborough Green (to the
east). In each case, the development proposals do not have a direct impact on the
architectural quality or the historic importance or fabric of the building. The key
issue for consideration is therefore whether the proposed development has an
acceptable impact on the setting of the buildings.

19.9 The setting of the heritage assets has been subject to considerable discussion with
the Planning and Conservation Officers for each local planning authority and
Historic England during the evolution of the Masterplan proposals. This has
resulted in the retention of the fields to the south-west of Gorcott Hall as part of the
site wide landscape proposals and the proposed ground engineering and
landscape works in the northern site to create development plateaus. This will
enable buildings to be set into the wider landscape whilst retaining the existing
setting of the building. Intervisibility between the development and the Hall will also
be minimised by the creation of a naturalised, landscaped bund.

19.10 With the implementation of the mitigation measures outlined in the Built Heritage
Statement, the ES and as shown on the parameter plans, | consider that the
impact on the setting of Gorcott Hall is considered to be less than substantial.

19.11 A similar assessment is made with regard to Lower House and the listed properties
in Mapleborough Green. For the latter, the distance of the proposed buildings,
proposed landscaping and restriction on building height is considered to mitigate
the limited impact on their setting to render the impact at a very low level of less
than substantial harm.

19.12 For Lower House, the proposed development is not considered likely to affect the
way the building is presently experienced. However, | consider that the proposals
to restrict the height of the proposed building closest to Lower House and the
proposed enhancement of existing landscape screening would render any impact
from the development to being of less than substantial harm.

19.13 Where harm is less than substantial, this has to be weighed against the public
benefits of the proposals (para 134 of the NPPF).

19.14 The proposals are considered to have considerable public benefit through the
extent of job creation and employment opportunity for Redditch Borough that will
help meet the identified requirements of Redditch and contribute to the wider
needs of Worcestershire. For this reason, the public benefits are considered to
outweigh the less than substantial harm identified.

19.15 In terms of archaeology, the ES noted that the site has minimal archaeological
importance with any potential likely to be limited to the Blacksoils Brook. Given the

Page 197



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

retention of the brook and its immediate environs, as part of the development,
disturbance to these areas is likely to be limited. A condition is proposed.

19.16 The County and the District has a responsibility to protect, either by preservation or
record, cultural remains within its jurisdiction, and this is emphasised by the
National Planning Policy Framework section 12, paragraph 128:

"...Where a site on which development is proposed includes or has the potential to
include heritage assets with archaeological interest, local planning authorities
should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and,
where necessary, a field evaluation; and paragraph 141, "“...They should also
require developers to record and advance understanding of the significance of any
heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their
importance and the impact, and to make this evidence (and any archive
generated) publicly accessible. However, the ability to record evidence of our past
should not be a factor in deciding whether such loss should be permitted"”

20.0 Biodiversity

20.1 Policy BDP21 seeks to achieve better management of Bromsgrove’s natural
environment by, in addition to other criteria :
f) Deliver enhancement and compensation, commensurate with their scale, which
contributes towards the achievement of a coherent and resilient ecological
network;
i) Adopt good environmental site practices as appropriate, including in the form of
a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) where appropriate.

20.2 The baseline information search and ecological studies commissioned by the
applicant noted the following:
The majority of the site comprises semi-improved grassland. Two fields in the
southernmost part of the site to the site of the A4023 are of greater value but still
not considered to be of sufficient value to qualify as a priority habitat hedgerows
are dominated by hawthorn and blackthorn with only sparse ground flora. A
hedgerow assessment identifies the hedge along the Blacksoils Brook as being
the key hedge in the northern site. For the southern site, hedges along the western
boundary are considered the most important. The Blacksoils Brook and another
stream are identified in the northern site along with two small streams in the
southern site. One pond is identified in the northern site; a disused pit, it is mostly
dry. In the southern site, there are two small ponds within or adjacent to the
southernmost hedge. A small amount of woodland habit is present around the
northern pond. Common species of wetland flies and butterflies were identified as
present. The identified ponds vary in value and suitability for amphibians. Newts
have been identified in several of the ponds (There are no ponds on site within
Bromsgrove). No records of reptiles have been found. There are no records of
bats on site but the site does offer foraging and commuting value. Subsequent
surveys noted foraging and commuting activity particularly along the hedgerow
along the Blacksoils Brook and the site boundaries but no particular evidence of
roosts except for the potential of one in a tree in the county boundary hedgerow.
Roosting activity is considered to be more likely in off-site woodlands. There was
no evidence of dormouse in recent surveys. There is badger activity on site.

Page 198



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

20.3 There would be some loss of trees and hedgerows both within the site and in order
to create the new access from the A4023. This will impact on species at a site
level but there remains suitable habitat adjacent to the site. Similarly, loss of
hedgerows may impact on foraging routes for bats but the retention boundary
hedges and proposed additional planting is considered to off-set the negative
impacts. The loss of the habitat and ponds will impact on amphibians. Badgers
would be affected by the development.

20.4 Warwickshire Ecology has advised that the northern parcel of the site has the
potential to provide a net biodiversity gain for habitats but a loss for linear features.
With regards to the southern parcel, the development would result in a significant
loss of habitat but potential gain for linear features. At this stage, the actual
losses/gains are unknown. However, subject to the Biodiversity Impacts being
monitored through a Biodiversity Offsetting Schedule secured by way of a legal
agreement, Warwickshire Ecology have confirmed that sufficient biodiversity
offsetting would be achieved.

20.5 The Environment Agency has raised concern on the basis of the ecological
impacts of the proposed realignment of the small tributaries. Warwickshire Ecology
has confirmed that this would be factored into the calculations for biodiversity
offsetting and, on this basis, | am satisfied that this matter would be adequately
addressed through this means.

20.6 In light of the above assessment, and as a result of amended plans being
submitted through the course of the application, Warwickshire Ecology have raised
no objection to the scheme subject to suitable conditions and the provision of
biodiversity offsetting secured through a S106 legal agreement. | am therefore
satisfied that the biodiversity impacts of the development are acceptable in
accordance with Policy BDP21 and SDC Policy CS.6 and the NERC Act.

20.7 SDC Policies REDD.1 and REDD.2 set a number of ecology based requirements
which are detailed above. | am satisfied that, so far as is possible, these are
secured through the development as proposed and consequently | am therefore
satisfied that these policies are complied with in this regard.

21.0 Public Rights of Way / Connectivity

21.1 Policy BDP19 (19.1) states that :
“The Council will deliver high quality people focused space through: j. Ensuring
developments are accessible to all users;
k. Ensuring permeable, safe and easy to navigate street layouts”

21.2 Two public rights of way, namely 585(C) and 588(D) cross the northern part of the
application site, (within Bromsgrove’s jurisdiction) Whilst 588(D) which runs
alongside Blacksoils Brook would be preserved alongside that feature within a
proposed landscaped buffer, the proposal would require the diversion of public
right of way number 585(C). The submitted plans show how 585(C) could be

Page 199



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

diverted to facilitate development which still providing a viable route and amenity
for users of the right of way network.

21.3 Proposed connections to the site from existing public footpath number 800(C)
would facilitate cycle and pedestrian access into the site and improve its
connectivity with the surrounding area.

21.4 In light of the above, | consider that the proposal is considered to accord with the
criterion j and k of Policy BDP19.

22.0 Crime Prevention

22.1 Policy BDP19 (19 .1t) “The Council will deliver high quality people focused space
through: o. Designing out crime and the fear of crime by incorporating measures
and principles consistent with those recommended by ‘Secured by Design™

22.2 Similarly, SDC Policy CS.9 also seeks to ensure high quality design, an element of
which includes measures to help to reduce crime and the fear crime.

22.3 Warwickshire Police Crime Prevention Design Officer have raised a number of
comments in respect of the detailed design of the development, to include
boundary treatments, roller shutter doors, windows and road layout. | am satisfied
that at reserved matters stage the crime prevention issues raised can be
appropriately incorporated into the detailed design of the scheme and.

23.0 Loss of Agricultural Land

23.1 Paragraph 112 of the NPPF states that “Local planning authorities should take
into account the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile
agricultural land. Where significant development of agricultural land is
demonstrated to be necessary, local planning authorities should seek to use areas
of poorer quality land in preference to that of a higher quality.”

23.2 An Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) study has been submitted with the
application and this was updated through the course of the application. This
evidences that the 32.42% of the application site falls within 3a, whilst 67.58% falls
within 3b.

23.4 It states that soil wetness is the most significant limitation to the agricultural use of
the site, the key effect of which is a reduction in yield of arable crops caused by
damage to roots by prolonged periods of saturation. In practical terms, saturated
soils also disrupt access with machinery, particularly in autumn and winter. For
pasture, soil wetness can restrict the length of the grazing season. Waterlogged
soils are vulnerable to structural damage from vehicle traffic, cultivation and
livestock, which can be costly and time consuming to remediate. This also further
impedes drainage, increasing the risk of additional damage.

23.5 The development would involve the loss of 9.65 hectares of Grade 3a land. This
land is interspersed between areas of Grade 3b, which is likely to result in

Page 200



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

agricultural management of the land under one system, which would be suited to
the lower quality grade.

23.6 | acknowledge that some harm would arise through the loss of approximately 9.65
hectares of Grade 3a land and this harm needs to be weighed in the planning
balance.

23.7 The loss of agricultural land is considered to be outweighed by the benefits to be

derived to the local economy through development of the site for employment
uses.

24.0 Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Requlations

Transitional provisions

24.1 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations
2017 came into force on the 16 May 2017. Section 76 of these Regulations outline
the revocation and transitional provisions and states:

24.2 “Notwithstanding the revocation in paragraph (1), the 2011 Regulations continue
to apply where before the commencement of these Regulations-
(@) an applicant, appellant or qualifying body, as the case may be, has
submitted an environmental statement or requested a scoping opinion; or
(b) in respect of local development orders, the local planning authority has in
connection with that order prepared an environmental statement or a scoping
opinion or requested a scoping direction”

24.3 The applicant submitted a Scoping Report to SDC in December 2015 and in
response the Council issued a Scoping Opinion on the 22 February 2016 upon
which Bromsgrove and Redditch Councils were consultees. In light of the above
transitional provisions, | therefore consider it appropriate to continue to assess the
application against the 2011 (as amended) Regulations.

Alternatives

24.4 The EIA Regulations require an ES to outline any alternatives that have been
considered to the proposed development, and to provide an explanation for their
choice. The applicant in Chapter 4 of the ES has undertaken this exercise in
accordance with the regulations and considers alternative location, a ‘do nothing’
approach, a different design and different construction and operational practices.

24.5 No details of specific alternative sites considered by the applicant have been
provided within the ES. However it does state that the application site is identified
as the best employment site and that it has the greatest potential to attract
significant inward investment, providing a major employment site opportunity
which is both highly accessible and in an attractive environment.

24.6 The ‘do nothing’ alternative considers the future situation without the proposed
development. The ES states that if the scheme does not come forward an

Page 201



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

opportunity to deliver the employment land needed in the region in a sustainable
location would be lost. It states that evidence suggests that some businesses
within Redditch are becoming constrained by the lack of new employment
floorspace available, and current available sites lack the scale, profile and access
to satisfy this employment need. In the applicant’s view the ‘do nothing’ alternative
is not a realistic alternative option.

24.7 The ES confirms that the layout of the development has responded to
development requirements and an increasing understanding of the site and
surroundings. Specifically it states that through design evolution, the site capacity
was amended as was the location of development and proposed building heights.
In addition, amendments were made to the road junction and provision of car
parking area in the northern parcel.

24.8 The Parameters Plan submitted seeks to respond to key constraints which have
evolved in resolved to baseline assessments undertaken for all disciplines.

25.0 Phasing

25.1 The Core Strategy anticipates that the development (REDD.1 and REDD.2) would
be delivered by 2031, the end of the plan period.

25.2 The Planning Statement submitted with the application states that, given the scale
of the proposals, development would come forward on a phased basis and would
primarily respond to market requirements as proposed to being a speculative
development. On this basis, it states that the standard time limits for outline
permission (3 year period in which to submit applications for reserved matters to
be begun with 2 years of date of approval) is not appropriate.

The applicant instead requests the following timescales:

e a 10-year period within which to submit reserved matters

e a 2-year period within which to begin development following approval of the last
such matter to be approved

25.3 | am satisfied with the principle of this phasing which could be secured by way of
condition.

26.0 Community Engagement

26.1 Chapter 5 of the ES outlines the consultation which took place at a pre-application
stage to ensure that statutory and non-statutory consultees, as well as the local
community, had an influence over the evolution of the design of both the EIA
proposals and planning application.

26.2 Public events were held at the Blue Inn, Far Moor Lane, Redditch on Friday 21
October 2016 and Saturday 22 October 2016. This involved the following:
e 1,300 invites sent to addresses within Redditch and Mappleborough Green a week
before the events

Page 202



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

e local MPs, District and County Councillors, Planning Committee Members and key
portfolio holders were issued with letters advising them of the events and invited
them to attend

e invites were sent to Beoley, Mappleborough Green, Studley and Tanworth in
Arden Parish Councils

¢ information regarding the site and proposals were displayed on exhibition boards

e members of the project team were in attendance to answer any questions

e website created to enable those attending the events to send comments online

e advertisements were placed in local papers (Bromsgrove and Droitwich Standard,
Redditch and Alcester Standard and Stratford Observer)

e press articles generated before events (Redditch Standard, Redditch Advertiser,
Insider Media (West Midlands), posting of the new story on Twitter)

e one article appeared in the Redditch Standard following the consultation event

26.3 Articles in the local press have also been published since the submission of the
application.

26.4 In addition, all technical consultees for the applications were invited to a
consultation event held at Redditch Borough Council offices to assist in the
coordination of their responses in light of the cross-boundary nature of the
submission. The case officers for the application, as well as the agent and
applicant were in attendance.

26.5 | am satisfied that the above events, together with other meetings that have taken
place, have given appropriate opportunity for third parties, Parish Councils and key
stakeholders to engage with the Local Planning Authority and key parties on
matters relating to the proposals. It is envisaged that community engagement and
stakeholder meetings could continue throughout the reserved matters,
construction and post construction stages of development.

27.0 Developer Contributions / Infrastructure Provision

27.1 Policy BDP6 (6.1) states that “Financial contributions towards development and
infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth in the District is
supported by the provision of infrastructure, (including Green Infrastructure)
services and facilities needed to maintain and improve quality of life and respond
to the needs of the local economy. This will be documented in the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan.

(6.2) Irrespective of size, development will provide, or contribute towards the
provision of: Measures to directly mitigate its impact, either geographically or
functionally, which will be secured through the use of planning obligations”

27.2 Policy CS.27 states that the Council will introduce a Community Infrastructure
Level (CIL) to fund infrastructure and community facilities necessary to
accommodate growth and to mitigate cumulative impacts.

27.3 There is not an equivalent generic policy for Redditch Borough within the BoRLP.

Page 203



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

27.4 A multilateral s106 legal agreement is proposed to secure contributions towards off
site highway improvements, HGV routing measures and ecological mitigation

27.5 The introduction of the CIL Regulations 2010 requires any planning obligations,
including financial contributions, sought from developers to be assessed under
Regulation 122 of the Regulations. This Regulation states that planning obligations
may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission if they are:
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

directly related to the development; and

3. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

A

27.6 The NPPF and PPF re-affirm the statutory tests set out within Regulation 122.
27.7 Requests for the following contributions/obligations have come forward:

Highways

£200,000.00 to be paid on first occupation and held for a period of 15 years from
its receipt in the form of a bond and management arrangement to support the HGV
Routing Strategy and Annual HGV Surveys to be secured by way of condition.

Ecology

Biodiversity offset scheme for each phase of development and biodiversity
monitoring contribution

28.0 Summary of identified Benefits and Harm

28.1 The proposal would result in the following benefits:
e Job Creation
e New landscaping and ecology enhancements
e Improved access to footpaths, cycleways, connectivity and access.

28.2 The proposal would cause the following harm:
e Loss of green field land

Traffic

Loss of ecology and biodiversity

Setting of Heritage Assets

Loss of Agricultural land

28.3 It is considered that the harm identified could be mitigated through the imposition
of planning conditions and any remnant harm would not outweigh the benefits
which the development would bring.

29.0 Conclusion
29.1 The NPPF defines sustainable development as having three mutually dependent
components. The Framework is clear that there is a presumption in favour of

sustainable development and that proposals, where they accord with the
development plan, should be approved without delay.

Page 204



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

29.2 The proposals are considered to contribute to the aims of sustainable development
through the following:

Economic Role — the proposals have a significant economic role through job
creation and helping to meet the identified needs of Redditch. In doing so it would
contribute to the wider need of Worcestershire as recognised by Worcestershire
County Council and the Worcestershire LEP through their designation of the site
as one of the four “game changer” sites for the county. As an allocated site within
up-to-date local plans it would provide land for sustainable economic development.

Social role — the proposals would contribute to the social well being of the area
through providing jobs for the local community. This would in turn create additional
disposable income that has potential to support other local business and retail
expenditure helping to contribute to a thriving local community.

Environmental Role — the proposals would create a business development within
a landscaped setting that would enhance the local environments through the
creation of new improved habitats, increased tree and hedgerow planting,
ecological mitigation to protect species and respects the built heritage of the
locality. The proposals will be designed to meet the requirements for the efficient
use of resources and energy and water conservation.

29.3 The site presents a potential ‘Game Changer’ for the Redditch economy. The site
will offer new employment opportunities and will help to facilitate growth of existing
companies within Redditch that require expansion space, thus freeing up existing
units for re-occupation. The site will also be attractive for inward investment
bringing new companies and employment opportunities to Redditch.

29.4 The site is allocated for employment use within the three adopted Local Plans and
there is in principle support for the proposed development.

29.5 The site will meet the aspirations set out in the local economic priorities adopted
by Redditch, as well as ensuring that both Local Enterprise Partnerships meet their
aspirations for new jobs and growth within the area.

29.6 The proposals would not result in significant environmental impacts on air quality,
noise and vibration, risk of contamination, residential amenity, water resources and
flood risk that could not be mitigated by the imposition of conditions and/or legal
agreement obligations.

29.7 The planning application followed and was informed by extensive pre-application
discussion with various stakeholders and consultees, and has been designed to
ensure that potential impacts have been addressed or can be satisfactorily
mitigated through the appropriate conditions imposed on a planning permission. |
consider that the changes proposed through the submission of the amended plans
have positively responded to the comments submitted and are considered to
comply with the provisions of Stratford-on-Avon Core Strategy (2016), Bromsgrove
District Plan (2017) and Redditch Local Plan No.4 (2017).

Page 205



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

29.8 The applicant has therefore shown that they are a responsible and considerate
developer willing to make amendments where appropriate to ensure quality of
development and management of any impacts.

29.9 As outlined in the main application, the development of the site has been identified
as one of the key employment development opportunities in the area that will be
bring both short and long term economic benefits.

29.10 A review of the Transport Assessment by the Council’s transport consultants - Mott
MacDonald, concurs with the findings of that assessment that the impact of the
proposed development would be minimal. This is consistent with the views of both
Highway Authorities.

29.11 Given the potential economic benefits of the proposals and the general conformity
with the local adopted planning policies and economic aspirations, it is considered
that the application should be approved.

30.0 RECOMMENDATION:
That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration to GRANT planning permission subject to the applicant entering into
a suitable legal mechanism to secure the following:
1. £200,000.00 to be paid on first occupation and held for a period of 15 years from
its receipt in the form of a bond and management arrangement to support HGV
routing.

2. Biodiversity offset scheme for each phase of development and biodiversity
monitoring contribution.

Conditions:
Please Note: On this occasion the conditions are presented in a summarised form, to

adjust the final wording to ensure compatibility across the three Local Authorities and to
take into account phasing requirements of the scheme.

Permission definition conditions

1. Details of layout, scale, appearance, landscaping and any means of access that
are not hereby approved (the reserved matters)

2. Application for approval of all reserved matters to be made in accordance with set
deadlines

3. Expiration deadlines for implementation of approved reserved matters
4. Approved plans and drawings

5. DAND A

Page 206



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

Pre-reserved matters submission conditions

6. Prior to reserved matters submission a Site Wide Phasing Strategy for:-
I. development phases of land the subject of separate reserved matters
applications
ii. the type and general alignment/route/linking of carriageways, footpaths,
cyclepaths for each phase and measures to ensure appropriate network
connectivity between each phase
iii. the timing of provision of development and infrastructure and utilities
(including ‘super-fast’ broadband) for each phase
iv.  a site wide strategy for the implementation of SUDs infrastructure
v. a site wide strategy for management and maintenance of open spaces and
green infrastructure
vi. a site wide strategy for mitigating and adapting to climate change including
measures for:-
I. designing buildings to cope with more extreme temperatures
ii. reducing energy demand through efficiency
lii. the provision of energy from renewable or low carbon sources
iv. minimising water consumption and accommodating ‘grey’ water
recycling

7. Written scheme of investigation (WSI) to be submitted to and approved

8. Final phase not occupied until site investigation and post investigation assessment
completed in accordance with WSI

Pre-commencement/occupation and other conditions

9. Samples/palette of all external materials for each phase
10. Details of parking for persons with mobility impairments/disabilities

11.Details of existing ground levels; proposed finished ground levels; building slab
levels and building ridge heights

12.Scheme for provision of adequate water supplies to be submitted and approved

Highways and transport

13.Construction Environmental Management Plan to be submitted and approved (for
reasons of Ecology and Drainage also)

14.Detailed design of the Traffic Signalled Access Junction on the A4023 Coventry
Highway to be submitted and approved

15.Detailed design of pedestrian/cycleway connection to Far Moor Lane to be
submitted and approved (north)

Page 207



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

16.Detailed design of pedestrian/cycleway connection to Far Moor Lane to be
submitted and approved (south)

17.Detailed design of A435 slip road mitigation to be submitted and approved
18.HGV Routing Strategy to be submitted and approved

19.Annual HGV Surveys to be submitted and approved (first submission 12 months
from first occupation)

20.Employment Travel Plan to be submitted and approved

21.Details of secure cycle parking facilities to be incorporated in design of reserved
matters submissions (for reason of residential amenity also)

22.Details of scheme of electric charging points to be incorporated in design of
reserved matters submissions (for reason of residential amenity also)

Drainage and water

23.1n accordance with Flood Risk Assessment submitted
24.Detailed flood mitigation scheme to be submitted and approved

25.Details of surface water drainage works to be submitted and approved (for reason
of Ecology also)

26.Scheme to manage and maintain construction materials to prevent them entering
or silting up the ditch network to be submitted and approved

Protection of residential amenity

27.The carrying out, submission, and approval of the following related to
contaminated land to include
i.  further site investigation
ii. detailed site investigation and risk assessment undertaken
iii. where site investigation identified remediation required, detailed
remediation scheme to be submitted and approved
iv.  remediation undertaken
v. validation report demonstrating effectiveness of remediation carried out
vi. any contamination not previously identified to be reporting to LPAsS;
investigation and risk assessment undertaken and remediation scheme
prepared; validation report submitted and approved

28.Details of scheme of low emission boilers to be incorporated in design of reserved
matters submissions

Page 208



Agenda Iltem 8

Plan reference

Ecoloqgy/protected species/landscape

29.Scheme for new watercourse channels diverted around the north of the site to be
submitted and approved

30.Scheme for provision and management of buffer zone alongside watercourses on
site to be submitted and approved

31.Details of all external light fittings and external light columns to be submitted and
approved (for reasons of residential amenity also)

32.Landscape and ecological management plan to be submitted and approved
33.Scheme for the provision of a wildlife tunnel under the A4023 to be submitted and

approved

Case Officer: Simon Jones Tel: 01527 548211
Email: simon.jones@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date  Plan Ref.

Mr Jeremy Conversion and extension of two existing 11.10.2017 17/00786/FU

Kimberley dwellings houses to create 10 x 2 bed L
apartments

77 Lyttleton Avenue, Bromsgrove,
Worcestershire, B60 3LH,

RECOMMENDATION:
(1) Minded to APPROVE FULL PLANNING PERMISSION

(2) That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration Services to determine the planning application following:

(b)  The receipt of a suitable and satisfactory legal mechanism in relation to
financial contributions for:
0] Improvements to Charford Recreation Ground: £19,520
(i) Provision of bins: £614

Consultations

Drainage Engineers Internal Planning Consultation Consulted 26.07.2017
No objection

Highways - Bromsgrove Consulted 26.07.2017
No objection subject to conditions

Waste Management Consulted 26.07.2017
The bin store will need to accommodate 20x 240ltr wheeled bins or 4 x 1100ltr Euro bins.

Leisure Services Manager Consulted 26.07.2017
With regard to the attached planning application Leisure Services would seek an off site
contribution for any under provision of play and open space within the development.

Off site contributions calculated should be used within the Charford Recreation Ground to
improve qualitative provision for appropriate under provision of open space and / or play
provided on site.

Ecology Officer Consulted 26.07.2017
No objection subject to conditions

Arboricultural Officer Consulted 26.07.2017
No objection

Publicity:

Page 211



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

18 letters sent on the 26th July 2017 (expired 16™ August 2017)
18 letters of re-consultation sent on the 3" October 2017 (expired 17™ October 2017)
1 site notice posted on the 28th July 2017 (expired 18" August 2017)

Neighbour Responses:
3 objections have been received and the following issues have been raised:
e Over-intensive development;
e Insufficient parking;
e Already too much on-street parking; and
e Over-looking of rear gardens

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP7 Housing Mix and Density

BDP16 Sustainable Transport

BDP19 High Quality Design

BDP21 Natural Environment

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
SPG1 Residential Design Guide

Relevant Planning History

11/0056 Demolition of part of No77 and No 79 Approved 09.03.2011
Lyttleton Avenue and erection of 4
dwellings (As augmented by plan
received 02.03.2011).

11/0439 Demolition of part 77 Lyttleton Avenue  Approved 16.09.2011
and creation of one additional dwelling
(plans as amended 12/09/2011)

Assessment of Proposal

Site Description

This application relates to two dwellings, both of which are semi-detached and have
extensive residential curtilages. The site is located within a residential area and is
bounded by residential dwellings on three sides with Lyttleton Avenue providing the
boundary to the south west of the site.

Proposed development

Page 212



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

This application seeks planning permission for the extension and conversion of the
dwellings to create an apartment block. This would consist of 6 x 2bed properties and 4 x
1 bed properties. The existing accesses off Lyttleton Avenue would be retained.

Planning Judgement

The principal issues for consideration in this case relate to the following:
- The principle of the proposed development;

- Character and Street Scene Impact;

- Impact on Neighbour Amenity;

- Access and parking;

- Landscape and trees;

- Biodiversity; and

- S106 Contributions

Each matter will be given consideration under a separate heading below along with any
other material considerations.

Principle of Development

Paragraph 53 of the NPPF sets out that local planning authorities should consider setting
out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens where it would
cause harm to a local area. This has been incorporated into the recently adopted
Bromsgrove District Plan (BDP). Criteria n of Policy BDP19 states that the development
of garden land will be resisted unless it fully integrates into the residential area and is in
keeping with the character and quality of the environment.

Other key policies in the Plan include BDP1 (Sustainable Development) states under
criteria e) that regard will be had to residential amenity. BDP7 (Housing Mix and Density)
seeks to achieve the best use of land whilst maintaining character and local
distinctiveness.

The Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing land. Paragraph 49
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) says that in such circumstances
relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date.
Therefore, in this case, the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out
at paragraph 14 of the NPPF applies. Where relevant policies are out of date paragraph
14 advises that permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the
policies in the Framework taken as a whole, or specific policies in the Framework indicate
development should be restricted. The policies which set out the restrictions are listed at
footnote 9 of the NPPF, none of which apply in this case. The NPPF at paragraph 7
defines sustainable development as having three dimensions: economic, social and
environmental. Following the consideration of all the relevant planning merits of the
scheme a balancing exercise will be undertaken whether there are any adverse impacts
in this case that significantly outweigh the presumption in favour of sustainable
development.

The application site is located within the residential area of Bromsgrove Town as defined
on the Bromsgrove District Plan Proposals Map. There is general presumption in favour

Page 213



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

of residential development in urban areas however it is necessary to assess whether the
proposals meets the specific criteria within the adopted plan and SPG1.

Character and Street Scene Impact

The area is characterised by traditional 2 storey dwellings which are a mix of terraced,
semi-detached and detached properties. It is also noted that some apartment
developments have been introduced on corner plots in the last 10 years.

In this case, the substantial gap between the two semi-detached property would be
infilled to create the appearance of terraced dwellings. This is helped by the inclusion of
3 front doors and a projecting gable feature that matches that of the existing dwellings.
The infilled section does not exceed the height of the existing dwellings ensuring the 2
storey appearance is retained. An access is provided through the development to a
parking court yard at the rear ensuring that views of the large area of hardstanding are
minimised. Hardstanding is also required at the front of the site for 6 spaces, although
much of this is already in existence.

It is noted that in mathematical terms the density is high for this residential area however
due to the careful design of the scheme, the scale and appearance give the impression of
a series of terraced dwellings which retain the character and appearance of the street
scene in accordance with Policies BDP7 and BDP19 of the BDP and SPGL1.

Residential Amenity

SPG1, Residential Design Guide, provides guidelines with regards to criteria that should
be met in order to ensure acceptable implications of designs in terms of residential
amenity.

The infilling taking place is sited away from the boundary of neighbouring properties,
Hannily Place (apartment building on corner of Flavel Road) and 36 Hewell Avenue. This
ensures that there is no breach of the 45 degree guideline and the development would
not appear over-bearing when viewed from the neighbouring properties. A minimum
distance of 12m is retained between the rear elevation of the proposed building and the
shared boundary fence with No. 34 Hewell Avenue. This exceeds the minimum
standards within SPG1 ensuring that no substantial loss of privacy would occur.

It is also necessary to consider the amenity levels that would be experienced for the
occupiers of the proposed dwellings. All apartments are of a sufficient size with habitable
rooms having windows that provide an acceptable outlook.

The guidance within SPG1 suggests 30sgm of amenity space per flat should be provided.
In this case approximately 110sgm has been provided in total whilst provides only 36% of
the requirement. However it is important to note that those purchasing flats generally do
not require a garden and it is unlikely many children would be present due to the size of
the units. Some useable private space has been provided which can be used to provide
space for the drying of washing and the general enjoyment of occupiers.

Overall it is considered that the proposed dwellings would have an acceptable amenity
impact in accordance with the guidance within SPG1 and Policy BDP1 of the BDP.

Page 214



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

Access and parking

The scheme provides a total of 16 parking spaces with 6 located at the front with the
remaining 10 located in a rear courtyard. This level of provision accords with the County
Council's parking standards. The scheme utilises 2 existing accesses the County
Highways Officer raises no concerns to the development subject to the imposition of
planning conditions. The proposal therefore accords with Policy BDP16 of the BDP.

Biodiversity

In accordance with the relevant legislation the local planning authority has a duty to
ensure any proposal will not impact adversely upon protected species. A bat survey was
submitted with the application which shows no signs of bats and limited potential for bats
in the future. Subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions there would be no undue
harm to protected species in accordance with the NPPF.

Planning Contributions

In accordance with paragraph 204 of the NPPF and section 122 of the CIL planning
obligations have been sought to mitigate the impact of this major development, if the
application were to be approved. The obligations would cover open space improvements
to Charford recreation ground and the provision of bin storage. Financial contributions on
these matters have been informally agreed with the applicant and work on the legal
agreement is underway. Subject to the signing of the S106 agreement the proposal
would have no adverse impact on infrastructure in the local area.

Conclusion

As stated previously there are 3 strands to sustainable development. In relation to the
economic dimension the development would provide some benefit to the local economy
in terms of providing employment for construction trades and increasing demand for
building materials. With reference to the social dimension the proposal would make a
positive contribution towards the supply of housing in the locality in a location defined as
being appropriate for residential development. In terms of environmental considerations
the proposal would respect the character of the local area and not result in any harm to
protected species. As such the proposal represents a sustainable form of development
that in accordance with paragraph 14 of the NPPF should be granted permission.

RECOMMENDATION:
(2) Minded to APPROVE FULL PLANNING PERMISSION

(2) That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration Services to determine the planning application following:

(b)  The receipt of a suitable and satisfactory legal mechanism in relation to
financial contributions for:

Page 215



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

(1) Improvements to Charford Recreation Ground: £19,520
(i) Provision of bins: £614

Conditions:

1) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and drawings:

3174 001
3174_002 Rev D

REASON: To provide certainty to the extent of the development hereby approved
in the interests of proper planning.

2)  The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

3)  All new external walls and roofs shall be finished in materials to match in colour,
form and texture those on the existing building, or if a near match cannot be found,
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority should be obtained for
materials prior to development commencing. The development shall then be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactory in appearance, to
safeguard the visual amenities of the area and in accordance with Policies in the
Local Plan.

4) Before any other works hereby approved on the application site are commenced,
the new entrance shall be set back 2 metres from the rear of the adjoining footway.
On each side of the set back entrance splays shall be formed at an angle of 45
degrees with the highway boundary and the whole of the splayed areas shall be
graded and cleared so that no part thereof exceeds a height of 0.6m above the
relative level of the adjoining carriageway.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety.

5) Before any other works hereby approved are commenced, visibility splays shall be
provided from a point 0.6m above ground level at the centre of the access to the
application site and 2.4 metres back from the near side edge of the adjoining
carriageway, (measured perpendicularly), for a distance of 43 metres in each
direction along the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway. Nothing shall be

Page 216



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

planted, erected and/or allowed to grow on the triangular area of land so formed
which would obstruct the visibility described above.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety

6) For its first 5m measured back from the footway edge the access shall be
constructed in a bound material.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

7)  The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the access,
turning area and parking facilities shown on the approved plan have been properly
consolidated, surfaced, drained and otherwise constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and these areas shall thereafter be retained and kept available for
those users at all times.

Reason: In the interests of Highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic
using the adjoining Highway.

8) 16 car parking spaces shall be provided on site and shall be reserved solely for
that purpose and such spaces be made available for the use before the
development hereby approved is occupied.

Reason: To comply with parking standards

9) Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved secure parking for 16
cycles to comply with the Council's standards shall be provided within the curtilage
of the dwelling and these facilities shall thereafter be retained for the parking of
cycles only.

Reason: To comply with the Council's parking standards

10) The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until one of the
new parking spaces has been equipped with an electric vehicle rapid charging
point (32 Amp, 7 KW) and once provided it shall be retained and maintained as
such at all times.
Reason: To comply with parking standards

11) Prior to occupation details of the siting and specification of 1 bat box shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The bat and
bird boxes shall be installed in accordance with the approved details and shall
remain for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To secure biodiversity enhancements in accordance with the NPPF and
Policy BDP21 of the Bromsgrove District Plan.

Informatives

Page 217



Agenda Item 9

Plan reference

1) Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Section 106 Agreement which
accompanies this permission.

2) The attention of the applicant is drawn to the need to keep the Highway free from
any mud or other material emanating from the application site of any works
pertaining thereto.

3) This permission does not authorise the applicant to carry out works within the
publicly maintained highway.

Dropped kerbs to enable access onto properties for vehicles must only be
constructed by Ringway Infrastructure Services, Worcestershire County Councils
approved contractor. The applicant is solely responsible for all costs associated
with construction of the access. For further information, please contact Ringway
direct on 01905 751651 or email : worcestershirevehicle.crossing@ringway.co.uk

4) This permission does not authorise the applicant to carry out works within the
publicly maintained highway since such works can only be carried out by the
County Council's Approved Contractor following the issue of a license under
Section 184 and 278 of the Highways Act, 1980.

Please contact Ringway Infrastructure Services, Worcestershire County Councils
approved contractor. The applicant is solely responsible for all costs associated
with construction of the access. For further information, please contact Ringway
direct on 01905 761160 or email: worcestershirevehicle.crossing@ringway.co.uk

5) Drainage arrangements shall be provided to ensure that surface water from the
driveway and/or Vehicular turning area does not discharge onto the Public
Highway. No drainage or effluent from the proposed development shall be allowed
to discharge into any Highway drain or over any part of the Public Highway.

Case Officer: Andrew Fulford Tel: 01527 881323
Email: A.fulford@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 218



Agenda Item 10

Name of Applicant Proposal Expiry Date Plan Ref.
Mr D Two-storey extension to original front of 05.12.2017 17/01160/FUL
Sanderson dwelling (retrospective).

Allandale Cottage, Redhill Road, Kings
Norton, Birmingham, Worcestershire B38
9EW

This application is for consideration by Planning Committee due to the requirement
for a legal agreement.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and a
unilateral agreement.

Consultations

Alvechurch Parish Council Consulted 23.10.2017

Objections; this application may set a precedent with extensions being more than 40% in
Green Belt. There are no exceptional circumstances to warrant an extension of more than
40%.

Public notifications

One site notice was posted 27.10.2017 and expired 17.11.2017: No response received.

Two neighbour letters sent 23.10.2017 and expired 13.11.2017; No response received.
Press notice published in The Bromsgrove Standard 03.11.2017 and expired 17.11.2017; No
response received.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP4 Green Belt

BDP19 High Quality Design

Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
NPPG National Planning Practice Guidance
SPG1 Residential Design Guide

Relevant Planning History

16/0923 2 storey side extension with porch and Granted 18.08.2017
dormer windows

Assessment of Proposal

The application site is a semi-detached property which lies within an isolated, rural location
within an area designated as Green Belt.

Page 219



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

There are no records showing that the dwelling has previously been extended however the
property benefits from an extant planning permission (16/0923) for a two storey side
extension, which is yet to be implemented. A condition was attached to this permission to
remove Permitted Development Rights for further extensions; however as the permission
has not been implemented, the condition is yet to be triggered.

Allandale Cottage is an unusual property in so much as the original principal elevation does
not front the highway, but instead faces towards the garden. This assessment has been
made on the basis of the layout of the dwelling, where the porch leading through to the
hallway are located on this side of the property.

This application seeks retrospective permission for a two storey extension which extends
beyond the original front asymmetric gable.

The main considerations for this application are whether the proposal would constitute
inappropriate development within the Green Belt, whether there would be an adverse impact
to the openness of the Green Belt, the impact of the proposal on the character of the
dwelling and the local area, neighbouring amenity, and whether Very Special Circumstances
exist that would outweigh the harm arising by reason of inappropriateness and any other
harm.

Green Belt

There is a presumption against development within the Green Belt; however paragraph 89 of
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) lists a number of exceptions that may not
be inappropriate within the Green Belt, which includes a proportionate addition to an original
building. Policy BDP4.4c of the Bromsgrove District Plan states than an extension of up to a
40% increase of the original dwelling may be appropriate provided it had no adverse impact
on the openness of the Green Belt. In this case the property benefits from planning
permission for a two storey side extension, which in view of its expiry date, 18" August 2020,
is reasonably likely to be constructed. This extension would amount to a 36.7% increase in
floor space above the original, and the current proposal would amount to a further 17.2%.
Taken together, extensions would total 53.9%, which would constitute disproportionate
additions and thus inappropriate development.

In accordance with the NPPF inappropriate development is harmful by definition and should
not be approved except in Very Special Circumstances. A case has been put forward for a
Permitted Development “fall back” at the original rear of the property, which would provide
the same amount of accommodation as the proposal.

In view of this, both the proposal scheme and fall back scheme have been measured to
provide an increase in floor space of 27 sqm. However consideration is also given to the
relative impact to the height and volume of buildings. In this case the ridgeline of the two
storey extension is set lower than the potential fall back scheme, and would be no greater in
volume.

With regards to the reduced height of the proposal scheme compared to the fall back
scheme, there would also be slightly less impact to the visual openness of the Green Belt.

Page 220



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

Given the permitted development fall back scheme would be more harmful than the proposal
scheme for the reasons above, it is considered that Very Special Circumstances exist that
would outweigh the harm arising through inappropriateness. It is therefore considered that
the proposal is acceptable subject to the removal of Class A Permitted Development Rights,
which would ensure that the fall back scheme could not also be implemented.

Impact on the Character of the Dwelling and Local Area

Policy BDP19 of the Bromsgrove District Plan requires development to be of a high quality
design that will enhance the character and distinctiveness of the local area. The proposal
scheme is not considered to dominate the original dwelling in terms of its scale and manages
to retain the cat slide detail of the gable, which forms an important part of the character of
the dwelling. The fall back scheme would include both a two storey element and single
storey element, which again, given their scale would remain subordinate to the original
dwelling. However the two storey element of the fall back scheme would partly conceal the
original chimney feature on this elevation which would detract from the character of the
dwelling. It is also noted that the fall back scheme would be far more prominent from views
of the street scene.

Overall it is considered that the proposal scheme would have a greater detrimental impact to
the character of the original dwelling and the local area.

Neighbouring amenity

Given the siting of the proposal in relation to the adjoining neighbour, no harm arises to the
amenities of the neighbouring occupiers, and thus the proposal complies with policy BDP1 of
the Bromsgrove District Plan.

Conclusion

The proposed development would constitute disproportionate additions, which would be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Inappropriate development is harmful by
definition and should only be approved if Very Special Circumstances exist that would
outweigh the harm arising through inappropriateness. In this case a permitted development
fall back scheme has been put forward which would provide the same amount of floor space.
Furthermore the fall back scheme would be taller in height and therefore would have a
greater impact to the visual openness of the Green Belt. The fall back scheme would also
have a greater detrimental impact to the character of the dwelling and the street scene.

Given the permitted development fall back scheme would be more harmful than the proposal
scheme for the reasons above, it is considered that Very Special Circumstances exist that
would outweigh the harm arising through inappropriateness. It is therefore considered that
the proposal is acceptable subject to the removal of Class A Permitted Development Rights,
which would ensure that the fall back scheme could not also be implemented.

A Legal Officer was consulted as part of the process and considered that a Unilateral

Agreement was the most suitable mechanism to remove permitted development rights in this
particular case.

Page 221



Agenda Item 10

Plan reference

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions and a
unilateral agreement to remove Part 1, Class A permitted development rights.

Conditions:

1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of this permission.

Reason :- In accordance with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2)  The development hereby permitted shall be in accordance with the Approved Plans/
Drawings listed in this notice:

Location Plan - Drawing no. Allandale Cottage - 01K
Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations - Drawing no. Allandale Cottage - 05K

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Case Officer: Charlotte Wood Tel: 01527 64252 Ext 3412
Email: Charlotte. Wood@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 222



	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 6th November 2017
	5 Tree Preservation Order (7) 2017 - Trees on land adjoining Harris Brush Works and Saxon Business Park, Hanbury Road, Bromsgrove.
	Appendix 1 - TPO 7 - Plan and Schedule of Provisional Order
	Appendix 2 - TPO 7 - Plan and Schedule of Modified Order
	Appendix 3 - TPO 7 - Active Forestry Commission Felling Licence
	Appendix 4 - TPO 7 - Email of Objection from owners of W1, W2 and W3 Forestry Consultant
	Appendix 5 - TPO 7 - Extract from the Tree Preservation Order Best Practice Guide
	Appendix 6 - TPO 7 - Email Response of Support Forestry Commission
	Appendix 7 - TPO 7 - Letter of Objection from the owner of woodland blocks W4 and W5
	Appendix 8 - TPO 7 - Letter of Responses to owner of woodland blocks W4 and W5

	6 Tree Preservation Order (11) 2017 - Trees on land adjacent to 73 Linthurst Newtown, Blackwell
	Appendix 1 - TPO 11 - Copy of Provisional Order
	Appendix 2 - TPO 11 - Copy of Proposed Modified order and schedule
	Appendix 3 - TPO 11 - Copy of Objections to BDC TPO (11) from Harrison Rickerbys and Barton Hyett
	Appendix 4 - TPO 11 - Copy of Objection from Mr Fell
	Appendix 5 - TPO 11 - Summary of postive representations
	Appendix 6 - TPO 11 - Plan showing location of Public Footpath
	Appendix 7 - TPO 11 - Copy of National Planning Policy Guideline
	Appendix 8 - TPO 11 - Plan of vantage points from which photographs were taken
	Appendix 9 - TPO 11 - Photographs of trees from local vantage points
	Appendix 10 - TPO 11 - Copy of TPO 13 (2016)
	Appendix 11 - TPO 11 - Copy of consent order June 2017
	Appendix 12 - TPO 11 - Photographs of trees which have been cut on site
	Appendix 13 - TPO 11 - TEMPO Assessment
	Appendix 14 - TPO 11 - Forestry Commission Statistics Info

	7 2017/00459/FUL - Conversion of existing barn to form two bedroom dwelling - Stoney Lane Farm, Stoney Lane, Broad Green, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B60 1LZ - Mr P. J. Whittaker
	8 2017/00701/OUT - Hybrid application comprising: Outline planning application (with matters of appearance, landscaping, layout, scale and details of internal circulation routes reserved) for the development on a phased basis of 32ha of employment land for business/industrial uses (Use Classes B1, B2, B8).  The development shall include: landscaping, parking, associated infrastructure, utilities, drainage (including SUDS) and ground engineering works; and Full planning application for Phase 1 Ground Engineering works, and details of means of access to the site from the A4023 - Redditch Gateway, Land Adjacent to the A4023, Coventry Highway, Redditch, Worcestershire - Redditch Gateway Infrastructure Ltd
	9 2017/00786/FUL - Conversion and extension of two existing dwellings houses to create 10 x 2 bed apartments - 77 Lyttleton Avenue, Bromsgrove, Worcestershire, B60 3LH - Mr Jeremy Kimberley
	10 2017/01160/FUL - Two-storey extension to original front of dwelling (retrospective) - Allandale Cottage, Redhill Road, Kings Norton, Birmingham, Worcestershire, B38 9EW - Mr D. Sanderson

